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SECTION 1—INTRODUCTION

THE NEW FINANCIAL REPORTING MODEL FOR GOVERNMENTS

In June 1999, the Governnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
i ssued St at enent No. 34, Basi c Fi nanci al St at enent s—and
Managenment's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local
Governments (GASB 34). Subsequently, the GASB issued Statenent
No. 35, Basic Financial Statenents—and Managenent's Di scussion
and Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities (GASB 35);
Statenent No. 36, Reci pient Reporting for Certain Shared
Nonexchange Revenues, an anendnent of GASB Statenent No. 33
(GASB 36); Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statenments—and
Managenent’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local
Governnents: QOmibus (GASB 37); and Statenent No. 38, Certain
Fi nanci al Statenent Note Disclosures (GASB 38).

These statenents provide a new | ook and focus of reporting for
state and local governments in the United States and are the
nost significant single change in the history of governnental
accounting. The new standards becone effective for the State of
South Carolina for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002. Thi s
standard wll affect accounting and financial reporting both
(a) for State agencies that provide year-end GAAP closing
packages to the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral (0OCG and
(b) for State agencies, colleges and wuniversities, and other
entities that are incorporated into the statew de Conprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) from separately audited financial
st at ement s.

SUBMITTING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE OFFICE OF THE
COMPTROLLER GENERAL

The Ofice of the Conptroller General expects to receive draft
and final financial statenents in accordance with the auditors’
contractual arrangenents with the State Auditor’s Ofice. In
each case, the Ofice of the Conptroller General expects to
receive at least draft financial statenents for the nost
recently ended fiscal year no |later than COctober 15.




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

PCLI Cl ES—I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR iECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
| NTROCDUCTI ON AND SCOPE 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
13

To maxim ze efficiency in preparation of the statew de financi al
statenents, the Ofice of the Conptroller General (0OCG asks
that auditors send a copy of the draft and final financial
statenents to the following address at the sane tine as they
submt the materials to the State Auditor’'s Ofice or to the
State Board for Techni cal and Conprehensive Educati on:

Central State Financial Reporting Division
Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral

Post O fice Box 11228

Col unbi a, South Carolina 29211-1228

Those preferring to do so may submt financial statenments to the
OCG el ectronically as foll ows:

Fax: (803) 758-5745
E-mai | : financial . statements@g. state. sc. us

| n-person deliveries nmay be nmade to Room 490, Fourth Floor of
the Wade Hanpton Ofice Building, Capitol Conplex (directly
behind the State House). The division’s main tel ephone nunber
is (803) 734-2128.

ABOUT THIS MANUAL
Purpose of This Manual; Limitations

This policy manual is designed to provide policies and guidance
to the accountants and auditors of those State agencies, higher
education institutions, and other entities that have separate
audits of their financial statenments and that submt their
audited reports to the State of South Carolina’s Ofice of the
Comptrol l er General for incorporation into the statew de CAFR

This policy manual is not intended to constitute a conprehensive
guide to Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
applicable to entities reported as part of the State of South
Car ol i na. In fact, it assunes that wusers are thoroughly
know edgeabl e about basic GAAP for governnents. Instead, this
manual focuses on sel ected conplex GAAP issues that have caused
problens in the past and on reporting requirenents that derive




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

PCLI Cl ES—I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR iECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
| NTROCDUCTI ON AND SCOPE 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
14

from the State’

S participation in the Governnent Finance
Oficers Association’s Certificate of Achievenent for Excellence
in Financial Reporting Program and go beyond the requirenments of
GAAP pronouncenents.

Further, this manual is |limted to matters that directly affect

i ncor poration of
South Carolina s

agency financial statenments i
Conpr ehensi ve Annual Fi nanci

nto the State of
al Report. For

exanpl e, the manual does not address pension or post-enploynent
benefit disclosures because the Ofice of
General (OCG obtains information for these statewi de CAFR
di sclosures directly from the South Carolina Retirenment Systens
of Insurance Services. St and- al one agency
financial statenents nust be produced in such a way as to
satisfy the requirenents of the State Auditor’
as the requirenents of the OCG

and the Ofice

Scope of Application of This Manual’s Policies

In accordance w

th State lawt, the Ofice of

the Conptroller

s Ofice as well

the Conptroller

Ceneral (OCG determnes and issues policies that will apply to

entities wthin

the State’s primary gover

financi al statenents for incorporation int
Conpr ehensi ve Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
al so apply to conponent units that neet GASB

bl endi ng.

nment submtting
o the statew de

These policies
14's criteria for

depends on the

Di scretely presented conponent
required, to adopt the same accounting polici
the State primary governnent. Regardl ess  of possi bl e
differences in policies, the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral
managenent of discretely presented conponent
suppl enentary data needed for inclusion in
the statewide CAFR if not supplied in the
stand-al one financial statenents.

units to supply to it

units are encouraged, but not

es that apply to

component unit’s

1 See, for exanple,

Section 59.2 of the State’'s General

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002.

Appropriation Act for
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The guidance in this policy manual does not apply to agency
audited financial statenents for agencies that submt non-
coll ege closing packages (such as Departnment of Public Safety
and Departnent of Disabilities and Special Needs) to the OCG

Organization and Format

This policy manual is divided into eight sections. The sections
related to the Departnent of Transportation and to colleges and
universities (Sections 7 and 8) are specific to those agencies
and apply exclusively to those agencies. The remaining sections
(Sections 1 through 6, plus this introductory section) apply to
al | State agencies, <colleges and universities, and other
entities that submt audited financial statenments for inclusion
in the statew de CAFR

Agency Policies Printed Within a Boxed Border

State policies for entities incorporated into the statew de
Conpr ehensive Annual Financial Report from audited financial
statenents are formatted with a boxed border for enphasis.

Citations Referencing the GASB Codification and GASB Statements

Most references to the GASB's Codification of Governnental
Accounting and Financi al Reporting Standards, St at enent 34
Edition, are cited by specific paragraph—for exanple, GASB Cod.
Sec. 2300.103 (Section 2300, paragraph .103), rather than by
reference to a specific GASB, NCGA, or AICPA pronouncenent (in
this exanple, GASB Statenent 38, paragraph 5).

If we refer to a particular GASB statenent, we generally use a
short abbreviated form such as “GASB 34" rather than *GASB
Statenent No. 34.”7

June 30 vs. December 31

Policies within this manual focus on reporting at June 30
because the State's fiscal year ends on June 30. Sone entities
incorporated into the statewide CAFR from audited financial
statenents have a fiscal year ending Decenber 31. \When reading
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this manual, those entities generally should substitute

“Decenber 31" for “June 30.”

Annual Updates; Questions About Policies

The OCG plans to update this policy manual at |east annually for
new authoritative literature, <changes in State policy and
clarifications on issues identified in the preceding year. The
manual will be posted to the Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral’s
websi t e, http://ww. cg.state. sc. us/. Due to budget ary
constraints, the manual is available only in electronic format.

Agenci es should address questions related to State accounting
policies to the staff of the Central State Financial Reporting
Division of the Ofice of the Conptroller General.

AVAILABILITY OF THE STATEWIDE CAFR

The State of South Carolina’s CAFR for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2001, is available in electronic format on the Internet
at http://ww. cg. state.sc.us/cafr01/i ndex. ht m I nt erest ed
parties may also request a printed copy by contacting the Ofice
of the Conptroller General.

The OCG strongly recommends that accountants responsible for
preparing financial statenments incorporated into the statew de
CAFR as well as their auditors refer to the nost recently issued
statewide CAFR in conjunction with their use of this policy
manual .
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SECTION 2—APPLICATION OF PROFESSIONAL LITERATURE
STATEWIDE ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cenerally Accept ed Account i ng Principl es require t hat

governnments establish various policies. Sonme of these policies
must be disclosed in the notes to the financial statenents.

statenents for inclusion in the statew de Conprehensive

units that neet GASB 14’ s criteria for bl ending.

In accordance with State law’, the Ofice of the Conptroller
CGeneral (OCG determnes and issues policies that will apply to
entities in the State primary governnment that submt financial

Fi nanci al Report (CAFR). These policies also apply to conponent

Annual

THE GAAP HIERARCHY'’S APPLICATION TO GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

The GAAP hierarchy®, sumarized bel ow, determines the status of

various professional pronouncenents wth respect to
application to governnents.

their

Lower-nunbered Ilevels take precedence over higher-nunbered

| evel s.

Level 1 GAAP

Rul e 203 of the AICPA s Code of Professional Ethics, “Accounting

Principles,” makes it an ethical violation for an audi

tor to

state that financial statements are fairly presented in
conformty wth GAAP if those statenents materially violate
Level 1 GAAP guidance. Level 1 guidance for governnents

includes all of the follow ng pronouncenents:

2 | bid.

3 Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 69, The Meaning of

“Present

Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” in the

I ndependent Auditor’s Report as anmended, published by the Al CPA
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Al GASB statenents and interpretations that

Conpr ehensi ve Annual Fi nanci al Report (CAFR)

have not been
anended or superseded apply to all activities,
governmental conponent wunits (but not to non-governnental
conponent units) reported in the State of South Carolina’s

funds, and

e Paragraph 17 of GASB 34 requires that governnental and

busi ness-type activities (gover nnent - wi de fi nanci al
statenents) adopt all of the followng pronouncenents
issued on or before Novenber 30, 1989, unl ess those
pr onouncenent s conflict W th or cont radi ct GASB

pronouncenent s:

» Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

(No. 1 through No. 102).
> FASB Interpretations (No. 1 through No. 38).

» Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opi ni ons.

St at enent s

» Accounting Research Bulletins (ARBs) of the Commttee on

Accounting Procedure.

Paragraph 93 of GASB 34 also requires that al
funds adopt the above pronouncenents. Not e t hat
pronouncenents do not apply to governnental fund statenents—
only to governnental activities reported in the governnent-

w de statenents.

enterprise
t he above

enterprise funds.*

The State has elected not to adopt the FASB Statenents and
Interpretations issued after Novenber 30, 1989,
gover nient al and business-type activities and

for its
for its

4

see SCOPE OF APPLICATION OF THI'S MANUAL'S PCLICIES
| NTRODUCTI ON.

in

For exception regardi ng business-type discretely presented conponent units,

Section 1,
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The followng are anong the nost inportant private-sector
standards that apply to governnental and business-type
activities as reported in the governnent-w de statenents
and to enterprise funds as reported in the fund financial
statenents because t he GASB (or its pr edecessor
or gani zati on, NCGA) has incorporated them “by reference”:

>

APB 20, Accounting Changes applies to governnents in many
situations, but Footnote 13 of GASB 34 states the
foll ow ng exception: “Changes in accounting principles,
addressed in APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, as
anmended, should be reported as restatenments of beginning
net assets/fund equity, not as a separately identified
cunul ative effect in the current-period Statenent of
Activities or proprietary fund Statenment of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets.”

APB 22, Disclosure of Accounting Policies (requiring
presentation of a Summary of Significant Accounting
Pol i ci es).

APB 30, Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the
Effects of D sposal of a Segnent of a Business, and
Extraordi nary, Unusual and Infrequently Cccurring Events
and Transactions, relating to extraordinary itens.

FASB 5, Accounting for Cont i ngenci es, gui dance on
recognizing loss liabilities.

FASB 6, C assification of Short-Term Cbligations Expected
to be Refinanced, in connection wth the proper
classification of bond anticipation notes.

FASB 13, Accounting for Leases, as amended and
i nterpreted.

FASB 74, Accounting for Special Term nation Benefits Paid
to Enployees, as anended by GASB 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Governnental Enployers.
[ NOTE: FASB 74 remains in effect for state governnents,
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even though it was superseded in the private sector by
FASB 88. ]

As noted previously, the above pronouncenents do not apply
to governnental fund statements—but they do apply to
governnmental activities reported in the governnent-w de
statenents.

* The provisions of FASB 34, Capitalization of Interest Cost,
as anmended, are applicable to business-type activities and
to enterprise funds but not to governmental funds or
activities.?

Agencies and their auditors are encouraged to visit the GASB s
website at http://ww.gasb.org/. The FASB's website is at
http://ww. fasb. org/. These websites provide information on
obt ai ni ng copi es of pronouncenent s and ot her val uabl e
information of interest to financial statement preparers and
t heir auditors.

Level 2 GAAP

Rul e 202 of t he Al CPA' s Code of Pr of essi onal Conduct ,

“Conpliance with Standards,” places on auditors the burden of
proof to justify any material departures from guidance found in
Levels 2, 3, or 4 of the GAAP hierarchy. Level 2 guidance

i ncl udes the follow ng pronouncenents:

e« GASB technical bulletins.

> The GASB decided in its Qmibus amendments to GASB 34 that allocation of
construction-period interest expense to the cost of capital assets would be
contradictory to the provision in paragraph 46 of GASB 34 that states that
interest on general long-termliabilities generally should be considered an
i ndirect expense and thus not be allocated to functions or prograns.
(Paragraph 46, however, does not apply to interest on business-type
activities' debt.)




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

PCLI Cl ES—I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR ZECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
APPLI CATI ON OF PROFESSI ONAL LI TERATURE 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
21

 The AICPA Audit Cuide, Audits of State and Local
Governmental Units (2002 edition expected to be released in
August 2002).

e Oher AICPA audit guides and AICPA Statenments of Position
(SOPs) if they specifically apply to state and | ocal
governments and the GASB has cl eared them for issuance.

NOTE: Page 12 of the 2001 edition of GFOA's Governnenta

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting states: “As a
practical matter, the assertion that a given Audit Cuide or SOP
is applicable to all entities is not considered a specific

application to state and | ocal governnents. Also, practitioners
may presunme that the AICPA's Audit QGQuides and SOPs that
specifically reference state and |ocal governments have been
cleared by the GASB absent a notice to the contrary in that sane
gui dance.”

Because of the applicability of Rule 202, the Ofice of the
Comptrol ler General expects that agency financial statenents
generally wll conmply wth all of the guidance |isted above
unless it is clearly inapplicable.

Level 3 GAAP

No Level 3 GAAP currently applies to governnents.

Level 4 GAAP

Rul e 202  of the AICPA's Code of Pr of essi onal Conduct ,
“Conpliance with Standards,” places on auditors the burden of
proof to justify any material departures from guidance found in
Levels 2, 3, or 4 of the GAAP hierarchy. Level 4 guidance

i ncl udes the follow ng pronouncenents:
* GASB I nplenentation Guides, including the follow ng:
> GASB 3 Inplenentation Guide: Deposits w th Financi al

I nstitutions, | nvest nent s (i ncluding Repur chase
Agreenents), and Reverse Repurchase Agreenents.
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> GASB 9 Inplenentation Cuide: Reporting Cash Flows of
Proprietary and Nonexpendabl e Tr ust Funds and
Gover nnent al Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Account i ng.

> GASB 10 Inplenentation Guide: Accounting and Financi al
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related |nsurance
| ssues.

> GASB 14 Inplenentation QCuide: The Financial Reporting
Entity.

> GASB 31 Inplenentation Quide: Accounting and Financi al
Reporting for Certain Investnents and for Externa
| nvest ment Pool s.

> GASB 34 | mpl enent ati on Qui de: Basi c Fi nanci al
St at enent s—and Managenent’s Di scussion and Anal ysis—for
State and Local Governnents, published in 2000 and
referred to in this nanual as “the first GASB 34
| mpl enent ati on CGui de.”

» Second GASB 34 Inplenentation Quide: Quide to
| mpl ement ation  of GASB St at enent 34 and Related
Pronouncenents, published in 2001 and referred to in this
manual as “the second GASB 34 | nplenentation Guide.”

e AICPA Audit GCuides, SOPs, or Practice Bulletins (if any)
specific to governnent but not cleared by the GASB

Because of the applicability of Rule 202, the Ofice of the
Comptroller General expects that agency financial statenents
generally wll conmply wth all of the guidance |isted above
unless it is clearly inapplicable.

Other Sources—Level 5 GAAP

In the absence of other authoritative sources of GAAP, financi al
statenent preparers are to follow wdely recognized and
preval ent practice. This is consistent wth the fundanmental
notion of generally accepted accounting principles. Such ot her
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sources (sonetines referred to as “Level 5 GAAP’) include
pr of essi onal publ i cati ons, t ext books, position papers of
prof essional organizations, and FASB guidance that 1is not

authoritative for governnents.

hi ghest to | owest priority):

* GASB Concepts Statenents.

are the foll ow ng:

> The GFOA Certificate of Achi evenent Checkl i
Fi nanci al Mbdel . To access the GFOA checkli sts,

“questions” or “explanations” choice.

and Financial Reporting, otherwise known as the
Book. ”

the newsletter).

e Up-to-date publications of +the National Associati
College and University Business Oficers (NACUBO
respect to the State’s higher education enterprise
O particular note are:

» The GASB 35 | npl enmentation Cuide.

» NACUBO  Advisory Reports effective beginning

Financial statenment preparers should apply these sources of
“Level 5 GAAP” in the following order of priority (listed from

e Up-to-date accounting publications of the Governnent

Finance O ficers Association (GFQA). O particular note

http://ww. gfoa.org/fornms/, and click on the appropriate

» The 2001 edition of Governnental Accounting, Auditing,

» The GAAFR Review nonthly newsletter (taking care to note
that applicability of old newsletters may be limted if
authoritative GAAP changed at a date later than that on

i npl enentation of GASB 34/ 35. Access these reports at
http://ww. nacubo. org/ public policy/advisory reports/.

st —New
go to

“Bl ue

on of
with
f und.

W th

* Resolutions or accounting pronouncenents (if any) of the
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Website is at http://ww. nasact.org/.

e Publications of any other governnent-sector

involved in that governnent sector.

Reporting Mdel, A Question and Answer Cuide

Nat i onal Association of State Auditors, Conptrollers, and
Treasurers (NASACT) or its conponent organizations such as
the National Association of State Conptrollers (NASC).

with respect to accounting for the particular funds

* Understanding and | mpl emrenting GASB' s New Fi nanci al

and Auditors of State and Local Governnental Financi al
Statenents, by Venita M Wod, published by the AlCPA

or gani zati on

for Preparers

(NOTE: A revised edition was issued in spring of 2002.)
e (uide to Gover nnent al Fi nanci al Reporti ng Model ,
| mpl ementing GASBS No. 34 (by Susan R Patton, Terry K
Patton, et al.; published by Practitioners Publishing
Conmpany, www. ppcnet. conj.
APPLICABILITY OF FASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
Agencies nust apply all GASB pronouncenents as well as all

applicable FASB Statenments and Interpretations,

APB  Opi ni ons,

and ARBs issued on or before Novenber 30, 1989, to their
gover nient al and busi ness-type activities (reported in
government -wi de financial statenents), and their enterprise and

internal service funds (reported in fund financial

statenents),

unl ess those pronouncenents conflict with or contradict GASB

pronouncenents. 6

General ly Accepted Accounting Principles’ do not

require (but

allow) enterprise funds to elect to apply FASB Statenents and

Interpretations issued after Novenber 30, 1989.

Par agr aph 94

encourages governnments to use the sane application of FASB

6 Paragraphs 17 and 93 of GASB 34.

” Paragraphs 17 and 94 of GASB 34.
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pronouncenents for all of its enterprise funds. The State of
South Carolina chooses not to apply any FASB Statenents or
Interpretations issued after Novenber 30, 1989, to enterprise
funds within its primry governnent.

Activities and funds reported wthin the State’'s primary
government should not adopt FASB Statenments and Interpretations
i ssued after Novenber 30, 1989. This policy should be disclosed
in the notes to the basic financial statenents if the agency
reports any enterprise funds.

GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The State of South Carolina’s policy is to prepare the statew de
CAFR in accordance with the requirenents for the Governnent
Fi nance O ficers Associ ation’s (GFQA s) Certificate of
Achi evenent for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

The Ofice of the Conptroller General encourages preparers and
auditors to apply the appropriate Certificate of Achievenent
Program s checklist to the stand-alone financial statenments of
State of South Carolina entities that will be incorporated into
t he statew de CAFR

To access the GFOA checklists, go to http://ww. gfoa. org/forns/,
scroll down in the Ilisting, and click on the appropriate
checklist to access it.

TRANSITION TO GASB 34—PROSPECTIVE APPLICATION OF SOME
PRONOUNCEMENTS

Paragraph 146 of GASB 34 allows prospective (rather than
retroactive) application of the following pronouncenents to

governnmental activities reported in governnment-w de financial
st atenment s:

* APB 12, Omi bus Opi ni on—967.

« APB 21, Interest on Receivabl es and Payabl es.
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* GASB 23, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Refundings
of Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities, which requires
deferral and anortization of the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying anmount of old debt
i n debt-refunding transactions.

[ NOTE: Although Paragraph 146 of GASB 34 required governnenta
activities to inplenent FASB 34, Capitalization of Interest
Cost, as anended, Paragraph 6 of GASB 37 elimnated the
requi r enent to capitalize construction-period interest on
capital assets used in governnental activities.]

The State plans to apply the above pronouncenents prospectively
rather than retroactively to its governnental activities.

Agency financi al statenents to be incorporated into the
st at ewi de CAFR  shoul d apply t he above pronouncenent s
prospectively begi nni ng W th July 1, 2001 (rather t han
retroactively), to their governnmental activities reported in
government -w de financial statenents.
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SECTION 3—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

Minimum Requirements for MD&A

Paragraph 11 (including subparagraphs a through h) of GASB 34
establishes the general requirenments for NMD&A As noted in
Question 10 of the first GASB 34 Inplenentation Quide®, the
information presented should be limted to areas required in
subparagraphs a through h. Nevert hel ess, each specific
requirenent, if applicable, in paragraph 11 should be addressed
at a mninum as described in the respective subparagraphs a
t hrough h.

That 1is, agencies may provide additional details about the
required elenments in subparagraphs a through h wthin ND&A.
Information that does not relate to the required topics nay not
be included in MD&A but may be provided el sewhere, such as in
the letter of transmittal or in other fornms of supplenentary
i nformation.

MD&A is considered to be Required Supplenentary |Information
(RSI).

Charts and Graphs

Paragraph 9 of GASB 34 indicates that MD&A should discuss the
current-year results in conparison with the prior year, wth

enphasis on the current year. This fact-based anal ysis should
di scuss the positive and negative aspects of the conparison with
the prior year. The wuse of charts, graphs, and tables is

encouraged to enhance the understandability of the information.

8 @uide to Inplementation of GASB Statenment 34 on Basic Financial Statements—
and Managenent’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments,
publ i shed by the GASB i n 2000.
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The information required by paragraph 11b should be presented in
the form of condensed financial statenents. Charts and graphs
may be used to supplenent, or elaborate on, information in the
condensed financial statenents, but should not be used in place
of them

Transition to New Financial Reporting Model

Paragraph 145 of GASB does not require governnents to provide
conparative data for MD&A in the first year that GASB 34 is
adopt ed.

The State of South Carolina does not plan to provide conparative
data in its MDA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.
Accordingly, agency financial statements, |ikew se, need not
provi de conparative data in MX&A for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2002.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Requirement to Present Government-Wide Financial Statements

The State’s policy is that agencies reporting any governnental
funds nust present governnent-w de statenents within their basic

financial statenents as required by GASB 34. The purpose of
agency governnent-w de statenents is to present the agency’'s
bal ances that should be incorporated into the State’'s

government -w de statenents. Auditors nmay wish to include a note
di scl osure explaining how the reader should interpret the
agency’s governnent-w de statenents and the fact that the agency
is nmerely a part of the State, not a separate independently
oper at ed gover nnent.

St and- al one business-type activities (see definition below if
not required by GAAP to present governnent-w de financial
statenents nust conply with the policies set forth in Section 6,
FOOTNOTE DI SCLOSURES, of this manual within the sub-section on
REQUIRED | NFORVATION ON BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES FOR THE
GOVERNMENT- W DE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (on page 120).
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Governmental and Business-Type Activities Defined

Governnental activities of the State of South Carolina include

general , speci al revenue funds, capital projects funds,
permanent funds, and internal service funds.?® Busi ness-type
activities of the State include only enterprise funds. Agency

financial statenents should reflect this policy.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al'l agencies submtting financial statenments to be incorporated
into the statewi de CAFR nust prepare fund financial statenents
to conply with GAAP

Presentation of Combining Financial Statements for Non-Major Funds and Multiple Fiduciary
Funds

The State of South Carolina participates in the Certificate of
Achi evenment for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program of the
Governnmental Finance O ficers Association. To be eligible for
the Certificate of Achievenent, the State must present conbining
statenents for non-major funds and for nmultiple fiduciary funds
as supplenmentary information, even though this is not required
by GAAP. As a result, the State’s policy is to present
conbining financial statenments for its nonmajor funds and for
its fiduciary funds.

State agency financial statements incorporated in the statew de
CAFR nust present conbining statenments for all non-major funds
(including non-major blended conponent wunits) and for any
mul tiple fiduciary funds.

® Paragraph 62 of GASB 34 explains that although internal service funds are

reported as proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, the
activities accounted for in them (the financing of goods and services for
ot her funds of the government) are usually nore governnental than business-
type in nature. Therefore, internal service funds are reported as
governmental activities in the government-w de financial statenments.
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STATEMENTS OF POSITION
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets—Classified Format

The State of South Carolina's policy is to use a classified
format (rather than an order-of-liquidity format) for its
gover nment - wi de Statenent of Net Assets.'°

Agenci es should use the classified format for their governnent-
wi de Statenment of Net Assets if they are required to present
t hat statenent.

The OCG believes that the State’s financial statenent users wll
find the classified format easier to conprehend because that
format is required for certain other financial statenents. The
classified format distinguishes between current and |ong-term
assets as well as between current and long-termliabilities.

Government-wide Statement of Net Assets—Net Assets Format

Paragraph 30 of GASB 34 encourages governnments to present the
government-w de Statenent of Net Assets using a net assets
format, rather than a traditional balance sheet format. The OCG
plans to present a statew de Statenent of Net Assets using a net
assets format.

The OCG however, has concluded that the difference between the
two formats is a purely formal difference and that it can
determne the information it needs for the statewide CAFR from
agency financial statenments, regardless of which format agencies
use.

Agencies that present a governnent-w de statenent of position
may use either the net assets format or the traditional bal ance
sheet format.

10 Footnote 23 of GASB 34 and the answer to Question 81 in the first GASB 34
| mpl enentation Guide make it clear that governments nmay use a classified
format for their governnent-w de statements of net assets.
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Governmental Fund Balance Sheets—Minimum Level of Detail for Fund Balances

Par agraph 83 of GASB 34 requires that governnental funds present
a bal ance sheet. Under the bal ance sheet format, assets equa

l[iabilities plus fund bal ances.

Paragraph 84 of GASB 34 states that governnental fund bal ances

shal |l be segregated into reserved and unreserved anpunts.

(See

par agraph 118-121 of NCGA Statenent 1.) Reserved fund bal ances
of the conbi ned nonmaj or funds should be displayed in sufficient
detail on the face of the governnental funds bal ance sheet to
di scl ose the purposes of the reservations (for exanple, Reserved

for Debt Service).

In addition, unreserved fund bal ances of nonmajor funds nust be
di splayed by fund type on the face of the balance sheet for

gover nnent al funds.

Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets—Classified Format

Paragraph 97 of GASB 34 requires that assets and liabilities of
proprietary funds be presented in a classified format to

di stingui sh bet ween current and | ong-term assets

liabilities.

Paragraph 98 of GASB 34 allows the State to use either

and

a net

assets format or a balance sheet format to report the State’s
proprietary funds. The State of South Carolina will use the net
assets format (rather than the balance sheet format) for its

proprietary fund statenent of position.

The OCG however, has concluded that the difference between the

net assets format and the balance sheet format is a

purely

formal difference and that it can determne the infornmation it

needs for the statewde CAFR from agency proprietary

fund

financial statenents, regardl ess of which format agencies use.

assets fornmat or the traditional bal ance sheet fornat.

Agenci es that pr esent proprietary funds rnust pr esent a
classified statenment of position but may use either the net
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Fiduciary Funds Statement of Net Assets

Par agraph 108 of GASB 34 requires that fiduciary funds present a
Statenment of Fiduciary Net Assets using a net assets format
(i.e., assets less liabilities equal net assets).

Par agraph 110 of GASB 34 confirnms that agency fund assets equa
liabilities, and the illustration on page 235 in GASB 34 shows
doubl e underlining under the total assets and total liabilities
anounts for agency funds.

OPERATING STATEMENTS AND STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Government-wide Statement of Activities—Intergovernmental Expenses, Grants and Revenue-
Sharing

States may include an "intergovernnental" functional category on
their governnent-wi de Statenent of Activities (as shown on
page 169 of the first GASB 34 Inplenentation Guide) rather than
reporting state grants issued to local governnents and state
revenues shared with |ocal governnents in their other functional
cat egori es.

The State of South Carolina wuses the “intergovernnental”
functional category on its Statenent of Activities.

Agency financial statenments that report governnental funds nust
report any grants or State shared revenues disbursed to non-
State governnental entities separately from other “prograns” or
“functions” that they include on their Statement of Activities.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—Level of Detail

Revenues should be presented by source. Expenditures in
governnmental funds should be presented by character and function
within character. Additional detail (such as departnment, object
of expenditure) may be presented but is not required by GAAP.

The expenditure’'s character is based on the periods it is
presuned to benefit. Expenditures that benefit the present
period (current expenditures) are distinguished from those that
benefit both present and future periods (debt service




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

PCLI Cl ES—I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR ZECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
33

expenditures) and from those presuned to benefit both the
present and future fiscal periods (capital outlay expenditures).
GASB Cod. Sec. 1800. 120 states: “‘Intergovernnmental,’ a fourth
character classification, is appropriate where one governnenta
unit transfers resources to another, such as when states
transfer ‘shared revenues’ to |ocal governnents or act as an
internediary in federally financed prograns.” The State of
South Carolina uses the “intergovernnental” functional category
on its Statenent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Bal ances, Governnental Funds.

Agency financial statenments that report governnental funds nust
report grants or State shared revenues disbursed to external
parties separately from other expenditures that they include in
their fund operating statenent.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets—Proprietary Fund Revenues

Paragraph 100 of GASB 34 and footnote 41 of that paragraph
requires revenues be presented by nmjor source on the operating
statenents for proprietary funds. Par agraph 100 further
requires that the operating statement for proprietary funds
identify revenues used as security for revenue bonds.

Further, the presentation of revenues should reflect the effect
of discounts and all owances. This must be acconplished in one
of two ways. One approach is to report revenues on a net basis,
with discounts and allowances disclosed separately, either
parenthetically or in the notes to the financial statenents.
The other approach is to report gross revenues followed
i mredi ately by deductions for discounts and all owances to arrive
at net revenues.

The State’'s policy is to report revenues on a net basis with a
detailed note on receivables. Pl ease see RECElI VABLES FOOTNOTE
in Section 6 on page 97 for agency presentation requirenents.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Statements of Cash Flows—Direct Method

Par agraph 105 of GASB 34 requires presentation of a Statenent of
Cash Flows for proprietary funds based upon the provisions of
Statenent 9, as anended by GASB 34. The direct nethod of
presenting cash flows from operating activities (including a
reconciliation of operating cash flows to operating incone) is
required.

The GASB 9 Inplenentation Guide and Exercise #7 on pages 241
through 243 of the first GASB 34 Inplenentation CGuide provide
addi tional guidance relative to preparing the direct-nethod cash
fl ows statenent.

Statements of Cash Flows—Focus on Cash and Cash Equivalents

The focus of the statewi de statenents of cash flows is Cash and
Cash Equi val ents (al so see Cash Equival ents on page 84).

The focus of agency cash flows statenents to be incorporated
into the statewi de basic financial statenents nust be Cash and
Cash Equi val ent s.

Statements of Cash Flows—Appreciation/Depreciation in Investments

Par agraph 37, “Information about Noncash Investing, Capital, and
Financing Activities,” of GASB 9, Reporting Cash Flows of
Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governnental
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, requires that
your agency’s financial statements report all noncash investing,
capital, and financing activities that affect recognized assets
or liabilities (i.e., i nvesti ng, capital, and financing
activities that affect recognized assets or liabilities but do
not result in cash receipts or cash paynents in the period).
Paragraph 37 further requires that such activities be presented
in either narrative or tabular form in a separate schedule
acconpanyi ng the Statenent of Cash Fl ows.

An often-overl ooked exanple of a noncash transaction that nust
be reported in accordance wth the above guidance is the net
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appreci ation/depreciation in the value of investnents reported
at fair value but not classified as cash and cash equival ents.

Agencies nust include any net appreciation/depreciation in the
fair value of any investnments not classified as cash and cash
equivalents in a narrative or tabular schedule of noncash
activities acconpanying the Statenment of Cash Fl ows.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS TO FUND FINANACIAL
STATEMENTS

Paragraph 77 of GASB 34 requires governnents to present a
sunmmary reconciliation to t he gover nment - w de fi nanci al
statenents at the bottom of the fund financial statements or in
an acconpanyi ng schedul e. In many cases, brief explanations
presented on the face of the statements will be sufficient to
allow users to assess the relationship between the statenents.
However, if aggregated information in the summary reconciliation
obscures the nature of the individual elenents of a particular
reconciling item governnments should provide a nore detailed
explanation in the notes to financial statenents.

Cenerally, the anounts reported as net assets and changes in net
assets in the proprietary fund statements for total enterprise
funds will be the sanme as the net assets and changes in net
assets of business-type activities in the governnent-w de
Statenent of Activities. However, if there are differences (for
exanple, in connection with consolidating the activities of
internal service funds), they should be explained on the face of
the fund financial statement or in an acconpanyi ng schedul e as
di scussed in paragraph 77 of GASB 34.

CGenerally Accepted Accounting Principles do not specify the
m nimum | evel of detail required for a summary reconciliation.
The OCG has concluded that the m nimum | evel of detail should be
at | east that described in paragraph 90 of GASB 34. That is the

1 page 173, 2001 edition, Governnental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial
Reporting, published by the Governnent Finance O ficers Association.
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State’s summary reconciliation wll separately address the
fol | ow ng:
* Reporting revenues on the accrual basis.
* Reporting annual depreci ation expense i nst ead of

expenditures for capital outlays.

e Reporting long-term debt proceeds in the Statenent of Net
Assets as liabilities instead of other financing sources
al so, reporting debt principal paynments in the Statenent of
Net Assets as reductions of liabilities instead of
expendi t ur es.

* Reporting other expenses on the accrual basis.

* Adding the net revenue (expense) of internal service funds,
as di scussed in paragraph 62 of GASB 34.

Each agency presenting governnment-w de financial statenents nust
present a reconciliation neeting the specifications outlined
above. An agency also is required to present a reconciliation
meeting the above specifications if it presents only business-
type activities and the anounts reported as net assets and
changes in net assets in the proprietary fund statenents for
total enterprise assets differ in any way from the net assets
and changes in net assets of the agency’'s business-type
activities to be reported in the State's governnent-w de
Statenent of Activities.

ELIMINATIONS
Eliminations Within Government-wide Financial Statements

Paragraph 13 of GASB 34 states that the Statenent of Net Assets
and the Statenent of Activities should display information about
the reporting governnment as a whole. The statenents should
include the primary governnent and its conmponent units, except
for the fiduciary funds of the primary governnent and conponent
units that are fiduciary in nature. Those funds and conponent
units should be reported only in the statenents of fiduciary net
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assets and changes in fiduciary net assets. Par agr aphs 57
through 62 of GASB 34 specify certain elimnations and
reclassifications that are to be perforned with respect to
government -w de financial statenents.

Eliminations Within Fund Financial Statements

Al though GAAP do not require interfund elimnations (between
funds), GAAP inplicitly require intrafund elimnations (wthin
the same fund) by virtue of the fact that all GASB references to
internal activity and balances reported in the basic financial
statenents discuss only interfund activity and balances and by
virtue of its use of the word "consolidation" in a nunber of
pl aces. Another indication that the GASB intends governnments to
elimnate intrafund activity and balances is the answer to
Question 128 in the second GASB 34 | npl ementation Quide. *?

The State's policy is to elimnate revenue/ expenditure activity
and receivabl e/ payabl e bal ances that exist wholly internal to a
single reported fund (i.e., to perform intrafund elim nations),
but to record no interfund elimnations except for certain
assets held for others (certain deposits, for exanple). Agency
financial statenments nust reflect this policy.

2 Quide to Inplementation of GASB Statenent 34 and Related Pronouncenents,
publ i shed in 2001.
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SECTION 4—COMPONENT UNITS

Governnments are required to report their component wunits in
accordance with GASB 14 as anended by paragraphs 124 - 128 of
GASB 34 and the guidance outlined in GQuide to Inplenentation of
GASB Statement 14 on the Financial Reporting Entity—Questions
and Answers published by the GASB

GOVERNMENTAL AND NON-GOVERNMENTAL COMPONENT UNITS

Conmponent units rmay be governnental or non-governnent al .
Fi nancial statenent preparers should classify each conponent
unit based on the following definition that has been agreed upon
by the FASB and the GASB'®:

e Public corporations and bodies corporate and politic are
gover nient al or gani zat i ons. O her organi zations are
governnmental organizations if they have one or nore of the
characteristics |listed bel ow

» Popul ar election of officers or appointnent (or approval)
of a «controlling majority of the nenbers of the
organi zation’s governing body by officials of one or nore
state or | ocal governnents.

» The potential for unilateral dissolution by a governnent
with the net assets reverting to a governnent.

» The power to enact and enforce a tax |evy.

* Furthernore, organizations are presuned to be governnenta
if they have the ability to issue directly (rather than
through a state or nunicipal authority) debt that pays
i nt erest exenpt from federal t axati on. However,
organi zati ons possessing only that ability (to issue tax-
exenpt debt) and none  of the other gover nient al
characteristics my rebut the presunption that they are

13 pages 16-17, July 1996 issue, Journal of Accountancy.
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gover nient al i f their determnation 1is supported by

conpel ling, relevant evidence.

Conmponent units that neet the above definition of governnenta

follow GASB accounting. Wth inplenentation of GASB 34 on
July 1, 2001, it is no longer acceptable for a governnental
conponent unit to use a not-for-profit nodel. Question 140 of
the second GASB 34 |Inplenentation Guide provides guidance on
this 1issue. Non- gover nmental organi zations (ones that do not
neet the above definition of governmental) follow FASB
accounting but can qualify as conponent units of state
governnent entities.

It is the policy of the Ofice of the Conptroller General (0OCGQ
that agencies preparing financial statenents for inclusion in
the statewi de CAFR provide to the OCG the follow ng information
about conponent units that neet the GASB 14 criteria for
bl endi ng:

* The identity of each non-governnental conponent unit and
why it does not neet the above FASB/ GASB definition of a
governnmental entity; and

* An assertion that the remaining conponent units that neet
the criteria for blending are governnental. (A list that
identifies each conponent unit that neets the criteria for
bl ending as governnental or non-governnental also would
satisfy this second requirenent.)

If the State agency and/or its auditor do not wsh to include
the above data within the audited financial statenents (such as
within the notes to the financial statements or as other
suppl enentary information), the agency annually shall submt a
letter detailing this information to the OCG at the sane tinme as
it submts draft financial statenments to that office.

SEPARATE COLUMN REQUIRED FOR EACH BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT

Financial statenents to be incorporated into the statew de CAFR
nmust di splay each bl ended conponent unit in a separate columm of
either the basic financial statenents or conbining non-nmajor
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financial statenents. This requirenent applies whether the

bl ended conponent unit is governnmental or non-governnental.

Addi tional details regarding this policy are provi ded bel ow.
Governmental Blended Component Units

In accordance wth Question 181 of the first GASB 34
| mpl ement ati on Qui de, governnmental conponent units presented as
governmental or enterprise funds nust be evaluated under the
major fund criteria if they neet the GASB 14 criteria for
bl endi ng (see GASB Cod. Sec. 2600.113). That is, in the basic
financial statenments, conponent wunits that both neet the
criteria for blending and qualify as major funds nust be
presented as separate columms, while conponent units that neet
the criteria for blending but do not qualify as ngjor funds nust
be aggregated (along with any other non-major funds) into the
singl e non-maj or funds col um.

The Certificate of Achievenent for Excellence in Financial
Reporting Program of the Governnment Finance O ficers Association
al so requires that each bl ended conponent unit be presented in a

separate colum—+n the basic financial statenents if it
qualifies as a major fund and otherwise in conbining financia
statenents for non-major funds. (The Certificate Program

requires conbining statenments for non-major funds even though
this is not a requirenent of GAAP.) Gover nmental Accounti ng,
Auditing, and Financial Reporting, published by the Governnent
Finance O ficers Association in 2001 (pages 259-260), expresses
this as foll ows:

 Normally, a governnment has considerable flexibility in
determ ning what constitutes a “fund” for ext er nal
financial reporting purposes. Such is not the case,
however, for funds that represent blended conponent units.
In such cases, the activity's status as a separate fund for
ext er nal fi nanci al reporting purposes is established
automatically by virtue of its status as a legally separate
entity.
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By definition, information on each individual fund and

conponent unit mnust be provided in either the basic
financial statenments or the conbining financial statenents.

Non-Governmental Blended Component Units

Question 131 in the second GASB 34 | nplenentation CGuide provides
gui dance regarding the nechanics of incorporating a non-
governnmental conponent unit that uses a GAAP financial reporting
nodel that 1is inconsistent wth or inconpatible wth the

governmental nodel . An exanple would be a non-governnental
bl ended conponent wunit that reports using the FASB' s not-for-
profit financial reporting nodel (FASB Statenment 117). In

accordance with the GASB's answer to Question 131, the State’'s
policy is as follows:

Wien it is possible to do so, the financial statements for non-
government al bl ended conponent units should be presented within

the governnental, ©proprietary, or fiduciary fund financial
statenents in t he basi c fi nanci al stat enents. Any
“nonconpati ble” or additional statenents required by the
conponent unit’s reporting nodel, however, should not be

conbined with either governnental or proprietary funds or
conponent units but instead should be presented as separate
financial statenments within the basic financial statenents.

“The Number of Funds Principle” and the Notion of “Functional Basis Combining”

As stated above, blended conponent wunits generally nust be
presented in separate colums in financial statenments. However

GAAP's  “nunber of funds principle” reads as follows: “The
general rule is to establish the mninmm nunber of separate
f unds consi st ent W th | egal speci fications, oper at i onal

requi renents, and the principles of fund classification

Using too many funds causes inflexibility and undue conplexity
and is best avoided in the interest of efficient and

econoni cal financial admnistration.”! The Governnent Finance

4 GASB Cod. Sec. 1300. 118.
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O ficers Association advises governnents to “carefully consider
the proper application of the nunber of funds principle to its
particular situation before proceeding to present a |arge numnber
of individual funds in its CAFR " The GFOA states: “The notion
of functional basis conbining may be useful for this purpose.
Using this notion, nunmerous individual funds that serve an
identical purpose nmay be conbined, for financial reporting
purposes, into a single fund.”?

The State’s CAFR currently presents a noderately |arge nunber of
i ndi vi dual funds. Accordingly, the Ofice of the Conptroller
CGeneral is beginning to consider whether any of the State's
bl ended conponent units mght “serve an identical purpose.” If
so, they my be conbined for statewde financial reporting
pur poses into a single fund.

The O fice of the Conptroller GCeneral encourages agencies to
consider whether any of their blended conponent wunits m ght
serve an identical purpose and, therefore, in accordance wth

the notion of “functional basis conbining,” be conbined, for
agency financi al reporting purposes and/or for statew de
financial reporting purposes, into a single fund. | f an agency

believes that two or nore of its blended component units serve
an essentially identical purpose, it is asked to disclose this
fact in the notes to the financial statenents or as suppl enental
i nformation.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED FOR EACH DISCRETELY
PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Conmponent units that do not neet the GASB 14 criteria for
blending are called discretely presented conponent units. The
GAAP rules for reporting discretely presented conponent units
are extensive, and they can be conpli cated.

15 page 259, Governnental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting,
published in 2001 by the Governnent Finance O ficers Association.
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require with respect

To ensure that the Ofice of the Conptroller General has the
data it needs to properly report these conponent units and to
supply the statewide auditors with all the information they

are incorporated into the statewide financial statenments from
separately issued audited financial statenents.

to these entities, these conponent units

conponent unit is
financi al statenents.

If a discretely presented conponent wunit has been presented
wi thin your agency’s financial statements in the past, please be
assured that the Ofice of the Conptroller CGeneral has arranged
to receive the conponent wunit’s financial statenents for its
nost recently ended fiscal year directly from the conponent unit
itself no later than Cctober 15. Agencies nust, however, notify
the OCG as soon as they learn that a new discretely presented

to be presented wthin their agency’s

Di scretely presented

the State primary

units to supply to it

st and- al one fi nanci al

required, to adopt the same accounting policies that apply to

differences in policies, the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral
depends on the nmanagenent of discretely presented conponent

the statewide CAFR but not supplied in the conponent wunit’s

conponent units are encouraged, but not

gover nnment . Regardl ess  of possi bl e

suppl enmentary data needed for inclusion in

statenents.
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SECTION 5—FINANCIAL STATEMENT COMPONENTS

RESTRICTED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles require that externally
restricted assets and liabilities be reported separately from
other assets and liabilities.® For exanple, assets being used
to repay maturing debt may need to be reported as restricted
assets because of the existence of certain bond covenants.

The GFOA's Certificate of Achievenent for Excellence in
Fi nanci al Reporting Program’ requires that governmental entities
using a classified format report their Restricted Assets and
their Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets in the sane
classified category (i.e., current or non-current).

Agency financial statenments nust separately report, by specific
asset category (e.g., cash, investnents, etc.), any of the
follow ng that are applicable:

e Current restricted assets.

* Liabilities payable fromcurrent restricted assets.

e« Non-current restricted assets.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles require that the

State's balance sheet include all cash and investnents under
State control at mdnight, June 30. This includes all:

e Cash and investnents that the State or its agencies own.

18 Footnote 23 and paragraph 99 of GASB 34 (GASB Cod. Sec. 2200.165).

17 See the GFOA Certificate of Achievenment Program Checklist, Question 9.9a.
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e Cash and investnents that the State or its agencies hold as

trustee or agent for others.

Agencies wll provide data regarding cash and investnents not
under direct State Treasurer's Ofice control. This includes:

e Petty cash accounts.

» Conposite reservoir bank accounts.

Al other cash and investnment accounts that agencies

control .

Agencies will report cash and investnents on June 30 that are:

e On hand.

* On deposit in financial institutions.

* Held by a financial institution or other party for the

agency or State.

Cash Equivalents in the Footnote D sclosure section.

In accordance with GASB 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Certain Investnents and for External I|nvestnent Pools, the
State values its securities and other instrunments held for
i nvest ment purposes at fair val ue. Al so see the subsection on

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BOND RECEIVABLES/REVENUE

down proceeds on or before the bal ance sheet date,
not yet received the related cash by that date.

Agenci es and hi gher education institutions should report Capital
| mprovenent Bonds receivable from the State’'s capital projects
fund (and a corresponding revenue) only if they are entitled to
submt a valid request to the State Treasurer’s Ofice to draw

but they have

In the past, sone agencies/institutions have reported revenue
and receivable as soon as a Capital Inprovenent Bond Bill
mentioning a planned project for that agency/institution was
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si gned. When the agency/institution is incorporated into the

statew de CAFR, however, such a receivable nust be converted to
an Interfund Receivable (From Capital Projects Fund) and a
corresponding Interfund Payable balance in the State' s capital
projects fund. If the related bonds have not yet been issued,
this process would create an artificial deficit in the State
capital projects fund. (Exi sting technical guidance!® prevents
the State’s capital projects fund from recordi ng revenue rel ated
to a bond issue until the bond sale closing date—+.e., on or
after the sale date for the bonds.)

The Ofice of the Conmptroller General (OCG takes the position
that the “capital budget” included within a Capital |nprovenent
Bond Bill does not represent a legal liability of the State’s
capital projects fund to the accounts of the particular State
agencies nentioned in such Bond Bill and, therefore, also does
not represent a receivable of the particular State agency
mentioned in such Bond Bill. The primary reasons for this
position are as follows:

« The total amount of bonds “authorized” in bond bills for

the State often would cause the Constitutional |imt on
debt service to be exceeded if all such “authorized” bonds
were actually issued when authorized. It is the Budget and

Control Board’'s responsibility to control actual bond
i ssuances in such a manner as to ensure conpliance with the
Constitutional Ilimtation. The Constitutional limtation
t akes precedence over the authorizing statutory bond bills.

A bond bill nerely authorizes the eventual issuance of
bonds, possibly several years in the future. Qper ati ng
agencies |ack substantial control over when bond proceeds
will becone avai |l abl e to t hem Code of Laws
Section 11-1-100 specifically directs the Budget and
Control Board and the Joint Bond Review Conmittee to
“regulate the starting date of the various projects

18 Decenmber 1990 issue of GAAFR Review, GFQOA Technical Inquiry, “Recognition
of Bond Proceeds: Timing |Issues.”
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approved for funding through the issuance of Capital
| mprovenent Bonds” so as to ensure that the appropriations

for debt service on these bonds are suffici

ent.

* In effect, federal arbitrage regulations prevent the State

from issuing bonds as soon as they ar
preventing the State from investing bond

e authorized by
proceeds for any

substantial amount of tinme until needed to pay for
construction projects. In practice, the existence of these

federal regulations neans that the State i
to neet its i medi ate cash fl ow needs.

* Projects and amunts to be funded are s

ssues bonds only

ubject to change

after a bond bill is signed. As an exanple, Code of Laws
Section 11-9-140 provides for the transfer of certain

proj ect bal ances determ ned “not to be usab

|l e or needed.”

* In practice, agencies/institutions are entitled to seek
rei nmbursenent for costs, including construction costs, only

when they have bills that are “owing a

nd due.” (This

principle is set forth in each year’s Annual Appropriation

Act; see, for exanple, Section 72.9 of the

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

2001- 2002 Act.)

Paragraph 112a of GASB 34 describes reciprocal i nterfund

activity Wi t hin and anong t he t hree

fund categories

(governnental, proprietary, and fiduciary) as the internal

counterpart to exchange and exchange-like tr

ansactions which

include interfund receivables in Ilender funds and interfund
payabl es in borrower funds. See also Questions 196 and 227 of

the first GASB 34 |Inplenentation GCuide. Thi s
not be reported as other financing sources or

activity should
uses in the fund

financial statenents. | f repaynent is not expected within a
reasonable tinme, the interfund bal ances should be reduced and
the amount that is not expected to be repaid should be reported

as a transfer from the fund that made the | oan
recei ved the | oan.

State budgetary accounting practices require
record revenues, expenditures, and interfund

to the fund that

that the State
recei vabl es or
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payables in the fiscal year in which your agency received goods
or services from owes a refund of revenue to, or owes grant
funds to, another State agency or another GAAP fund w thin your
agency.

The State will record Interfund Payables (Interfund Receivabl es)
as current liabilities (current assets) in the appropriate
i ndi vi dual GAAP f unds.

INVENTORY REPORTING METHOD

Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles specifically provide
for the use of the purchase nmethod to account for inventories in
governnmental funds. Since inventories are comonly consuned
during a relatively short period after purchase, GAAP also
permts inventories in governmental funds to be reported using
the consunption approach characteristic of accrual accounting.
That is, governnments may initially report the inventories they
purchase as an asset and defer the recognition of an expenditure
until the period in which the inventories actually are consuned.

GAAP specifically allow governnents to account for the
inventories and prepaid itens in governnental funds using either
t he purchase nethod or the consunption nethod. Consi stent with
requi renents of APB Opinion No. 22, the option selected nust be
disclosed in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
Al so disclosed should be the basis used to value inventories as
wel |l as the method used to apply that basis.

It is the State’'s policy to report inventories wusing the
consunption nethod in all funds. Fi nanci al statenents
incorporated into the statewi de CAFR should be prepared using
t he sane policy.

PREPAID EXPENSES

Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles allow governnenta
funds in the fund financial statenments (a) to apply the
consunption approach to reporting prepaid expenses or (b) to
apply the purchase nmethod to prepaid expenses and not report
bal ances of prepaid itens in the governnental fund financial
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statenents at all. However, governnmental activities nust report

prepaid itens using the consunption approach in the governnent-
wi de financial statenents.

It is the State’s policy to report prepaid expenses using the
consunption nethod in all f unds. Fi nanci al statenents
incorporated into the statewide CAFR should be prepared using
t he sane policy.

CAPITAL ASSETS DEFINED

Capital assets are defined as land, inprovenents to |and,
easenent s, bui | di ngs, bui | di ng I mprovenents, vehi cl es,
machi nery, equi pnent, works of art and historical treasures,
infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that
are used in operations and that have initial wuseful Iives
extending beyond a single reporting period (GASB Cod.
Sec. 1400.103). Capital assets also include assets purchased
with federal funds in which the federal governnment retains a
reversionary interest. In order to be considered capital
assets, however, the assets nust neet the State’s established
capitalization policies (see the CAPI TALI ZATI ON CRI TERI A section
bel ow. )

CAPITAL ASSETS—CATEGORIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The State will report the following categories of capital assets
in its Conprehensive Annual Financial Report: Land and Non-
Depreci able Land |nprovenents, Depreciable Land |nprovenents,
Infrastructure, Buildings and |Inprovenents, Construction in
Progress, Vehicles, Machinery and Equipnment, Non-Depreciable
Wrks of Art and Historical Treasures, Depreciable Wrks of Art
and Historical Treasures, Non-Depreciable Intangible Assets, and
Depreci abl e Intangi ble Assets. Agency financial statenents also
shoul d separately report the above categories of capital assets.

Land and Non-Depreciable Land Improvements

Agenci es should report parcels of real estate that they own as
Land. They should also report easenents and rights-of-way as
Land.
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An easenent gives one party (party A the right to go onto,

and/or to wuse, another party's (party B's) property for

speci fied purposes w thout disturbing party B s ownership

of, or

ability to use, the property for other purposes. For exanple, a

conservation easenent is a |legal agreenent a property

owner

makes to restrict the type and amount of devel opnent that may

take place on his or her property. The easenent spells o

ut the

rights the |andowner retains and the restrictions on use of the
property. Each of these rights and restrictions is negotiated
between the I|andowner and the State agency that holds the

easenent.

A right-of-way is |land, property, or interest therein, often in

a strip, acquired for infrastructure such as a highway,

rail

bed, pipeline, electric power lines, or tel ephone facilities.

Non- depreci able |l and inprovenents are inprovenents that produce
per manent benefits, primarily related to preparing land for its

i ntended use. Exanples include filling and gradi ng costs.
Depreciable Land Improvements

Depreciable Iand i nprovenents are those that are considere

d part

of a structure or that deteriorate with use or with the passage

of time. Exanpl es include fencing, |andscaping, parking
pavenents, and signs.

Infrastructure

| ot s,

GASB Cod. Sec. 1400.103 defines infrastructure as long-Ilived

capital assets that normally are stationary in natur

e and

normal Iy can be preserved for a significantly greater nunber of

years than nost capital assets. Exanpl es incl ude

r oads,

bri dges, tunnels, drainage systens, water and sewer systens,

dans, and lighting systens.

The State of South Carolina s primary governnment wll

Infrastructure in the State’'s basic financial statenents

only the Departnent of Transportation’s roads and bridges as

other State agencies that have assets that appear to neet the
definition of infrastructure should report those assets as

report

Al
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Depreci able Land Inprovenents or Buildings and |nprovenents if
their cost exceeds the applicable capitalization limt.

The followng list is not all-inclusive but provides exanples of
assets that State agencies should report in the Depreciable Land
| nprovenents or the Buildings and Inprovenents categories of
capital assets:

Access roads Power |ines/electrical systens
Dr ai nage systens Fi ber optic cabl e networks
Wat er and sewer systenms  Fencing

Li ghting systens Parking |l ots

Agenci es should choose the Buildings and |nprovenents category
if the asset is associated with a particular building or group
of bui | di ngs. In contrast, agencies should use the Depreciable
Land | nprovenents category if the asset would continue to retain
its useful ness without the presence of any existing building.

Buildings and Improvements

Bui | dings are permanent structures housing persons or persona
property.

Bui | di ng I nprovenent s are subsequent addi tions to, or
renovations to, existing buildings that neet any one of the
followng three criteria:

e The inprovenent adds square footage to the existing
bui | di ng.

 The inprovenent is a major renovation that prepares an
exi sting building for a new use.

* The inprovenent extends the wuseful life of the existing
bui | di ng. (For an inprovenent costing nore than
$10 million, the Ofice of the Conptroller Cener al
recommends that your agency obtain a formal engineering
assessnment as to whether the building’s useful |ife has
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been extended, even if you believe that other available

assessnments are recomrended, if practicable, in

docunentation clearly shows whether the inprovenent extends
the useful life of the existing building. Engi neeri ng

where ot her docunentation does not clearly show whether the
i mprovenent extends the useful life of the building.)

any case

Ordinary repairs and maintenance, such as a roof replacenent,
are not building inprovenents, even though they could cost a

significant anmount.

not be the same as the original building s useful life.

Wen a building is inproved, the inprovenent should be
capitalized as a separate asset from the original building and
assigned its own useful life for depreciation, which may or may

Leasehol d inprovenents include capitalizable inprovenents to a
| eased building rather than to an owned building. Agencies nust
report | easehold inprovenents in the Buildings and I|nprovenents

cat egory. The depreciation period for |easehold inprovenents
may be limted by the |ease term If renewal of the lease is
likely, and the useful life of the |easehold inprovenent extends
beyond the lease term the depreciation period should include
all or part of the renewal period. If renewal of the lease is
uncertain, the depreciation period is limted to the remaining
| ease term and the salvage value is the amount, if any, that

the lessor will pay to the |l essee at the end of the | ease term

Equi prrent that becones a permanent fixture of a building and is
not easily separable from the building should be recorded in
Bui | dings and I nprovenents; otherwise, it should be recorded in

Machi nery and Equi prent .

Construction in Progress

The bal ance reported in Construction in Progress represents the

costs incurred through June 30 for construction of capital
assets that are not yet substantially conplete as of June 30.
Do not depreciate Construction in Progress. When construction

is substantially conplete and the asset(s) is/are placed into
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service, you nust reclassify Construction in Progress to the
appropriate capital asset categories.

The Construction in Progress balance your agency reports nust
include contract retentions, if any. On sone construction
project contracts (or other long-term project contracts, such as
systens projects), your agency nmay w thhold part of each paynent
from the contractor until the project is conplete. The anounts
you withhold are contract retentions.

Vehicles

The Vehicles category includes all cars, trucks, vans, buses,
aircraft, boat s, trailers, and other vehicles used for
oper at i ons.

Machinery and Equipment

Machi nery and Equi prment consists of all novable tangi ble assets
used for operations. Exanpl es include furniture and fixtures,
of fice equipnment, and other mscellaneous novable equipnent.
Equi prrent that becones a permanent fixture of a building and is
not easily separable from the building should be recorded in
Bui | dings and I nprovenents; otherwise, it should be recorded in
Machi nery and Equi pnent .

Report breeding Ilivestock in Mchinery and Equipnent. The
State’s policy is to report its Vehicles separately from other
types of Machinery and Equi prent. Agency financial statenents
i kewi se should reflect these policies.

Works of Art and Historical Treasures

The requi renents of GAAP  regarding capitalization and
depreciation of individual works of art and historical treasures
differ fromthe requirenments for collections of such itens (GASB
Cod. Sec. 1400.109 and 1400.111.)

Agencies nust capitalize individual works of art or historical
treasures that exceed $5,000. Agencies mnmust record depreciation
on exhaustible individual works or treasures. A work or
treasure is considered exhaustible if its wuseful life 1is




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

PCLI Cl ES—I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR ;ECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
FI NANCI AL STATEMENT COVPONENTS 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
54

expected to be dimnished by its display or by its educational
or research uses.

Agenci es nmust continue to capitalize collections of works of art
or historical treasures that exceed $5,000 if those collections
were capitalized as of June 30, 1999.

Agenci es should apply the $5,000 capitalization threshold to a
collection as a whole only if the individual cost of collection
itens cannot be easily determ ned. When adding an asset to a
capitalized collection, agencies should apply the $5,000
threshold to the individual collection item

A collection not capitalized as of June 30, 1999, is not
required to be capitalized if it neets all three of the
foll ow ng conditions:

e The collection is held for public exhibition, education, or
research in furtherance of public service, rather than for
financi al gain.

e The collection is protected, kept unencunbered, cared for,
and preserved.

e The collection is subject to an organi zational policy that
requires the proceeds from sales of collection itens to be
used to acquire other itens for collections.

Agenci es nmust record depreciation on exhaustible collections.

GASB Cod. Sec. 1400.110 requires agencies to recognize as
revenues donations of works of art and historical treasures, in
accordance with Section N50, “Non-exchange Transactions.” \Wen
donat ed col l ection itens are added to noncapitalized
col | ections, agencies should recognize program expense equal to
t he anbunt of revenues recogni zed.

Intangible Assets

I ntangi bl e assets generally lack a physical existence. Thi s
category includes such itens as conputer software, trademarks,
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and patents. (Note that although conputer software exists as a
sequence of electrical/magnetic signals stored on a physica

medi um such as a CD-ROM or diskette, the software itse
set of instructions to be run on a conputer—tacks
exi stence.)

f—+.e., a
physi cal

are required to capitalize purchased software only-not
devel oped solely with internal resources.

| f your agency is not a college or university and is

you should capitalize only +the external direct

installing, and testing code. Agencies other than co

data processing enployees, (3) training costs, and
conversi on costs.

licensed seats the agency purchases. (The Conptroller
Ofice views the seats as conponents of the cost of

shoul d be capitalized.

State agencies, with the exception of colleges and universities,

consultant to develop software for your agency’s internal use

materials acquired and services received in developing the
software, such as fees paid to the consultants for devel oping,

universities should not capitalize the following costs:
(1) prelimnary costs such as evaluating alternatives and
determ ning technol ogy needs, (2) costs associated with internal
resources such as payroll costs or travel costs for the agency’s

Agenci es should view the purchase of a single software program
as the purchase of a single intangible asset subject to the
$100, 000 capitalization threshold, regardless of the nunber of

piece of intellectual property rather than view ng each seat as
a separate capital asset.) [If your agency purchases additiona
seats after initial capitalization, you should not capitalize
the cost of the additional seats unless their cost
$100,000 in total. (The Conptroller General’s Ofice would
consi der seat costs totaling nore than $100,000 as representing
a substantial addition to the initial software purchase that

State agencies sonetines purchase software nodules that are
attached to a base software program owned by their own agency or
anot her State agency. Because the base software can operate

wi thout the nodul e, and because the nodule increases the

sof t war e

paying a

costs of

| eges and

(4) data

Ceneral ' s
a single

exceeds
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capabilities of the base software, the nodule should be

t he $100, 000 capitalization threshold.

$100,000 only if the upgrades increase the
functionality.

accounted for as an asset separate from the base software.
Agenci es should capitalize a software nodule if its cost exceeds

Agencies should <capitalize software upgrades that exceed

software’s

Agreenents to use software that expire each year and are renewed

on a year-to-year basis are not capitalizable.

Most intangi ble assets are depreciable, but an intangi ble asset
may be non-depreciable if it is considered to have an infinite

useful life.

CAPITAL ASSETS—CAPITALIZATION CRITERIA

Short-lived assets and those costing snall anmounts are not
capi tal asset s. "Capitalization criteria" are policies
regarding the mninmm useful life and mninmum dollar value of

capital assets.

capitalize assets that neet both the mninmum dollar
m ni mum useful life requirenents described bel ow

The State’s capitalization policy requires agencies to

val ue and
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ASSET CATEGORY | TEMS TO CAPI TALI ZE
Land Al l, regardl ess of cost
Non- Depr eci abl e Land Al'l, regardl ess of cost
| nprovenent s
Depr eci abl e Land Any costing nore than $100, 000
| nprovenent s
I nfrastructure (DOI Roads Any costing nore than $500, 000
and Bridges Only)
Bui | di ngs and Bui | di ng Any costing nore than $100, 000
| nprovenent s
Vehi cl es Any costing nore than $5, 000
Machi nery and Equi prent Any costing nore than $5, 000
Breedi ng Livestock Any costing nore than $5,000
Wr ks of Art and Any costing nore than $5,000
Hi storical Treasures*
| nt angi bl e Assets Any costing nore than $100, 000
* GAAP requirenents regarding capitalization and depreciation of individual works of
art and historical treasures differ from the requirenments for collections of such
itens. See the definition of Wrks of Art and Hi storical Treasures above for

expl anation of requirenents.

Do not capitalize any assets with a cost below the thresholds

descri bed above.

The State’'s policy is to apply the above capitalization

thresholds to individual itenms rather than to groups.
means that if you purchase several itens of the sanme type

Thi s
at one

time (for exanple, 5 conputer workstations, 25 |library books, or

15 pieces of nodular furniture (cubicles)), you nust exam

ne the
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cost of each individual item to determne if it should be
capitali zed.
USEFUL LI FE STATE PQOLI CY
If less than 1 year Do not capitalize
If 1 year or greater but Capitalize only if your agency’s
| ess than 2 years policy requires capitalization
|f 2 years or greater Capitalization is required

Assets on the books at July 1, 2001, that do not neet the
capitalization criteria described above nust be renoved fromthe
books. See below for nore information on inplenmentation of a
change in capitalization criteria.

Implementation of a Change in Capitalization Threshold or Minimum Useful Life

Upon inplenentation of a change in capitalization criteria, you
must renove all existing assets that do not cost in excess of
the new capitalization thresholds or have a mninum useful life
that nmeets the new requirenents from your agency’'s books.
Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles (Footnote 3, GASB Cod

Sec. 1600; page 241, CGovernnental Accounting, Auditing, and
Fi nanci al Reporting published in 2001 by the Governnent Finance
O ficers Association) require that this change in policy be

reported retroactively as a change in principle (i.e., as
adjustnents to the beginning balances of capital assets). | f
your agency has depreciated an asset that is being renoved from
t he capi tal assets | edger, t he associ at ed accumnul at ed

depreci ation al so nust be renoved.

Internal Control

As has always been the <case, agency directors wll be
responsi bl e for maintaining appropriate controls over all agency
assets, including itenms costing less than the capitalization
t hreshol d. In addition to tagging reported novable capital

assets, agencies wll be required to tag all novable assets




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

POLI Cl ES—FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR e
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
FI NANCI AL STATEMENT COVPONENTS 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
59
between $1,000 and $5,000, and nmmintain a listing of these
asset s. The listing nust include information such as tag
nunber, description, location, and cost and nust be nade
avai l abl e upon request. Computer software costing between
$1, 000 and $100,000 that is purchased after June 30, 2001, also
should be included on this control Ilisting; tags should be
applied to software only if practicable. No depreciation should
be recorded on these assets. This listing is for control
pur poses only.

CAPITAL ASSETS—BOOK VALUE

Book value is the dollar anmount of a capital asset that appears
on the agency's (and the State's) financial statements and
| edgers. A capital asset’s book val ue depends on how t he agency
acquired the asset.

Book Value of Purchased or Constructed Capital Assets

Capital assets that are purchased or constructed nmust be

recorded at historical cost. H storical cost equals the
original cost of the asset, including all charges necessary to
place the asset into service. For exanple, taxes, freight

charges, site preparation costs, and professional fees are
included in the historical cost of a capital asset (GASB Cod.

Sec. 1400. 102). If actual cost records are not avail able,
agencies should estimate the cost as of the date acquired. | f
the agency estimates the cost, it should fully document its

estinate and the estinmation nethods it used.
Book Value of Donated Capital Assets

In the case of a capital asset given to a State agency by a non-
State party, the asset should be recorded at its fair market
value on the date of donation (GASB Cod. Sec. 1400.102). Fair
mar ket value is the price at which an asset would change hands
if both buyer and seller are willing parties and have know edge
of all related facts.

Record depreciation for a depreciable donated asset using its
estimated remai ning useful life at the date of donation.




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

PCLI Cl ES—I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR ;ECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
FI NANCI AL STATEMENT COVPONENTS 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
60

Book Value of Capital Assets Acquired by Forfeiture or Condemnation

The book value at acquisition of an asset acquired by forfeiture
or condemation is the | esser of:

e The asset's fair market val ue.

e The anobunt the fornmer owner owes plus anmounts the State
pays to obtain the forfeiture and put the asset into use.

Record depreciation for a depreciable asset acquired by
forfeiture or condemation using its estimated remaining useful
life at the date of forfeiture or condemati on

Book Value of Capital Assets Received Through Intra-State Transfers

An agency nmy receive capital assets through an intra-State
transfer from another agency wthin State governnent. The
recei ving agency should record the capital asset and accunul ated
depreciation at the sanme amount the transferring agency or fund
renoves fromits books.

As explained in the “Depreciation Requirenents” section, the
State’s general policy is to record a full year of depreciation
in the first year a capital asset is in service and to record no
depreciation in the final year of the asset’s useful life. To
be consistent with this depreciation policy as it relates to
intra-State transfers, agencies should record no depreciation on
a capital asset during the year that it is transferred out to
anot her agency. You should record depreciation during the
current year for capital assets that were transferred in from
anot her agency during the current year. (An exception to this
policy may occur if your agency calculates depreciation
nont hly.)

The nost inportant part of accounting for transfers between
agencies is making sure the dollar amounts for book value and
accunul ated depreciation being added to the receiving agency are
the sane dollar anmounts being renoved from the transferring
agency. Communi cation between agencies is extrenely inportant
when accounting for intra-State transfers.
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Question 101 of the second GASB 34 | nplenentati on Gui de provides

gui dance regarding the recording of transfers of capit
bet ween and anong a governnent’s various funds. That

al assets
gui dance

specifically requires that the State report a transfer of
capital assets froma governnental fund to an enterprise fund as
an inflow of resources in the “capital contributions” section of

the enterprise fund’ s financial statenments and as a tr
and out in the governnent-w de Statenent of Activities.

Book Value of Capital Assets Acquired Through Trade-in

The book val ue of an asset acquired through trade-in is:
» The invoice or contract price of the new asset.

e Less the trade-in value of the old asset.

e Plus the net book value of the old asset.

ansfer in

Record depreciation for a depreciable asset acquired through

trade-in using its estimted remaining useful life at
acqui r ed.

Book Value of Capital Assets Acquired Through Capital Lease

Assets acquired by capital |eases are capital asset
State, even if the State does not legally own them
| ease transfers substantially all the benefits and

the date

s of the
A capital
ri sks of

asset ownership to the State. A lease may be a capital |ease

i f:

e« The State will own the asset at the end of the | ease term

e The lease allows the State to purchase the asset at quite a

bit less than fair market val ue.

e The lease termis alnost as long as the estimated useful

life of the | eased asset.

* The cost to lease the asset is alnobst as great as the cost

to buy it on the installnment plan.
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For
of

nore specific guidance
| eases,

The book value of a capital
t he | ower of:

asset acquired by a

« The fair nmarket value of the | eased asset.

regardi ng the proper
pl ease consult FASB 13 (as updated and interpreted).

classification

capital lease is

e The present value of the mninum| ease paynents.

Depreci ati on of
four
is capital. | f
because of the first or
shoul d be depreciated over
| ease was determned to be a capita
or fourth criteria listed above, the asset
over the | ease term

capital |eased assets depends

second criteria listed
the asset’'s wuseful

CAPITAL ASSETS—DEPRECIATION REQUIREMENTS

Cenerally Accept ed Account i ng Principl es

criteria |listed above was used to determ ne that
the | ease was deternmined to be a capital

| ease because of
shoul d be depreciated

on which of
t he

t he
| ease
| ease
t he asset

If the
the third

above,
life.

now require

depreciation of assets previously recorded in the Ceneral

Assets Account G oup. This new requirenent to r
depreciation includes both current year
cal cul ation of accumul ated depreciation as of July 1,
if the assets had al ways been subject to depreciation.)

Excel Depreciation Workbook

depreciation and
2001 (as

Fi xed
ecord
t he

The O fice of
wor kbook t hat

the Conptroller General has prepared an
can be used to maintain a capital assets lis
calculate depreciation expense, and rmaintain
depreci ati on bal ances. Al'l agencies, including those
currently maintain highly automated fixed assets systens,
strongly encouraged to review the design of
nodel as a step toward understanding system requirenents.
wor kbook IS avai | abl e on t he | nt er net
http://ww. cg. state. sc. us/ gasb34/ CapAsset s.

Excel
ting,

accunul at ed

t hat
are

t he spreadsheet

The
at
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Calculation of Depreciation Using the Straight-Line Method
The State will record depreciation for its depreciable capital

assets using the straight-line nethod over the asset’s useful
life.

Wen using the straight-line nmethod, we recommend that you
record a full vyear of depreciation in the year the asset is

placed in service; therefore, no depreciation will be recorded
in the last year of the asset’s useful life. If an asset is
retired before it is fully depreciated, no depreciation should
be taken in the year of disposition. Agencies must use

straight-line depreciation, but nmay apply a convention other
than the full-year convention previously described or choose a
useful |ife based on nonths rather than whole years if it has a
valid reason to do so and the policies are applied consistently.
Sal vage value should not be considered in the calculation of
depreciation unless it is substantial.

Selection of Useful Life for Depreciation Purposes

The useful life you choose should fall within the range provided
in the schedule below for the particular type of asset and
shoul d be expressed in a whole nunber of years. |f you disagree
with the range of useful lives for a particular type of asset as
listed on the useful |ives schedule, please contact the Ofice

of the Conptroller General so that we nmy agree on an
appropriate useful life.

| f your agency owns a type of asset not |isted on the useful
lives schedule, please select a useful life that falls within
the range provided for the broad category of capital assets
under which the asset in question wll be reported. For

exanple, if the type of asset in question belongs in Machinery
and Equi pnent but is not |listed on the schedule, choose a useful
life that falls within the range of 2 to 25 years (i.e., the
range fromthe shortest to the |ongest useful life allowable for
Machi nery and Equi pnent). Please restrict the use of this
procedure, however, to situations where the type of asset is not
listed on the useful Iives schedule. Al so, when using this
procedure, you should prepare and naintain docunentation of the
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reasoni ng for your specific useful life decision (for exanple, a
statenent that, in your agency' s experience, the type of asset

docunent ati on you nmay have to support this statenent.)

Use the following schedule to determ ne the useful
which to depreciate a capital asset:

in question generally lasts for X years as well as any other

life over
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Depr eci abl e Land | nprovenents:

Fenci ng
Landscapi ng
Li ghting
Par ki ng Lots

Pavi ng (Access Roadways and Wal ks)

Si gns

Ports Authority Wando River
Channel Dredgi ng Project

O her Land | nprovenments (drai nage systens,
wat er and sewer systens, power

| nfrastructure:
DOT" s Bri dges
DOr’ s Roads

Bui | di ngs and | nprovenents:
Hospital s

Mai nt enance Facilities/ Garages/
Machi ne Shops

Mlitary Facilities (Arnories)
O fice Buildings

Prison Facilities

Recr eati onal Buil di ngs

Resi denti al Buil di ngs

School s and Libraries

St orage Facilities/Warehouses:
Wboden Sheds/ Metal Buil di ngs
Concr et e/ Masonry Bui | di ngs

O her Bui |l di ngs

Hydroel ectric Wility Plants

O her UWility Plants

Bui | di ng | nprovenents
Vehi cl es:

Ai rpl anes and Hel i copters

Aut onobi | es

10- 20 years
5-15 years
15- 20 years
15- 20 years
10- 15 years
10- 15 years

50 years

etc.) 3-60 years

50 years
75 years

Det erm ne individually

20-40 years

Det erm ne individually
40- 50 years

Det erm ne individually

Det erm ne individually
20- 30 years

Det erm ne individually

10- 20 years
20-40 years

5-50 years
55 years
22- 37 years

Det erm ne individually

15- 20 years
3-6 years
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Li ght General Purpose Trucks and Vans 4-8 years
Heavy General Purpose Trucks and Vans 6- 15 years
Tractors 4-10 years
Trailers 6- 10 years
Boat s 5-10 years
Machi nery and Equi pnent :
Conput er Equi prent ( Har dwar e) 3-7 years
O fice Equi pnent (Copiers, Fax Machi nes,
Paper Shredders, Filing Systems, etc.) 3-10 years
Ofice Furniture (Desks, Chairs, Bookcases,
Cabi nets, Credenzas, Tables, etc.) 10- 20 years
O her Furni shings and Equi prent 2-25 years

Hospi tal Equi prent

Br eedi ng Livestock

Assets for the Storage of Petrol eum Products

Assets Used in the Manufacture of Fabricated

Met al Products

Assets Used in the Manufacture or Repair of

Furniture

Assets Used in Printing Activities

Nur seri es, Greenhouses, and Rel ated Equi pnent

Wrks of Art and Hi storical Treasures:

Patriots Point Naval Museum Exhi bits
Al Qher Itemns

| nt angi bl e Assets:
External Iy Acquired Conputer Software

Internal ly Generated Conputer Software
(Col I eges/ Uni versities Only)

O her Intangible Assets

Det erm ne individually
Det erm ne individually
10- 20 years

5-15 years

5-15 years
5-15 years
10- 15 years

10- 25 years

Det erm ne individually

3 years

Det erm ne individually

Det erm ne individually
based on type of
asset or life of re-
| ated contract
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Re-evaluation of Assets’ Useful Lives
At sone point in time after an agency has placed a capital asset
into service, the agency may realize that the asset wll not

| ast for the remaining assigned useful Ilife. Many factors may
contribute to an asset not neeting its originally estimted
useful life, including danage to the asset or failure to perform
periodic maintenance. It is inportant for the useful life of an

asset to approximate its true service |ife because the purpose

of depreciation is to spread an asset’s cost over

time in which it is used.

the period of

Agencies are required to re-evaluate the useful lives of their
reported assets annually and adjust them downward necessary
to reflect the remaining service life.

A change in the estimated useful life of a capital asset is

considered a change in accounting estinmate,
accounted for prospectively (i.e., the change

accounted for and reported in current and future periods).
foll owi ng exanple denonstrates the proper way to account

change in the estimated useful life of a capital

Assunme you purchased equipnent for $50, 000

and assigned it a useful life of

Depreci ati on expense would be $5,000 per year
di vided by 10 years). At June 30, 2002, the asset
a net book val ue of $30, 000, calculated as foll ows:

Ori gi nal cost
Accunul at ed depreci ation ($5,000/year x 4 years)
Net book val ue

whi ch nust be
in estimate is

The
for a

in FY 99

years.
(%50, 000
has

During FY 03, you realize that the asset’s useful ness

will end during FY 06 (total wuseful Ilife
to be only 7 years instead of the original

years is calculated as foll ows:

Book val ue at begi nning of FY 03 ($30, 000)

Remaining |ife based on new estimate (3 years)

= $10, 000/ year

is expected
esti mate of

10 years). Depreci ati on expense for FY 03 and |ater
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By recogni zing depreciation expense of $10,000 per year

for the remainder of the asset’s wuseful Iife, the
accunul ated depreciation wll reach $50,000 in FY 05.
(Renmenber that because we took a full year  of

depreciation in the year of acquisition, we do not take
depreciation in the year of disposition.) The asset wll
be fully depreciated after 7 years instead of the
original estimate of 10 years.

CAPITAL ASSETS—GAIN/LOSS ON SALES

The State’'s policy for reporting gains and |osses on sales of
capital assets in the governnent-w de Statenent of Activities is
to report losses as general governnent-type expenses and to
report gains as general revenues (Question 131 of the second
GASB 34 Inplenentation QGuide). Agency financial statenents
should reflect this State policy.

In enterprise fund financial statenents, agencies should report
gains as nonoperating revenues and |osses as nonoperating
expenses.

CAPITAL ASSETS—IMPLEMENTATION OF CAPITALIZATION LIMIT CHANGES—A
TRANSITION ISSUE

In the year of transition to GASB 34 (i.e., the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002), agencies should inplenent any change in

capitalization limts before inplenmenting the provisions of
GASB 34, which require calculation of depreciation on capital
asset s. Agencies are required to adopt a capitalization limt

of $5,000 for novable personal property and $100,000 for
depreciable land inprovenents, buildings and inprovenents, and
i ntangi bl e assets, as of July 1, 2001. Agencies nust wite off
their books all capital assets that do not neet these
capitalization limts. Agencies should first wite off the
assets that do not neet the new capitalization limts and then
calculate a beginning accunul ated depreciation balance only on
the itens that remained capitalized after the capitalization
changes are inpl enent ed.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND LIABILITIES

GASB Interpretation 6 clarifies the application of standards for
nodi fied accrual recognition of certain liabilities and
expenditures in areas where differences have arisen, or
potentially could arise, in interpretation and practice.

For gover nient al funds, a series of specific accrual
nodi fi cati ons have been established pertaining to the reporting
of certain forns of |ong-termindebtedness. For exanple:

e Debt service on formal debt issues (such as bonds and
capital leases) generally should be recognized as a
governmental fund liability and expenditure when due
(matured)—wwth optional additional accrual wunder certain
conditions, as interpreted in paragraph 13, regarding debt
servi ce funds.

« Conpensated absences, claims and judgnents, speci al
termnation benefits, and landfill closure and postclosure
care costs should be recognized as governnental fund
obligations and expenditures to the extent the liabilities
are "normally expected to be liquidated with expendable
avai |l abl e financi al resources.” In all cases, the
criterion for nodified accrual recognition is whether and
to what extent the liability has matured, independent of
the nethod and tim ng of resource accumul ati on.

The Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral agrees with the G-OA
interpretation of these requirenents for governnental funds.
Accordingly, no expenditure and liability ordinarily should be
reported in a governnmental fund in connection with the unmatured
principal and interest of long-term debt. Simlarly, no
expenditure and liability should be reported in a governnental
fund for conpensated absences, clainms and judgnents, special

termnation benefits, and landfill closure and postclosure care
costs. Such ampunts are considered to function as unmatured
liabilities of the general governnent. Agenci es, however, mnust

report the current and non-current portions of these long-term
obligations for their Gover nirent al activities in their
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government-w de statenents as well as in the Changes in Long-
Term bl i gati ons note.
LONG-TERM DEBT—LEVEL OF DETAIL
The State's policy is that audited financial statenents to be
incorporated into the State's basic financial statenents nust

at a mninmum separately present Bonds Payable, Notes Payable,
Certificates of Participation Payable, Loans Payable, Capital
Leases Payabl e, Clains and Judgnents Payabl e, Conpensat ed
Absences Payable, etc., on the face of the financial statenents.”

Bonds Payable and Notes Payable information nust be separated
further into CGeneral Obligation and Revenue debt for the note
di scl osures. This includes the debt service to maturity
schedul es. (Also see LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS on page 104 in

Section 6, FOOTINOTE DI SCLOSURES. )

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Accunul ated enployee balances of annual |eave, sick |[eave,
conpensatory tinme, and holiday conpensatory tine are conpensated
absences, regardl ess of whether enployees will be conpensated in
the formof paid tine off work or extra pay. |In accordance with
GASB 16, Accounting for Conpensated Absences, the Dbasic
conpensated absences liability should -equal the enployee’s

actual accunul ated conpensated absence balance at the bal ance

sheet date.

The conpensated absence liability for an enployee is based on
the daily or hourly pay rate that is in effect at June 30. The
pay rate in effect at June 30 does not include one-tine |unp sum

bonuses that do not increase the enployee's base salary.
enpl oyer paynents for fringe benefits associated wth

The
t hose

19 However, a college with no blended conponent wunits may satisfy this

requirement by providing this level of detail to the Ofice
Conptroller General on the spreadsheet version of its Statenent
Assets.

of the
of Net
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sal ari es/wages should be <calculated and included in the
conpensat ed absence liability.

STATE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS AND INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS,
NET OF RELATED DEBT

State Capital Inprovenent Bonds are general obligation bonds
repaid from State general governnment resources rather than from
resources of particular agencies. That is, individual agencies
may own capital assets acquired with State Capital |nprovenent
Bond proceeds, but those sane agencies are not responsible for
repayi ng the Capital |nprovenent Bonds.

The Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt account that
an agency reports in its financial statenents should include any
capital assets acquired with State Capital |nprovenent Bond
proceeds unreduced by the rel ated debt.

The O fice of the Conptroller GCeneral will offset the agency-
reported Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt wth
the related Capital Inprovenent Bond debt in the statew de CAFR
Annual ly, the Ofice of the Conptroller General mnay contact
agencies and ask them to provide certain information regarding
assets acquired with State Capital |nprovenment Bond proceeds.

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Definition

Paragraph 34 of GASB 34 requires that net assets should be
reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of net
assets are either:

 Externally inposed by creditors (such as through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governnents

e Inposed by law through constitutional provi sions or
enabl i ng | egi sl ation.
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In addition, paragraph 35 of GASB 34 requires that when

per mmnent endownents or permanent fund principal
i ncluded, “restricted net assets” should be displ

amounts are
ayed in two

addi ti onal conponent s- expendabl e and nonexpendabl e.
Nonexpendabl e net assets are those that are required to be

retained in perpetuity.

Because different mneasurenent focuses and bases of accounting

are used in the Statenent of Net Assets than in
fund statements, and because the definition of reser
nore than resources that are restricted, anounts
reserved fund balances in governnental funds wl|

gover nnent a
ved includes
reported as
generally be

different from anopunts reported as restricted net assets in the

St atenent of Net Assets.

criteria of paragraph 34 of GASB 34 noted above.

Each restriction on net assets should be based solely on the

Al so see NET ASSETS CATEGORI ZED DI FFERENTLY | N STATEW DE CAFR
THAN | N AGENCY FINANCI AL STATEMENTS on page 121 for required

di sclosure related to net assets.
Purpose Categories of Restricted Net Assets to be Reported

The State wll report the following restricted
pur poses categori es:

* Unenpl oynent Conpensation Benefits
* Education

* Health

« Transportation

* Infrastructure

e Capital Projects

e Debt Service

net asset
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* Oher
Agenci es should use purpose categories at |east as detailed as
those |isted above. Titles for purpose category in agency
financial statenents should be such that the Ofice of the
Conmptroller General will be able to determne in which of the

above categories the balance in question best fits.

OPERATING VS. NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Proprietary funds nust define operating revenues and expenses
and segregate them from non-operating revenues and expenses.
These definitions and policies nmust be disclosed in the Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies. Pl ease see Section 6,
FOOTNOTE DI SCLOSURES, under SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI CANT ACCOUNTI NG
POLI CI ES.

GRANT/CONTRIBUTION REVENUE—RECOGNITION

CGenerally Accepted Accounting Principles relating to recognition
of Grant/Contribution Revenues differ for different categories
of GAAP funds and activities.

Enterprise, Internal Service, and Trust Funds Reported on Fund Financial Statements; Activities of
Governmental, Enterprise, and Internal Service Funds Reported on Government-wide
Financial Statements

For this group of funds and activities:

* Recognize Gant/Contribution Revenue when your agency has
met all applicable eligibility requirenents.

* Record Gant/Contribution Receivables at June 30 if, at
that date, both of the follow ng conditions are true:

> Your agency has net the revenue recognition criteria
above.

> Your agency has not yet received the related cash from
the grantor.
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Current Grant/ Contri bution Recei vabl es nmust be reported
separately from Non-Current G ant/Contribution Receivables for
t hese funds/activities. Current receivables at June 30 are
those expected to be collected on or before the next June 30
(within one year) whereas Non-Current Receivables at June 30 are
t hose expected to be collected after the next June 30.

e Record Deferred Revenue at June 30 if, at that date, both
of the followi ng conditions are true:

» Your agency has received cash on or before June 30.

> Your agency has not yet nmet all applicable eligibility
requi renents.

Governmental Funds Reported on Fund Financial Statements

For this group of funds:

* Recognize Gant/Contribution Revenue when both of the
follow ng are true

> Your agency has nmet al | applicable eligibility
requirenents.

» The grant funds or contributions are avail able. (Funds
are considered available at June 30 if they are received
or expected to be received by the next June 30.)

e Record Gant/Contribution Receivables at June 30 if, at
that date, both of the following criteria are net:

> Your agency has net the revenue recognition criteria
above.

» Your agency has not yet received the related cash from
the grantor.

e Record Deferred Revenue at June 30 if <either of the
following is true:
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» Your agency has received cash on or before June 30 but
has not yet net all applicable eligibility requirenents.

> Your agency has  net al | applicable eligibility
requirenents at June 30 but the grant funds or
contributions at that date are not yet available (that
is, the funds were not yet received or expected to be
recei ved by June 30 of the next fiscal year).

GRANT/CONTRIBUTION REVENUES IN PROPRIETARY FUNDS—OPERATING OR
NON-OPERATING

Agencies are encouraged to reference the exanples in Appendix D
of GASB 33 and to use the two-page questionnaire in Appendix A
of this manual to evaluate grant-like arrangenents against the
criteria included in the State’s policy on distinguishing
operating from non-operating revenues. (For further
information, please see SUWARY OF SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTI NG
POLICIES in Section 6, FOOTNOTE DI SCLOSURES. )

CLASSIFICATION OF PROGRAM-SPECIFIC GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS—
OPERATING VERSUS CAPITAL

Program specific grants and contributions nust be classified as

either operating or capital. Operating grants/contributions are
used to fi nance an agency’ s oper at i ons. Capi t al
grants/contributions are restricted by the grantor/contributor
for capi tal pur poses. %° Capi t al purposes include the

acqui sition, construction, or renovation of capital assets but
do not include costs to repair or nmaintain existing capital
asset s. If a grant/contribution my be wused either for
operating or capital pur poses, the grant/contribution is
classified as operating, even if your agency uses it for capital
pur poses.

20 see paragraph 50, GASB 34, and Question 134 in the first GASB 34
| mpl enent ati on Gui de.
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The capitalization thresholds established by the Ofice of the
Comptroller General for the reporting of capital assets do not
affect the classification of capital grants and contri butions.
In other words, a grant/contribution that is restricted for
capital purposes wll be reported as capital even if the cost of
the asset being acquired falls below the capitalization
threshold, resulting in your agency not reporting the acquired
asset as a capital asset. The followng exanple illustrates
such a situation

Assume your agency receives a $25,000 grant, the proceeds
of which are restricted by the grantor for the purchase of
a network server and four conputers. The network server
costs $15,000, and the four conputers cost $2,500 each.
Al though the four conputers would not be reported as
capital assets because their cost does not exceed $5, 000
each, the grant would still be considered a capital grant.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Paragraphs 41 and 42 of GASB 34 establish the requirenments for
reporting direct and indirect expenses. Paragraph 41 states
that governnents should report all expenses by function except
for those that neet the definitions of special or extraordinary
itenms, discussed in paragraphs 55 and 56 of GASB 34. As a
m ni mum governnents should report direct expenses for each
function. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program or departnent and, thus, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function.

Par agraph 42 of GASB 34 does not require governnments to allocate
i ndirect expenses to other functions. However, sone governnents
may prefer to allocate sonme indirect expenses or use a full-cost
al l ocati on approach anong functions. If indirect expenses are
all ocated, direct and indirect expenses should be presented in
separate columms to enhance conparability of direct expenses
bet ween governnents that allocate indirect expenses and those
that do not. A colum totaling direct and indirect expenses nay
be presented but is not required.
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Question 56 of the second GASB 34 |Inplenentation Quide states
that if the governnment chooses not to allocate indirect costs in
the Statenent of Activities, the allocations should be
conpletely reversed so that the indirect expenses are included
in “general governnent” or its equival ent.

It is the State’s policy not to allocate indirect expenses.
Accordingly, the State does not plan to report indirect expenses
in a separate col um.

Agencies are encouraged not to allocate indirect expenses and
not to report indirect expenses in a separate colum in the
agency’s governnent-w de Statenent of Activities. | f an agency
does report indirect expenses in a separate columm, it also nust
provide a sufficiently detailed footnote disclosure that would
allow the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral to conpletely
reverse such allocations.

REQUIRED RECOGNITION OF PLEDGES AS RECEIVABLES AND REVENUES

General ly Accepted Accounting Principles? require governnental
entities that receive pledges (i.e., promses to provide cash or

ot her assets from nongovernnent al donors) to “recognize
recei vables and revenues (net of estimated uncollectible
anounts) when all eligibility requirements are net, provided
that the promse is verifiable and the resources are neasurable
and probable of collection.” Al so see REQU RED DI SCLOSURE OF

UNRECOGNI ZED PLEDGES DEEMED NOT MEASURABLE on page 116.
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the statewde financial statenents, the State wll be
required to elimnate the “doubling-up effect of internal
service fund activity.” According to paragraphs 59 and 314 of
GASB 34, this is acconplished by “adjusting the internal service
fund’s internal charges to break even.” (This requirenent is

2l paragraph 25 of GASB 33; GASB Cod. (2001-2002 GASB 34 Edition)
Sec. N50.122.
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for financial reporting purposes only. I nternal service funds

are not required to actually change the anount
custoners.)

s they charge to

The following information is required to
separately issued financial statenents for
f unds:

e The Statenent of Revenues, Expenses, and
exceptions, internal customers can genera
other State agencies (including State-su
and universities). However, the Stat
conponent units of the State.

* An exanple of the required statenent
Qui de.

 The notes to the financial statenents
governnmental payor funds, revenue nust

function. For proprietary payor funds,
reported by activity.

Net Assets nust report separate balances for revenue
derived from internal and external customners. Wth a few

entities listed in Appendix B are considered external
custoners as a result of their classification as discrete

Exhi bit 4D on page 231 of the first GASB 34 |nplenentation

breakdown of revenue derived from i nternal

be included in
internal service

Changes in Fund

ly be defined as
pported coll eges
e agencies and

is provided in

must include a
cust oners. For
be reported by
revenue nust be

One other new requirenent of GASB 34 for internal service funds
is the preparation of the cash flow statenment by using the

direct nmethod in accordance with GASB 9.

separately from other operating transactions.
anounts representing supplies purchased from v
separated on the Statenent of Cash Flows f
representing supplies purchased from other

For the State of South Carolina to prepare cash flow statenents
by the direct method in accordance with GASB 9, State interna
service funds nust report transactions with other State funds

For exanpl e,
endors should be
rom the anounts
funds of State
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gover nment . Thi s also would to

transacti ons.

provi si on apply

recei pt

Speci fic guidance concerning this
in the Content and Format | ssues section
| mpl enent ati on CGui de, questions 65 and 67.

of

Al so see
on page 117
di scl osure.

for information regarding a required

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Under GAAP,
in a trustee or agency capacity for others. That
reported in fiduciary funds in the statew de CAFR cannot
to support the State’s own prograns. 22

requi red presentation appears
t he

GASB 9

| NTERNAL SERVI CE FUNDS—REVENUE FROM | NTERNAL CUSTOMERS

f oot not e

fiduciary funds are limted to reporting assets held
IS,

assets
be used

If an agency’s financial statenents
that holds assets that can be used to support
t he agency’ s fi nanci al statenents al so nmust
suppl ementary information that presents this fund as
be presented in the statew de CAFR (i.e.

fiduciary fund).

include a fiduciary fund
State prograns,
it
as a fund ot her

i ncl ude
shoul d
than a

22 paragraph 69 of GASB 34.




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

PCLI Cl ES—I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR ;ECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
FI NANCI AL STATEMENT COVPONENTS 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
80

SECTION 6—FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURES

LIST OF DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY GAAP

GASB Cod. Secs. 2300.106 and .107 provide a list of footnotes
required for fair presentation of basic financial statenents.
The O fice of the Conptroller General needs the data in nost of
these footnotes in order to properly incorporate agency
financial statenments into the statew de CAFR

Agency financi al statenments to be incorporated into the
statewide CAFR nust include all footnote disclosures required
for fair presentation in accordance with GAAP as well as any
addi tional disclosures described in this manual .

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity Disclosures

General |y Accepted Accounting Principles? require that the notes
to the reporting entity’'s financial statenments include *“a
di scussion of the criteria for including the conponent units in
the financial reporting entity and how the component units are
reported.”

The Governnment Finance Oficers’ Association and the Ofice of
the Conptroller Cener al I nterpret this as requiring a
description of the conponent unit’s specific characteristic(s)
that led to its classification as a blended or discretely

presented conponent unit. For exanple, if a blended conponent
unit provides services entirely or alnost entirely to the State,
t hat fact should be disclosed if it is the primary

characteristic that distinguishes the conponent wunit from
di scretely presented conponent units.

2 Section 2600.122 of the Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Fi nanci al Reporting Standards as of June 30, 2001.
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General |y Accepted Accounting Principles?® require that the notes
to the reporting entity's financial statenents  “include
i nformati on about how the separate financial statements for the
i ndi vi dual conponent units may be obtained.”

The Ofice of +the Conptroller GCeneral interprets this as
requiring disclosure of a postal mailing address to which the
interested reader may wite a letter requesting a copy of the
agency’s financial statenents.

Section 4 of this manual (COVPONENT UNITS) discusses the fact
that conponent wunits may be governnental or non-governnental.
That section further requires disclosure or supplenenta
information regarding whether the conponent wunits that you
i nclude are governnental or non-governnmental and the reasons for
t hat cl assification. For further detail s, pl ease see
GOVERNMENTAL AND NON- GOVERNVENTAL COMPONENT UNITS in Section 4,
COVPONENT UNI TS.

Enterprise Funds—Election Not to Apply FASB Pronouncements Issued After November 30, 1989

The State’'s policy is that enterprise funds within the State’s
primry gover nnment may not  adopt FASB Statenents and
Interpretations issued after Novenber 30, 1989. This policy
must be disclosed in the notes to the agency’s basic financia

statenents.

Al so see APPLI CABI LI TY OF FASB PRONOUNCEMENTS on page 24.
Basis of Accounting—Modified Accrual Availability Period

GASB Cod. Sec. 1600.106 requires disclosure within the Sunmmary
of Significant Accounting Policies of the Iength of time used to
define available for purposes of revenue recognition in the
governmental fund financial statenents.

24 | bi d.
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The State’s policy is to use a one-year availability period for
pur poses of reporting its governnental funds. Accordi ngly, for
all practical purposes, the definitions of current and |ong-term
liabilities contained in GASB 34 paragraph 31 apply across all
fund types and activities. Specifically, current liabilities
are those “due within one year,” and long-term liabilities are
those “due in nore than one year.”

Also see EFFECTS OF ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING CHANGES ON
BEG NNl NG FUND EQUI TY/ NET ASSETS(CGovernnental Funds—€hange in
Policy Regarding Availability Period—A Transition |Issue) on
page 90.

Permanent Funds

In accordance with Paragraph 65 of GASB 34, only earnings (not
principal) of a permanent fund may be used. Further, the
earnings of a permanent fund nust be usable to support State
government (rather than individuals, private organizations, or
ot her governnents).

For each permanent fund displayed in the basic financial
statenents, the notes to the financial statenents should provide
enough data regarding the allowed uses of the fund s resources
that a financial statenent user could readily determne that
such resources are usable to support State governnent.

Enterprise Funds—Reasons for Classification As Enterprise Fund

Paragraph 67 of GASB 34 requires activities for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services to be reported
as enterprise funds if any one of three criteria is net.
Governnmental entities should apply each of the three criteria in
the context of the activity’'s principal revenue sources.

In accordance with Paragraph 67 of GASB 34, an activity may be

classified as an enterprise fund only if it charges one or nore
fees to external users for goods or services. “External users”
should be interpreted as neaning “users outside State

gover nnent .”
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For each enterprise fund (and conponent wunit wusing enterprise
fund accounting) displayed in the basic financial statenents,
the notes to the financial statenents should provide enough
i nformati on about fund revenues that a financial statenent user
could readily determne that the fund charges fees for goods
and/or services to users external to the governnent of the State
of South Caroli na.

Paragraph 67a of GASB 34 requires that <certain debt-issuing

activities be classified as enterprise funds. (Also see
Questions 166 and 167 of the first GASB 34 Inplenentation
Gui de.) Specifically, paragraph 67a of GASB 34 requires

enterprise fund classification for any activity that is financed
with debt secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from
fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a
pl edge of net revenues from fees and charges and the full faith
and credit of a related primary governnment or conponent unit—
even if that governnent is not expected to make any paynents—s
not payable solely fromfees and charges of the activity. (Sone
debt may be secured, in part, by a portion of its own proceeds
but should be considered as payable “solely” from the revenues
of the activity.)

If significant debt (generally bonds or notes) is associated
with a fund other than an enterprise fund, the notes to the
financial statenments nust disclose the specific circunmstances
that cause the activity not to nmeet the conditions set forth in
Par agraph 67a of GASB 34.

Fiduciary Funds

Paragraph 69 of GASB 34 allows an activity to be classified

within a fiduciary fund type (pension trust fund, investnent
trust fund, private-purpose trust fund, or agency fund) only if

it holds assets in a trustee or agency capacity for parties
outside State governnent and the assets cannot be wused to
support the State’s own prograns.

For each fiduciary fund displayed in the basic financial
statenents, the notes to the financial statenments should provide
enough data regarding the allowed uses of fund resources that a
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financial statement wuser <could readily determine that the

resources cannot be used to support State prograns.

Paragraphs 69 and 73 of GASB 34 explain that trust funds

(pension trust, investnment trust, or private-purpose

generally have both of the followi ng characteristics:

* A signed trust agreenment between the State agency

trust)

and one

or nore non-State parties governs operation of the fund.

« Mnagenent of the State agency is significantly involved in

managi ng the operation of the fund.

In contrast, agency funds generally are not governed by a fornmal
trust agreenent and State nmanagers do not exercise any
significant discretion in mnaging the fund. Agency funds
generally exist only to receive and tenporarily invest resources

that actually belong to parties outside State governnent.

fund.

For each fiduciary fund displayed in the basic financial
statenents, the notes to the financial statenents
descri be whether a formal trust agreenent exists and the |evel
of discretion that State managers have over the operation of the

shoul d

Al so see FIDUCI ARY FUNDS on page 79.

Cash Equivalents

GAAP allows flexibility in the definition of what constitutes
cash equivalents. A governnment’s selection nust be disclosed in

the notes to the financial statenents.

short-term highly liquid securities with an origina

Section 3, FINANCI AL STATEMENTS.)

managenent pool operates as a denmand deposit account,

Cash and Cash Equivalents generally includes investnents in

of three nonths or less. (Also see STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOAS in

The State’s cash nanagenent pool, admnistered by the State
Treasurer, is an internal investnent pool. Because this cash

maturity

agenci es
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should classify all amunts invested in the pool as Cash and
Cash Equi valents, even though the pool includes sonme |ong-term
i nvest ments.

Capital Assets

In the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, agencies nust
disclose their policies for capitalizing assets and estinmating
the useful lives of those assets for depreciation purposes (GASB
Cod. Sec. 2300.106a(7)).

Your agency’'s policies nmust be in conpliance wth the State’s
policies described in CAPI TAL ASSETS—CAPI TALI ZATION CRI TERI A on
page 56 and CAPI TAL ASSETS—BPEPRECI ATI ON REQUI REMENTS on page 62.

Application of Restricted Net Assets Before or After Unrestricted Net Assets

Paragraph 14 of GASB 33 requires recipients of resources wth
purpose restrictions to report the resulting net assets (or fund
bal ance, as appropriate) as restricted (or reserved, as
appropri ate) unti | t he pur pose restrictions are net .
Paragraph 115 of GASB 34 requires that the State fornulate a
policy to determne whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes
for which both restricted and wunrestricted net assets are
avai l able. This policy nust be disclosed in the notes.

The State’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net assets are avail abl e.

Proprietary Funds—Policy Defining Operating Revenues and Expenses

Paragraph 101 of GASB 34 requires the Statenent of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for proprietary funds
(enterprise and internal service fund) to distinguish operating

from nonoperating revenues and expenses. Par agraph 102 of
GASB 34 requires entities to establish a policy that defines
operating revenues and expenses. This policy nmust be

appropriate to the nature of activity being reported, disclosed
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in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, and used
consistently fromperiod to period.

Cenerally Accepted Accounting Policies (GAAP) do not provide an
authoritative definition of operating and nonoperating revenues
and expenses for this purpose, although GAAP indicate that
fi nanci al st at enent preparers my wsh to consider the
authoritative guidance in GASB 9 on identifying cash flows from
operating activities in arriving at their own definition.

Par agraph 102 of GASB 34 states that transactions for which cash
flows are reported as capital and related financing activities,

noncapi t al financing activities, or investing activities
normally would not be reported as conponents of operating
i ncone. This includes nobst revenues considered to Dbe

nonexchange and exchange-li ke, such as tax revenues and, in sone
cases, fees and charges (such as passenger facilities charges).

The State’s policy is to use the authoritative guidance in
GASB 9 to distinguish operating from nonoperating revenues and
expenses. The State’s policy also provides that grants and
grant-like transactions are reportable as operating revenues
only if they:

-« Are essentially the same as contracts for services (i.e.,
exchange transactions); and

« Finance prograns that the proprietary fund would not otherw se
undertake (i.e., the activity of the grant is inherently part
of the operations of the grantor).?®

% This is consistent with paragraph 102 of GASB 34, which states that nost
nonexchange and exchange-like revenues normally would not be reported as
operating revenues. It is also «consistent wth the fact that
Question 9.12a of the G-OA Certificate of Achievenent for Excellence in
Fi nanci al Reporting checklist for 2002 asks if the governnent has refrained
from including taxes and grants wthin the operating category for
proprietary funds on the Statenent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets.
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Nonoperating revenues on agency financial statenents include
appropriations (from the State of South Carolina, | ocal
governnents, and the federal gover nnent whet her  provi ded
directly to the proprietary fund or provided to the proprietary
fund by a third party acting as an agent of the grantor
gover nnent ) ; donat i ons or contributions; subsi di es; t ax
revenues; nost nonexchange and exchange-like transactions; and
grants except:

Agencies that report any proprietary funds nust include the
above | anguage (except for portions that are entirely
i napplicable to its operations) in a footnote disclosure within
the agency’s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
Corresponding wording will be included in the statew de CAFR

One or nore additional paragraphs are required in the agency’s
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to describe the
specific principal operating revenues and expenses of the
particular fund(s) in question.

Those reportabl e as operating revenue as descri bed above; and

Those restricted by the grantor to be used exclusively for
capi tal purposes.

Interest incone shall be considered operating revenue only if
| endi ng, investing, or other interest-generating activity is the
primary activity of the fund. Accordingly, interest incone for
risk managenent funds shall be <classified as nonoperating
revenue.

Agencies are encouraged to reference the exanples in Appendix D

of
of

GASB 33 and to use the two-page questionnaire in Appendix A
this manual to evaluate grants and grant-like arrangenents

against the criteria included in the State’s policy.
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EFFECTS OF ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING CHANGES ON BEGINNING FUND
EQUITY/NET ASSETS

Cenerally Accept ed Account i ng Princi pl es, i ncl udi ng
par agraph 144 and footnote 13 of GASB 34, require disclosure of
the effects of accounting and reporting changes on beginning

fund equity and/or net assets. Because the new financial
reporting nodel requires presentation of both fund financial
statenents and governnent-w de financial statenents, the State’s
policy is to present two separate schedules to detail these
effects.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the beginning bal ance
schedules in each agency’s note that describes accounting and
financial reporting changes nust present at |east the |evel of
detail shown in the follow ng two schedul es.
Effect of accounting and reporting changes on beginning fund equity /net assets in the fund financial statements:
Fund #1 Fund #2 Fund #3 Fund #4
[Name] [Name] [Name] [Name]

A Fund equity or net assets at June 30, 2001, as
previously reported in general purpose
financial STAEMENS.........cooeieiiiiiiiececcce $ $ $ $

Increase in capitalization limits, capital assets..............

Effect of adopting one-y ear av ailability period...............

Effect of correction of ??? [describe]...........cccoooeenien.

Effect of correction of 2?? [describe]..........ccccvvvvreienns

Effect of adopting new financial reporting model............

Fund equity or fund net assets at June 30, 2001,
as restated in basic financial statements.................... $

O OO0 w

NOTES TO PREPARERS:

A From published financial statements for the previous fiscal y ear.

B This adjustment applies only to governmental funds.

C Ifthis row is applicable, please add description of correcting ittm. Add more rows if needed.
D Aggregate adjustments resulting from implementing GASB 33 through 37 and Interpretation 6.
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Effect of accounting and reporting changes on beginning net assets in the government-wide financial statements:*

Govern-
mental
Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units

Business- Component Component Component
Type Unit Unit Unit
Activities ~ #1 [Name]  #2 [Name] #3 [Name]

A Netassets at June 30, 2001
as previously reported..........cooevrenen. $ —
B Record fund equity at June 30, 2001, of
fund-based activities previously reported
in general purpose financial statements...
Increase capitalization limits,
capital aSSEtS.....vvvverrrirrirreieieins
Adopt one-year availability period............
C Effect of correction of 22?......ccccovvvvrnnnne
D Adopt new financial reporting model:
Record fund activity previously
reported in fiduciary funds...............
Record higher education activities
as business-type activities...............
F  Record/reclassify other fund activity.....
Record capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation... .
Record long-term liabilities...................
Report governmental activities on
full accrual basis of accounting..........
G Report/reclassify 22?......ccccovvvvrnnnne
Report/reclassify ?222.......ccovervinnnns
H  Other adjustments to adopt new model..

m

Net assets at June 30, 2001,
as restated.........c..ooeeereereeriniienins $

NOTES TO PREPARERS:
Amounts are not applicable in shaded blocks.

*  Business-ty pe activities must complete this schedule for the Comptroller General's Office even if they are not
required to present government-wide financial statements at the agency level.

m o O @™ >

loans described in Section 8 of this manual.

Zero because government-wide financial statements were not previously presented.

From published financial statements for the previous fiscal year.

If this row is applicable, please add description of correcting item. Add more rows if needed.

These several adjustments are a result of implementing GASB 33 through 37 and Interpretation 6.

These adjustments apply only to higher education institutions. They include the effects of the adjustment for Perkins

F  This row applies to non-college situations where, because of GASB 34, funds previously reported as

governmental funds were reclassified as enterprise funds, etc.

G Please describe and separately report other material adjustments to implement the new model.
H Amounts on this line generally should be no more than 10% of the net assets at June 30, 2001, as restated.
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The adjustnments should be presented in the order shown, but any
colums or rows that are not applicable to an agency should be
omtted.

Further detail regarding certain issues is provided in the
foll ow ng subsecti ons.

Governmental Funds—Change in Policy Regarding Availability Period—A Transition Issue

Before July 1, 2001, the State generally considered revenues to
be available if <collected during the current fiscal year or
within 30 days after fiscal year-end. However, a 45-day
avai lability period applied to unenploynent insurance taxes.
Ef fective July 1, 2000, t he State adopt ed a one-year
availability period for intergovernnmental grant transactions
(for nore information regarding this change, please see page 75
and Note 21 in the State’s CAFR for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2001).

The O fice of the Conptroller GCeneral has changed the State’s
avai lability period to one year for recognizing all governnental
fund revenues, effective for t he fiscal year endi ng
June 30, 2002 (that is, concurrent with the inplenentation of
GASB 34). The OCG believes that the one-year period is
preferable because it will provide nore consistency between the
government-wide and fund financial statenents required by
GASB 34 and wll be less confusing to the wusers of those
st atenents. That is, the differences between revenues reported
in the fund and governnent-w de statenents will be smaller under
a one-year availability period than they would be under a
shorter availability period.?

The above-descri bed changes in the availability period represent
changes in accounting principles. Agencies nust report the
cunul ative effects of such a change as a restatenent of

26 Because paragraph 16 of GASB 34 requires the governnent-w de statements to
be prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
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begi nning fund balances in governnental funds in the year of
transition.?

Changes in Capitalization Criteria—A Transition Issue

The capitalization criteria for capital assets changed for nost

agencies beginning on July 1, 2001 (see CAPITAL ASSETS—
CAPI TALI ZATI ON CRI TERI A begi nning on page 56). Such changes

constitute changes in accounting principles that are treated as

a direct adjustnent to beginning equity, essentially in the sane
manner as a prior-period adjustment.?8

Agenci es that prepare agency financial statenents for inclusion
in the statewi de CAFR nust disclose the following in the note to
the financial statenents that details accounting and reporting
changes inplenmented during the year of transition to GASB 34 and
the effects of those <changes on beginning (July 1, 2001)
bal ances:

e For each fund, the anount of capital assets (historica
cost) witten off the books as a result of changes in
capitalization limts.

e For each proprietary fund that was, before inplenentation
of GASB 34, classified as a fund type that did not record
depreciation, the amount of accunmulated depreciation at
July 1, 2001, on assets that renmained capitalized after the
above capitalization changes were inplenented. (This
category of funds includes higher education funds and the
Unenpl oynment Conpensati on Benefits Fund.)

* For each fund that was classified as a proprietary fund
both before and after inplenentation of GASB 34, the anpunt
of accunul ated depreciation witten off the books as a

27 see footnote 13 and paragraph 309 of GASB 34.

28 See page 241 of Governnental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting
publ i shed by the Governnent Finance O ficers Association in 2001.
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result of the changes in capitalization limts described
above.

CASH, DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS DISCLOSURES

GASB 3, GASB 31, and GASB Techni cal
pertain to deposits and investnents.

Bulletin No. 94-1 all

As part of the audit of the statewide CAFR the OCG nust
reconcile cash and investnents reported in the CAFR to the cash
and investnments held by the State Treasurer. Agenci es that
prepare financial statenents incorporated into the statew de
CAFR, therefore, nust provide an appropriate |level of detail
within the notes to the financial statenents that will allow for
this reconciliation. This entails providing certain separate
di scl osures regarding anmounts held by the State Treasurer and
amounts not held by the State Treasurer.

and investnments
show at

In reporting cash, deposits,
agenci es nust use formats that
shown in the subsections bel ow

in the footnotes,
| east the | evel of detail

Reconciliation of Cash/Cash Equivalents Reported on the Statement(s) of Position to the Footnote
Disclosures on Deposits and Investments

The following schedule reconciles Cash and Investnents as
reported on the statenments of position (balance sheets and/or
statenents of net assets) to the footnote disclosure provided
for deposits and investnents. Note that the pair of anounts
mar ked “a” nmust be the sane, as nust the pairs of anmounts marked
“b” and “c.”
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FUND STATEMENT(S) OF POSITION:

Primary Government (Incl. Blended Com p. Units):
Cash and cash equivalents...........coocooiiiiiiiiinnn, $
INVESTMENTS.....oooiiii
Invested securities lending collateral
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents.........cc.ccoevviveiiiiininn,
INVESTMENTS.. ..o

Subtotal, Primary Government Including

Blended Component Units a

Discretely Presented Component Unit(s):
Cash and cash equivalents.........cccccovviiiiiiniineinennnn,
INVESTMENTS.. ...
Invested securities lending collateral
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...........ccocoveiiiiiiiiinnnnns
INVESTMENTS.. ..o
Subtotal, Discretely Presented Component
UNE(S ) vt ettt e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e eens b
TOTAL FUND STATEMENT(S) OF
POSITION. ...t $ c

DISCLOSURE, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS PLUS RECONCILING ITEM S:
Primary Government (Incl. Blended Com p. Units):
Carrying value of deposits: $

Subtotal, Primary Government Including

Blended Component Unit(S).....cccovveuieeineiinniiineiieiin, a
Discretely Presented Component Unit(s):

Carrying value of depositS.......ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiine,

Investments, reported amount.........c.coeeeevvineeeiinnennnnnn.

Cash onhand........ccoooiiiii
Subtotal, Discretely Presented Component

UNITE(S ) ettt ettt e et e e e e e e eeeeaaes b
TOTAL DISCLOSURE, DEPOSITS AND
INVESTMENTS PLUS RECONCILING ITEMS................. $ c

*Deposits Held by State Treasurer include deposits in STARS
subfunds and in State Treasurer “conposite reservoir” accounts.
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Deposits Disclosure

At a mnimum agencies nust present a schedule of total bank
bal ances and carrying anmounts not with the State Treasurer at

June

30 classified by category of «credit risk. The three

categories of credit risk to be used are as foll ows:

For
bot h:

Category A Insured or collateralized with securities held
by the agency or by its agent in the agency’ s nane.

Cat egory B: Collateralized with securities held by the
pl edging financial institution’s trust departnent or agent
in the agency’s nane.

Category C Uncol l ateralized or <collateralized wth
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust departnent or agent but not in the agency’s nane.

each category of credit risk, the schedule mnust present

Carryi ng anmount .

Bank bal ance.

Schedule of Investments

At a
not

m ni mum agencies nust present a schedule of investnents
with the State Treasurer at June 30, classified by the

foll ow ng types of investnents:

Repur chase agreenents.

U.S. governnent securities.
Certificates of deposit.
Cor por at e bonds.

Muni ci pal bonds.
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* Equity securities.

* Asset-backed securities.

e Collateralized nortgage obligations.
» Commerci al paper.

e O her (describe).

For each type of investnent, the schedul e nust
for each of the foll ow ng:

* Reported anount, Risk Category A
* Reported anmobunt, Risk Category B
* Reported anmount, Risk Category C
* Total reported anount.

e Fair val ue.

provi de amounts

Note that the reported anmount nay be a m xture of cost-based and
fair-val ue based neasures because certain investnments my neet
the GASB 31 criteria for reporting at anortized cost.

For purposes of this schedule, the risk categories are defined

as foll ows:

 Risk Category A Insured or registered
name, or securities held by the agency or
t he agency’ s nane.

in the agency’s
by its agent in

 Risk Category B: Uni nsured and unregistered, Wi th
securities held by the counterparty’s trust departnment or

agent in the agency’ s nane.
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 Risk Category C Uni nsured and unregistered, W th

securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust
departnment or agent but not in the agency’ s nane.

GASB 31 Disclosures About Investments

| f your agency’s investnents only include investnents held as
part of the State Treasurer’s investnent pool, certificates of
deposit, or investnents the fair value of which was determ ned
by quoted market price, your footnote disclosure should indicate
this fact.

| f your agency used nethods and assunptions to estimate the fair
value of its investnents and that value is based on information
other than quoted market price, that information should be
di scl osed.

| f your agency holds any investnent position in an external
i nvestnment pool ?°, disclose that information. The State
Treasurer’s pools are not external pools.

Disclose any regulatory oversight of participation in an
external investnent pool, other than the SEC, and whether the
fair value of the position in the pool is the sane as the val ue
of the pool shares. Di sclose the details of any involuntary
participation in an external investnent pool. Lastly, if your
agency could not obtain information from the pool sponsor to
allow determ nation of fair value of its investnent, provide the
met hods used and significant assunptions nade in determning
that fair value and the reasons for having made such an
esti mate.

Disclosures About Investments in Derivatives

Compliance with GASB Technical Bulletin No. 94-1 requires
di sclosure of the details of any derivatives, nortgage-backed
securities, or other structured financial instruments that an

2 gee definition in the Gossary in Paragraph 22 of GASB 31.
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agency has used, held, or witten (sold) as of June 30 or during
the fiscal year (regardless of whether the assets or liabilities
resulting from these transactions are reported on the statenent
of position). In the disclosure, include the nature of the
transactions and the reasons for entering into the transactions.
The explanation should include a discussion of the exposure to
credit risk, market risk and |egal risk. If any violations of
l egal, regulatory, or contractual provisions have occurred by
using, holding or witing (selling) certain derivatives during
the reporting period or at June 30, that information nust also
be disclosed within the cash and investnents footnote disclosure
in the financial statenents.

RECEIVABLES FOOTNOTE—MINIMUM LEVEL OF DETAIL

The exanple below is adapted from the note on page 511 of the
2001 edition of Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financi al
Reporting (published by the GFOA). It is intended to illustrate
the mninmum | evel of detail that the Ofice of the Conptroller
Ceneral nust obtain from agencies regarding their receivables.

Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2002, for individual major funds and nonmajor and internal service
funds, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts and discounts are as
follows (expressed in thousands):

Major Major Nonmajor
Fund 1 Fund 2 Funds Totals
Receivables:
Interest $ 2,000 $ 3,000 $ 4,000 $ 9,000
Taxes 10,000 9,550 9,750 29,300
Accounts 3,600 4,800 4,200 12,600
Gross Receivables 15,600 17,350 17,950 50,900
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles (1,500) (1,750) (2,000) (5,250)
Less: Discounts (1,000) (1,100) (1,250) (3,350)

Net Total Receivables $ 13,100 $ 14500 $14,700 $ 42,300
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RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

Paragraph 13 of GASB 38 concerns itself wth the fact that
bal ances of receivables and payables reported on the Statenent
of Net Assets and Bal ance Sheet may be aggregations of different
conponents, such as balances due to or from taxpayers, other
governnments, vendors, custoners, beneficiaries, and enpl oyees.

In addition to the GAAP nmandated disclosures in connection with
recei vable and payable balances, the notes to the financial
statenents should provide details when significant conponents
have been obscured by aggregation. This disclosure is required
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002 (the State’s
fiscal year ending June 30, 2003).

DISCLOSURES ABOUT BALANCES ARISING FROM INTRA-STATE ACTIVITIES

The | ast sentence of Par agraph 81 of GASB 34 states:

“Liabilities arising from i nterfund activities (see
paragraph 112) do not constitute general long-term liabilities
and therefore should be reported in governnental funds.” Thi s
principle applies to all Iliabilities arising from interfund

activities.

In addition, paragraph 112a(1l) of GASB 34 provides the foll ow ng
specific guidance limted to interfund | oans: “I'nterfund | oans
should be reported as interfund receivables in |ender funds and
i nterfund payables in borrower funds. This activity should not
be reported as other financing sources or uses in the fund
financial statenents. | f repaynent is not expected within a
reasonable tinme, the interfund bal ances should be reduced and
the amount that is not expected to be repaid should be reported
as a transfer fromthe fund that nmade the loan to the fund that
received the |l oan.”

In order for the State to conply with Paragraphs 81 and 112 of
GASB 34, sone interfund activities for the State (i.e., “intra-
State activities”) may need to be reported quite differently in
the statewi de CAFR than they have been reported in separately
i ssued State agency financial statenents. If such a difference
is material relative to the agency’s financial statenents, the
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notes to its financial statenents nust detail the different

reporting that would be required in the statewi de CAFR
including the presentation of pro forma information to show any
di fferences in account bal ances.

For exanple, for a long-termintra-State payable arising from a
| oan payable to a different State agency, the note disclosure
must provide details about: (a) the identity of the |ending
agency/fund and (b) a schedule of paynents on principle that, at
a mninmum distingui shes between current and | ong-term payabl es.
If the liability is payable from a governnental fund and the
agency’s governnental fund financial statenments recorded only
the current payable, the agency’'s disclosure nust include pro-
forma data to show the changes in account balances (including
fund equity/net assets) that nust occur when the total liability
(current and long-tern) is recorded in the State’s governnenta
fund financial statenents as an interfund payable in accordance
wi th paragraph 81 of GASB 34.

DISCLOSURES REGARDING MATERIAL INTRA-STATE BALANCES

Effective for the State’'s fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,
paragraph 14 of GASB 38 w Il require certain details to be
reported in an interfund balances footnote. Some of the
information required by this part of GASB 38 is already required
for governnments that participate in the Governnent Finance
Oficers Association’s Certificate of Achievenent for Excellence
in Financial Reporting Program while sone of the data is new

The Ofice of the Conptroller General obtains nost data
regarding intra-State due to/from balances by analyzing STARS
bal ances. However, not all of the newy required data is
avai l abl e in STARS wi thout retrieving individual docunents.

In addition to providing the disclosure required by paragraph 14
of GASB 38 for interfund balances reported in the agency’s
financial statenments, the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral
requires that agency financial statements display the follow ng
details regarding intra-State bal ances in a note disclosure:
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» The purpose for material intra-State bal ances.
e ldentification of any material intra-State balances that

are not expected to be repaid within one year fromthe date
of the financial statenents.

(Intra-State balances are those that relate to an agency’'s
financial dealings with other State agencies.)

To be sure that these newy required details will be available
for the State’'s fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, as required

the Ofice of +the Conptroller GCeneral asks that agencies
voluntarily provide these disclosures for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2002.

CAPITAL ASSET AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BALANCES

Your agency nust disclose the followng data within each asset
category (with depreciable assets reported separately from non-
depreciable assets, and assets associated wth governnental
activities reported separately from those associated wth

busi ness-type activities)(GASB Cod. Secs. 2300.111 and
2300. 112):

* Begi nni ng- of - year and end- of - year bal ances, W th

accumnul at ed depreci ation pr esent ed separately from

hi storical cost.
e Capital acquisitions.
« Sales or other dispositions.

e Current-period depreciation expense (only for depreciable
capi tal asset classes).

These requirenments apply to all fund types, including enterprise
and internal service funds.

The followi ng exhibit, adapted from the displays on page 245 of
GASB 34 and page 136 of the first GASB 34 I|nplenentation CGuide
is intended to illustrate the mninmum |level of detail that the
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Ofice of the Conptroller General nust obtain from agencies

regarding their capital assets.

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Increases Decreases June 30, 2002
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and iMProVEMENS. ........coouieiiiiiieiie ettt $ 29,484 $ 2,020 $ (4358) $ 27,146
Construction in progress.............cc.c...... 2,915 13,220 (14,846) 1,289
Works of art and historical treasures 1,213 185 (50) 1,348
Total capital assets not being depreciated................cccooviieiiiiiiiiiiciniine, 33,612 15,425 (19,254) 29,783
Other capital assets:
Depreciable land improvements............... 2,502 345 (124) 2,723
Infrastructure - Road and Bridge Network. 102,588 35,897 (15,566) 122,919
Buildings and improvements.................... 40,861 334 (50) 41,145
Machinery and equipment............ccoceviiiiiiiiiiii 32,110 1,544 (1,514) 32,140
VENICIES. ... 15,240 4,945 (3,515) 16,670
Depreciable works of art and historical treasures...............c.cccoccoeviiciniiennns 784 59 (50) 793
INEANGIDIES.......viiiiiciicce 514 120 (112) 522
Total other capital assets at historical COSt............coiiiiiiiiiiiiieie e 194,599 43,244 (20,931) 216,912
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Depreciable land improvements.............cccooirieiinieniecnceec e (423) (41) 38 (426)
Infrastructure - Road and Bridge Network... (45,366) (15,289) 12,337 (48,318)
Buildings and improvements..............ccccoooeeiciiicic i (10,358) (691) 8 (11,041)
Machinery and equipmMeNt............cccoieeiieeieeaiee e (9,247) (2,676) 1,040 (10,883)
VENICIES. .....oovoeeiceeeecee et (4,126) (895) 2,845 (2,176)
Depreciable works of art and historical treasures.... (89) (10) 5 (94)
INEANGIDIES. ... (53) (14) 13 (54)
Total accumulated depreciation..............cccoccoveiiiieiiiiiieie e (69,662) (19,616) 16,286 (72,992)
Other capital @SSELS, NEL........uiiiiiii e 124,937 23,628 (4,645) 143,920
Capital assets for governmental activities, Net..........cccceeevieeiniienniiee e $ 158,549 $ 39,053 $ (23,899) $ 173,703

Business-type activities:
GASB 34 requires a separate display, like the one above, for business-type activities (l.e., Enterprise Funds).

OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURES FOR CAPITAL ASSETS

Agenci es nust disclose certain information in the notes to the
fi nanci al statenents regar di ng construction comm t ment s
out standi ng, construction period interest, and noncapitalized
collections of wrks of art and historical treasures as

explained in the foll ow ng sections.

Construction Commitments Outstanding

Your agency must disclose any construction commtnents
outstanding at year-end in the notes to the financial statenents
(GASB Cod. Sec. 2300.106(k)). Your agency nay have projects to
construct new capital assets or to repair or nmintain existing
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capital assets. Some such projects nmay be only partially
conplete at June 30. |If there are signed contracts in existence

at June 30 that commit the State to pay anobunts in the future
for portions of projects that were inconplete at June 30, these
anount s are said to represent construction commtnents

out standi ng at June 30.

construction comm tment s out st andi ng at June
(a) capital projects and (b) repair/ mintenance projec
agency need only report construction commtnents th

To compute the amobunt of comm tnents outstanding:

at June 30.

progress at June 30 as foll ows:

» The contract price.

start of the project through June 30.

payabl e as of June 30 of the current fiscal year

* Add together the outstanding anounts for all
projects in progress at June 30.

 Add t oget her t he out st andi ng anount s
repai r/ mai ntenance projects in progress at June 30.

State policy requires agencies to separately report

30
ts.
at

$100, 000 per category. For exanple, if you had commtnents of
$350,000 for capital projects and commtnents of $75,000 for
repai r/ mai ntenance projects, report only the $350,000 for
capital projects in the notes to the financial statenents.

e Determ ne your agency's construction projects in progress

e Conpute the outstanding commtnent for each project in

> Less: Amounts the State has paid contractors from the

> Less: Amounts relating to the project that your
has reported as accounts payable and/or retainages

f or

their
for:
Your

exceed

agency

capital

al |
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Construction Period Interest

The cost of <capital assets constructed by enterprise and
internal service funds nust 1include any associated interest
expense incurred during the construction period (except for

interest paid on State Capital [Inprovenent Bonds). Thi s
associated interest expense 1is called construction period
i nterest. The cost of capi t al assets constructed by
governnmental funds should not include construction period
i nterest.

Noncapitalized Collections of Works of Art and Historical Treasures

GAAP do not require capitalization of certain collections (refer
to page 53 for the characteristics that a collection nust have
in order to qualify for this treatnent). For collections of
works of art and historical treasures not capitalized, your
agency nust disclose a description of the collection and the
reasons these assets are not required to be capitalized.*

SHORT-TERM DEBT

Paragraph 12 of GASB 38 requires governnents to provide details
in the notes to the financial statenents about short-term debt
activity during the year, even if no short-term debt 1is
outstanding at year-end. Short-term debt results from
borrowi ngs characterized by anticipation notes, use of lines of
credit, and simlar |loans. Details should include:

* A schedule of <changes in short-term debt, disclosing
begi nni ng and end- of - year bal ances, I ncr eases, and
decr eases.

» The purpose for which the short-term debt was issued.

This disclosure is required by GAAP for the State’s fiscal year
begi nning July 1, 2002.

30 GASB Codi fication Section 2300.113.
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Short-term debt for purposes of this disclosure is |

out si de of State governnent.

anounts owed to a lending institution or to another entity

imted to

disclosure in their stand-alone financial statenents
fiscal years ending Decenber 31, 2002.

To allow the State to present this disclosure when it is
requi red, agencies with a Decenber 31 year-end nust present this

for their

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Paragraph 119 of GASB 34 requires that note disclosure about

| ong-term obligations include:

* Beginning- and end-of-year balances (regardless of whether

prior-year data are presented on the face
government -w de financial statenents).

* Increases and decreases (separately presented).

of t he

* The portions of each item that are due within one year of

the statenent date.

* Wiich governnental funds typically have been
liquidate other long-term obligations (such as ¢
absences and pension liabilities) in prior years.

used to
onpensat ed

|l ong-term obligations, the notes to the financial
should include all of the followng information for
long-term debt issues that are not reported in
Treasurer’s O fice Debt Managenent System These are
notes for which the State Treasurer’s Ofice does not
debt service paynents.

e Purpose for which the debt was issued.

e Oiginal amount of the debt.

In addition to the GAAP nandated disclosures in connection with

statenents
i ndi vi dual
the State
bonds and

make the
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e Type of debt (revenue bonds or general obligation bonds, for
i nst ance) .

» Significant debt covenants.
e Amounts of install ments.
e Interest rate.

 The terns by which interest rates change for variable rate
debt out st andi ng.

* Range of maturities.

e Applicability of federal arbitrage regul ations.

This information is needed to conply with the GFQA Certificate
of Achi evenent for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program

Long-Term Obligations Disclosures—Level of Detail

The GFOA's Certificate of Achi evenent Program requires
participants to present several statistical tables related to
debt, including the follow ng:

* Net General nligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita.

e Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for GCeneral
bl igation Debt to Total General Governnental Expenditures.

» Revenue Bond Coverage-Enterprise Funds.

The financial anmounts presented in these tables, such as
l[iability anpbunts, nust be traceable to the financial section of
the statew de CAFR This nmeans that the State's notes to the
financial statenments nust present general obligation debt and
revenue debt in separate accounts and nust disclose debt service
to maturity separately for general obligation debt and revenue
debt .




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

POLI Cl ES—+I NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR ZECTI N
SUBJECT | SSUE DATE
FOOTNOTE DI SCLOSURE 06. 30. 2002
PAGE
106

Note disclosures in agency financial statements nust present
general obligation debt and revenue debt in separate accounts
and nust detail debt service to maturity separately for genera
obl i gati on debt and revenue debt.

Al so see CLASSI FI CATION OF STATE H GHWAY BONDS on page 127 and
CLASSI FI CATI ON OF STATE | NSTI TUTI ON BONDS on page 132.

Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The exanple below is adapted from the note on page 67 of the
second GASB 34 Inplenentation Guide. It is intended to
illustrate the mninmum level of detail that the Ofice of the
Comptroll er CGeneral nust obtain from agencies regarding changes
in their long-termobligations.

The State's policy is that audited financial statenents to be
incorporated into the State's basic financial statenents nust
at a mninmum separately present Bonds Payable, Notes Payabl e,
Certificates of Participation Payable, Loans Payable, Capital
Leases Payable, dCainms and Judgnents Payable, Conpensated
Absences Payable, etc., on the face of the financial statenents.
However, Bonds Payable and Notes Payable information nust be
separated further into General Obligation and Revenue debt for
t he note disclosures.

Al though the sanple below is for business-type activities, a
simlar display also is required for governnental activites.
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Changes in long-term obligations
Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2002, were as follows (expressed in thousands):
Beginning Ending Due

Balance Balance Within
July1,2001 Increases Decreases June 30,2002 One Year

Business-type activities

Notes payable..........ccccceeeveveveineneene. $ 1208 $ — $ (954 % 249 $ 249

General obligation bonds payable....... 32,670 22,205 (22,300) 32,575 6,500
Revenue bonds payable...................... 14,485 15,840 (14,485) 15,840 3,715
Certificates of participation payable..... 12,135 6,299 (4,133) 14,301 2,716
Claims and judgements payable......... 4,230 1,250 (1,000) 4,480 1,112
Capital leases payable.............c.cccceeeee 7,993 5,200 (1,792) 11,401 2,560
Compensated absences payable........ 5,637 2,744 (2,939) 5,342 550
Other ... 100 25 (30) 95 95
Business-type activities

long-term obligations.............cccce..... $ 78,353 $53,563 $ (47633 $ 84,283 $17,497

Debt Service to Maturity

Paragraph 10 of GASB 38 requires governnents to disclose the
follow ng details of debt service requirenents to maturity:

e Principal and interest requirenments to maturity, presented
separately, for each of the five subsequent fiscal years
and in five-year increnents thereafter. | nt er est
requirenents for variable-rate debt should be determ ned
using the rate in effect at the financial statenent date.

* The ternms by which interest rates change for variable-rate
debt .

Agencies must disclose debt service requirenents as described
above.

The exanple below, adapted from the note on page 68 of the
second GASB 34 Inplenentation Quide, is intended to illustrate
the mninmum | evel of detail that the Ofice of the Conptroller
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CGeneral nust obtain from agencies regarding their debt service
requirenents in order to conply with GASB 34 and GASB 38. The
t ot al principal anpbunts in the note nust agree to the
corresponding debt anobunts shown on the Balance Sheet or
Statenent of Net Assets. This may require insertion of one or
nore pairs of total colums in the note if general obligation
and revenue debt were not segregated in the financial
st at ement s.

The State’'s requirement to segregate general obligation and
revenue debt also applies to the schedules that present debt
service to maturity.

The illustration below is for governnental activities, but
GASB 34 also requires a simlar display for business-type
activities. ( NOTE: This illustration assunmes that the State

agency reports a single Bonds Payable account in its financia
statenents.)

Debt service requirements
Debt senice requirements on long-term obligations at June 30, 2002, are as follows (expressed in thousands):
Governmental Activities

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Total Bonds Notes
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2003 $ 46,715 $ 103,786 $ 8220 $ 5012 $ 54,935 $ 108,798 $ 104,651 $ 176,352

2004 64,157 96,381 4,810 4,273 68,967 100,654 91,219 173,677
2005 47,080 88,486 340 3,303 47,420 91,789 86,521 168,497
2006 59,628 80,721 400 3,272 60,028 83,993 84,912 164,375
2007 52,594 72,893 460 3,237 53,054 76,130 120,155 158,413
2008-2012 95,212 199,513 40,025 9,386 135,237 208,899 588,076 989,281
2013-2017 95,212 199,513 292 79 95,504 199,592 588,076 989,281

$ 460,598 $ 841,292 $54,547 $28562 $ 515,145 $ 869,854 $1,663,610 $2,819,876

REFUNDINGS OF DEBT

For current refundings and advance refundings resulting in
def easance of debt reported by proprietary funds, the difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying anount of
the old debt should be deferred and anortized as a conponent of
interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the
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remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt
whi chever is shorter. On the Statenent of Net Assets, this
deferred anobunt should be reported as a deduction from or an

addition to the new debt liability (GASB 23,
anended by GASB 34 paragraphs 15 and 91).

par agraph 4, as

When applicable, the notes to the financial

l[iability shown in the financial statenents.

t he notes.

provi de the deferred anmount on refundings. For
presentation, the amount is shown at the bottom of the debt
service to maturity schedule in order to reconcile the total
future principal debt service anpbunt to the outstanding debt

required by GASB 23 for refundings also should be included in

statenents nust
st at ewi de CAFR

Al'l discl osures

LEASES

Most disclosure requirenents for capital and operating |eases

come from FASB 13, as anended (FASB Cod.
GASB Cod. Sec. L20.

Separate Presentation for Leases With Different Types of Parties

Sec. L10), and

purchases, agencies nmnust separately present

includes the disclosures for (a) operating

capital assets under capital |eases.

For operating |leases and for capi tal | eases/instal | ment

required by GAAP for transactions with each of the follow ng

three groups: (a) other funds, other State agencies, and
bl ended conponent units, (b) discretely presented conponent
units of the State, and (c) external parties (i.e., those
entirely outside the State’'s financial reporting entity). Thi s

(b) the schedules for future paynents under operating |eases and
capital |eases/installnment purchases, and (c) the schedule of

the discl osures

| ease expenses,

The O fice of the Conptroller General requires these details
because it nust treat |eases between funds, State agencies, and
State blended conponent units as internal transactions rather

than as debt. Li kewi se, special rules apply
between the State’'s primary governnment and
presented conmponent units. (See GASB Cod. Sec.

to transactions
its discretely
L20. 119 through
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L20. 124.) Contact the Central State Financial Reporting
Division of the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral if you have
guesti ons. APPENDI X B—HE STATE' S DI SCRETELY PRESENTED

COVPONENT UNI TS and APPENDI X C-AGENCI ES BY FUNCTI ON shoul d hel p
agencies to apply this guidance.

Five-Year Increments After the First Five Subsequent Fiscal Years

Paragraph 11 of GASB 38 requires the State to disclose the
future mninmum paynents for each of the five subsequent fisca
years and in five-year increnents thereafter for its obligations
under capital and noncancel able operating |eases. Thi s
requirenent is effective for the State’'s fiscal year ended
June 30, 2002.

Schedules of Capital and Operating Leases

Several of the disclosure requirenents for capital and operating
| eases could be satisfied by presenting a schedule for capita
| eases and a schedule for operating leases with the follow ng
rows and col ums:

Rows for each of the follow ng:
* Each of the next five years.*
e Separate five-year increnents thereafter.*
e Total m nimm paynents,* excluding contingent rentals.
e Less: Interest and executory costs.

* Present value of net mninmumlease paynents.

Col ums for each of the foll ow ng:

* Leases with other State agencies and blended conponent
units.*

* Leases with discretely presented conponent units.*
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* Leases with external parties.*

*These rows and colums pertain to both capital and operating
| ease schedul es.

The follow ng additional schedule could be presented to satisfy
addi tional requirements for operating | eases:

Rows for each of the follow ng:
e Total current-year mnimmrental paynents.
* Plus total current-year contingent rental paynents.

* Less: total current-year subl ease rental paynents.

Col ums for each of the foll ow ng:

 (Qperating leases with other State agencies and blended
conmponent units.

e (Qperating leases with discretely presented conponent units.
e (Qperating |leases with external parties.

Carrying Value of Assets Under Capital Leases

FASB 13, as anended, requires the disclosure of the carrying
value of assets recorded under capital |eases. The | eased
assets nust be reported in the <capital asset categories
described in CAPI TAL ASSETS—CATEGORI ES FOR FI NANCI AL REPORTI NG
on page 49.

This requirenment could be satisfied by presenting a schedule
with the follow ng rows and col umms:

Rows for each of the follow ng:

» Each asset category having capital -1 eased assets.
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e Total assets acquired under capital | eases (before
accurnul ated anorti zation).
e Less: Accunul ated anorti zati on.
« Total assets acquired under capital |eases, net.
Col ums for each of the foll ow ng:
 Capital leases wth other State agencies and blended

conponent units.
e Capital leases with discretely presented conponent units.
» Capital leases with external parties.
Facilities Leased to Others

The total cost of property leased to others wunder operating
| eases nust be discl osed. This requirenment could be satisfied
by presenting a schedule with the follow ng rows and col umms:

Rows for each of the follow ng:

* Each category of capital assets as described in CAPITAL
ASSETS—CATEGORI ES FOR FI NANCI AL REPORTI NG on page 49.

e Less: Depreciation.

» Total carrying val ue.

Col ums for each of the foll ow ng:

* Leased to other State agencies and bl ended conponent units
under operating | eases.

* Leased to discretely presented conponent units under
operating | eases.

» Leased to external parties under operating |eases.
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In addition, the future mninmm paynents to be received from
others under operating |eases nust be disclosed. Thi s
requi renent could be satisfied by presenting a schedule with the
foll owi ng rows and col umms:

Rows for each of the follow ng:
» Each of the next five years.
e Separate five-year increnents thereafter.

e Total future m ninum paynents to be received.

Col ums for each of the foll ow ng:

* Leased to other State agencies and bl ended conponent units
under operating | eases.

 Leased to discretely presented conponent units under
operating | eases.

» Leased to external parties under operating |eases.
Contingent Rentals Associated with Capital Leases

Contingent rentals nust be excluded from total mninum capita
| ease paynents, and a narrative disclosure should call attention
to the fact that the total m ninum paynments on capital |eases do
not include contingent rentals (if there were any contingent
rental s).

In addition, the follow ng nmust be disclosed in this situation:

e Contingent rentals paid during the current year to other
State agencies and blended conponent wunits wunder capital
| eases.

« Contingent rentals paid during the current vyear to
di scretely presented conponent units.
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« Contingent rentals paid during the current year to externa
parties.

DETAIL OF STATE APPROPRIATIONS RECORDED AS REVENUE

The Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral nust reclassify State
CGeneral Fund appropriations used by other GAAP funds to present
them as transfers from the General Fund to other GAAP funds in
the statew de CAFR Transfers into the other funds nust equa
transfers out of the General Fund. Accordingly, the Ofice of
the Conptroller General nust reconcile appropriations recorded
as revenue on agency fund financial statenents wth the
correspondi ng amounts recorded in the General Fund in STARS.

Agencies are required to present a detailed schedule of State
Ceneral Fund appropriations, either in the notes to their
financial statenments or following the basic financial statenents
(i.e., as supplenentary information). State appropriations that
your agency receives from anot her agency, such as the Conm ssion
on Hi gher Education, should be listed separately. Proprietary
funds nust separately report the details of State non-capital
appropriations (recorded as non-operating revenues) and capita
appropri ations. The schedule should display all of the
follow ng details that are applicable:
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NON-CAPITAL APPROPRIATIONS
Current year's appropriations:
Original appropriations per Annual Appropriations Act... $
Supplemental appropriations (Act#__ )...ccooveviieennnnn.
Supplemental appropriations (Act # __ )ooooviiiiiiinnnnns
From Commission on Higher Education:
Performance Funding............cccooovviiiiiiiii e
Academic ENdOWMENt..........ccuviiniiiiiiei e
Other (describe).......coovviieiiieii e,
From SC Education Lottery Fund...............ccooovvvneennnns
Other (describe).........cooiiiiiiiii e,
Less: Prior year's appropriations recorded as
CUITENE YEAI TEVENUE. ...t eieteeeieeeteeei e e et eeiiaeeenaeeannns
Plus: Next year's appropriations recorded as
CUITENE YEAI TEVENUE. ... eiiteeeieieie et e eeees
Other adjustments (describe)

Total non-capital appropriations recorded as current
L= LA =NV L= LU= $ a

CAPITAL APPROPRIATIONS

Current year's appropriations:
Original appropriations per Annual Appropriations Act... $
Supplemental Appropriations (Act# __ )..ccoeeeiininnnnn.
Supplemental Appropriations (Act# __ )..ccooeviininnnnn.
From Commission on Higher Education.......................
From SC Education Lottery Fund...............coooeviiinnnnnns
Other (descCribe).......covvviiiiiei e

Less: Prior year's appropriations recorded as
CUITENE YEAI TEVENUE. ...t it eeeieeeteeeiie e e e e eeenaeeenes

Plus: Next year's appropriations recorded as
CUITENE YEAI TEVENUE. ...t eieteeeieeetaeei e e eeiaeeenaeeannes
Other adjustments (describe)..........cc.covvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinins
Total capital appropriations recorded as current
YEAI TEVEINUE.....euvviiiiieeee et e eetieie e e e e e e e e e e $ b

Must match non-capital State appropriations recorded as revenue in fund
financial statements.

PMust match State capital appropriations recorded as revenue in fund
financial statements.
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Pl ease show appropriation reduction anmounts separatel y—either on
the schedule as an adjustnent to the relevant type of
appropriation, as an “other adjustnent” on the schedule, or in a
note or narrative associated with the schedul e.

GASB Cod. Sec. 1800.112 requires that governnental entities
report both governnental and proprietary fund revenues by nmgjor
source. The above schedul e provides readers of agency financia
statenents with pertinent information regarding the sources of
the agency’'s appropriations recorded as revenue as well as
providing data to the Ofice of the Conptroller that is needed
for preparation of the statew de CAFR

REQUIRED DISCLOSURE OF UNRECOGNIZED PLEDGES DEEMED NOT
MEASURABLE

The State generally is required to recognize receivables and
revenues for pledges (see REQUI RED RECOGNI TION OF PLEDGES AS
RECEI VABLES AND REVENUES on page 77 for nore details). I n
addi ti on, CGenerally Accepted Accounting Principles require
di sclosure of “transactions that are not recognizable because
they are not rmeasurable.”3! Accordingly, a disclosure 1is
necessary if certain pledges are not recogni zable because they
are not neasurabl e.

As a matter of policy, the State has adopted the follow ng
standards relative to the disclosure of pledges that were not
recogni zed as receivables and revenues because they were deened
to be “not neasurable” (i.e., not capable of estimation).

e The disclosure nust describe the particular unrecognized
pl edges in such a way that the reader can distinguish those
pl edges from the majority of other pledges to State
agencies that are neasurable and/or are recognized as
revenue.

31 pParagraph 11 of GASB 33; GASB Cod. Sec. N50.108 (2001-2002 GASB 34
Edition).
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e The disclosure nust include specific reasons why the
particul ar pledges under discussion are not considered
measurable. It is not sufficient to say that the anount of
the pledges could not be estinated because that is nerely
provi ding a generic synonym for “not measurable.”

e If the specific reason for deemng a pledge as “not
nmeasurable” relates in sone way to the pledge being deened
“not verifiable,” “not probable of collection,” or to the
exi stence of currently unnmet eligibility requirenents, the
di scl osure should explain specifically how these additiona
deficiencies relate to the |ack of neasurability.

e |If your agency w shes to disclose neasurable pledges that
were not recognized as revenue during the current fisca
year for valid reasons other than |ack of mneasurability
(for exanple, eligibility requirenents were not yet net, or
the pledge was deened “not verifiable” or “not probable of
collection”), please clearly distinguish these neasurable
pl edges fromthe unnmeasurabl e ones.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS—REVENUE FROM INTERNAL CUSTOMERS

For i nt ernal service funds, the notes to the financial
statenents nust include a breakdown of revenue derived from
i nternal custoners. For governnental payor funds, revenue nust

be reported by function (see APPENDI X C-AGENCI ES BY FUNCTI ON)
For proprietary payor funds, revenue nust be reported by
activity. For nore information, please see Section 5, FINANCI AL
STATEMENT COVPONENTS.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Par agr aph 122 of GASB 34 as amended by paragraph 17 of GASB 37°%
states that governnments reporting enterprise funds or using
enterprise fund accounting to report their activities are

32 ANlternatively, see GASB Cod. Secs. 2500.101 through .102 and the
nonaut horitati ve di scussion at GASB Cod. Sec. 2500.901
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required to present segnent information for those activities in

the notes to the financial statenments. For

purposes of this

di sclosure, a segnent is an identifiable activity (or grouping
of activities), as discussed in paragraph 39b, footnote c,
reported as or within an enterprise fund or an other stand-al one

entity that has one or nore bonds or other

debt instrunents

(such as certificates of participation) outstanding, wth a
revenue stream pledged in support of that debt. In addition,
the activity’ s revenues, expenses, gains and |osses, assets, and
liabilities are required by an external party® to be accounted

for separately. For exanpl e, accounti ng
requi renents commonly are set forth in bond i

and reporting
ndent ur es. Al so

see Questions 115 and 127 in the second GASB 34 Inplenentation

Gui de.

Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles do not
reporting when an individual fund both is a

requi re segnent
segnent and is

reported as a major fund.® In sone cases, however, an agency’s
maj or fund may constitute only a part of one of the State's

maj or funds. In this situation, GAAP would

require that the

st at ewi de CAFR present segnent disclosure for the agency’ s nmjor

fund.

An agency mnust identify, by name, wthin the notes to its
financial statenents, any of its major funds that are segnents.

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Professional literature®* requires disclosures

about materi al

transactions with related parties outside the State’s financi al
reporting entity as defined by GASB Statenent 14. |In accordance

3% paragraph 17 of GASB 37; footnote g to paragraph 17 of GASB 37.

34 Footnote 48, GASB 34 (al so Footnote 1, GASB Cod. Sec. 2500.101).

3% See pages 202-203 of the 2001 edition of Governmental

Accounting, Auditing

and Financial Reporting published by GFOA. Al so see ARB 43, Chapter 1A and

FASB 57.
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with this guidance, the State’s policy®*® is to present the
followi ng disclosures regarding related parties, including so-
called affiliated organi zati ons and fund-raising entities:

 Nanme of the organization if its total assets exceed
$2 mllion.

* A description of the transactions between the State and
such organi zation, including dollar anpbunts and such other
information as is deened necessary for an understandi ng of
the effects of the transactions on the State’s financial
st at enent s. Such transactions and anounts disclosed for
each organization with assets in excess of $2 mllion shall
i nclude each of the following, if applicable:

> Receivables fromthe rel ated organi zati on recorded by the
State at June 30.

» Payables to the related organization recorded by the
State at June 30.

> Donations of cash and other assets from the organi zation
to the State.

> State expenditures/expenses paid to the organization.

> Reinbursenents to the State for expenditures/expenses the
State incurred on behalf of the organization.

e Data regarding any other related party transactions having
a significant effect on the statew de financial statenents.

At a mninum agency financial statenents incorporated into the
statewide CAFR shall include the above disclosures regarding
related organi zations and related party transactions. Agenci es
are encouraged to use a tabular format if there are two or nore
rel ated organi zati ons.

3¢ Adapted from Section R36.102, FASB Accounting Standards as of June 1, 2001.
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If the agency’'s footnotes disclose information regarding
organi zations with assets of $2 mllion or less, they should
indicate (either in the footnotes or in a separate comrunication
addressed to the Central State Financial Reporting D vision of
the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral) which of the disclosed
organi zations do not neet the State’s $2 mllion threshold.
This supplenmentary information is necessary to allow the State’s
disclosure to focus on significant organizations and their
transactions with the State.

REQUIRED INFORMATION ON BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES FOR THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Enterprise funds, if not required by GAAP to present governnent-
wide financial statenents, nust provide infornmation needed on
busi ness-type activities for the State's gover nnment - wi de
Statenent of Activities wthin the notes to the agency’s
financi al statenents.

The follow ng informati on nmust be included in the footnote:
» Charges for services (revenues).

e (Qperating grants and contri butions (revenues).

e Capital grants and contributions (revenues).

* Expenses.

e Earnings on investnents.

e Special and extraordinary itemns.

e Contributions to term and permanent endownents.

e State appropriations.

e Oher transfers in fromother State agencies/funds.

e Transfers out to other State agencies/funds.
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The exanple below is intended to illustrate the m ninum | evel of
detail that the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral nust obtain
from agency financial statenents. The notes to an agency’s

financial statenments nust present this information separately
for:

* Any portion of its operations that is incorporated into one
of the State’s nmmjor enterprise funds (see APPEND X DTHE
STATE' S MAJOR ENTERPRI SE FUNDS)

e Each different identifiable activity accounted for wthin
the State’s non-mmj or enterprise funds

* Each discretely presented busi ness-type conponent unit.

Charges for ServiCes.........cocccvieeiiiiiiiiieeee e $ 10,000
Operating grants and contributions.............ccccccveeeieinns 6,500
Capital grants and contributions.............cccccccceeeiiiinnnee. 5,000
LESS: EXPENSES....cciicevviieeeee e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e st eraaa e (18,000)
Net program revenue (EXPENSE)........eeeveeeeeriecvrreeeeeaaanns 3,500
General revenues:
Earnings on investmentsS..........ooccvieeeiiie i 1,000
Other general revenues (describe)...........ccccvvvveereeenn. 575
Special/extraordinary items (describe)............cccuvveeeeee.. 250
Contributions to permanent & term endowments.......... 500
Transfers:
State appropriation..........cccuveeeeeeeiiiiciiiieee e 1,500
Other transfers in from state agencies/ funds.............. 1,000
Less: transfers out to state agencies/funds............... (2,500)
Total general revenue and transfers 2,325
Change in Net asSetS.........cccvvviveiee e 5,825
Net assets-beginning...........cvvierriiiiiiieeee e 50,000
Net assets-ending..........cocvveeeiiiiieeeiiiiee e $ 55,825

NET ASSETS CATEGORIZED DIFFERENTLY IN STATEWIDE CAFR THAN IN
AGENCY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In sone cases, net assets may be categorized in a particular
manner wthin the agency’'s audited financial statenents but
should be categorized differently within the statew de CAFR
For exanple, suppose that an economc devel opnent agency
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presents a portion of its net assets as wunrestricted in its
agency’s financial statenents because the corresponding net
assets may be used for any legitimte agency purpose (and/or for
any purpose within the State’s econonic devel opnent function).
These net assets, however, should be presented as restricted in
the statewi de CAFR because they may not be used by different
functions within State governnent (e.g., transportation, social
services, etc.).

Agency financial statements nust disclose (either within the
Notes to the Financial Statements or wthin supplenentary
information) any situations where net assets in the agency’'s
financial statenments should be classified differently within the
st at ewi de CAFR. The di scl osure shoul d provi de full
expl anations/reasons for the difference in presentation.
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SECTION /—DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

This section of the policy manual applies only to the Departnent
of Transportation (DOT). DOT should follow the policies and
guidance in this section along with the policies and guidance in
sections 1 through 6.

INFRASTRUCTURE

The O fice of the Conptroller GCeneral will limt the reported
“infrastructure” category of capital assets wthin the State's
primary government to the Department of Transportation’s (DOT s)
roads and bridges. The DOT will report the roads and bridges
owned by the State. Also, in the absence of clear title to a
particul ar roadway or bridge, the DOT should report the asset if
the State is responsible for future maintenance.?

The Department of Transportation’s roads and bridges neet the
definition of general infrastructure assets.

The term general infrastructure assets refers to those
infrastructure assets that are associated with, and generally
arise from governnental activities. In determ ning the roads

and bridges that DOl needs to report under GASB 34, you nust
consider two different groups:

* Roads and bridges acquired on or before June 30, 2001, and

* Roads and bridges acquired on or after July 1, 2001.
Reporting Roads and Bridges Acquired on or Before June 30, 2001

The State of South Carolina is required to report major genera
infrastructure assets acquired on or before June 30, 2001.°38
Only maj or gener al infrastructure assets acquired or

37 See Question 286 of the first GASB 34 |nplenentation Guide (2001).

%8 See Paragraph 148 of GASB 34.
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significantly i mproved in fiscal years endi ng after
June 30, 1980, are required to be reported. The determ nation

of major general infrastructure assets is nmade at the network or
subsystem | evel .

A network is conprised of all assets that provide a particul ar
type of service for our governnment, and a subsystem consists of
all assets that nmake up a portion or segnment of a network. For
exanpl e, DOT could define the State’'s transportation system as a
network and the roads and bridges as two subsystens of the
net wor K. DOT could also consider the roads and bridges to be
two networks, wth interstate highways, State highways, and
rural roads as subsystens of the road network.

A network or subsystem of South Carolina s roads and bridges is
a major general infrastructure asset if either of the follow ng
is true:

e The cost or estimated cost of the network is expected to be
at |east $240, 681, 900. *

* The cost or estimated cost of the subsystemis expected to
be at |east $120, 340, 950. *°

DOT nust report roads and bridges acquired on or Dbefore
June 30, 2001, only if the cost of the network or subsystem as

defined by DOl exceeds the above dollar anounts. GASB 34
encour ages but does not require reporting of non-nmajor networks.
Cenerally, these rules will require that a state’s network(s) of

3% Ampunt equals 10 percent of the total cost of all general capital assets
reported in the first fiscal year ending after June 15, 1999, which for the
State of South Carolina was $2,406,819,000 as reported in its Conprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. See
Par agraph 156 of GASB 34.

40 Ampunt equals 5 percent of the total cost of all general capital assets

reported in the first fiscal year ending after June 15, 1999, which for the

State of South Carolina was $2,406,819,000 as reported in its Conprehensive

Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. See

Par agraph 156 of GASB 34.
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roads and bridges be reported as major general infrastructure
asset s.
If the DOT is wunable to properly apply the State’'s $500,000
capitalization limt to infrastructure assets acquired on or

policy of capitalizing all projects that were initiated
before June 30, 2001, regardless of cost. This dis

infrastructure acquired on or before June 30, 2001, unti
time as this amount is deened too immterial to disclose.

before June 30, 2001, then the DOl should fully disclose its

should include the total dol | ar anount of capitalized

on or
cl osure

| such

Transition Period for Reporting Roads and Bridges Acquired on or Before June 30, 2001

GASB 34 includes a provision that allows governnents to p
the required reporting of major general infrastructure
acquired on or before June 30, 2001. The State may p
reporting these major general infrastructure assets acqu
or before June 30, 2001, until the fiscal year

ost pone
assets
ost pone
red on
endi ng

June 30, 2006:“* however, this postponenent is discouraged by
both GASB 34 and the Ofice of the Conptroller General. A
simlar provision does not exist for reporting the debt

associated with constructed infrastructure assets. The
the Ofice of the Conptroller General would prefer to

refore,
record

infrastructure assets on the State’'s financial statenments to
offset the related debt that wll be reported. The State w |
be required to describe in the notes to the financial statenents

those infrastructure assets that are not being reported if the
State chooses to delay the reporting of major general
infrastructure assets past t he fiscal year endi ng
June 30, 2002.%

Reporting Roads and Bridges Acquired on or After July 1, 2001

All infrastructure assets acquired by governnental funds on or

after July 1, 2001, nmust be reported in the separate

41 See Paragraph 148 of GASB 34.

42 See Paragraph 151 of GASB 34.
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infrastructure category of depreciable capital assets if the

cost of the asset exceeds the $500, 000 capital
i nfrastructure.

zation limt for

Depreciation of Roads and Bridges

The State’s roads and bridges should be depre

valid reason to do so.

straight-line method over a 75-year useful life for roads and a
50-year useful life for bridges. The Ofice of
CGeneral recommends that the DOT take a full year of depreciation
in the year of acquisition and take no depreciation in the year
of disposition. However, the DOT may use a different straight-
line convention (such as the md-nonth convention) if it has a

ciated using the

the Conptroller

Maintenance of Infrastructure Records

The Departnent of Transportation is requir

as acquisition date, historical or estimted hi

determ ned to be capitalizable.

conplete auditable records of all infrastructure assets in a
|l evel of detail that allows for accurate reporting of these
asset s. Infrastructure records should include such information

policy for distinguishing between capitalizable costs and
repai r/ mai nt enance costs, and an estimated useful life for costs

ed to mintain

storical cost, a

CAPITAL OUTLAY

The term capital outlay refers to the exchange of one asset
(cash) for anot her asset (capi tal asset) . Ther ef or e,

expenditures in the Capital OQutlay category

reported in the

Statenent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Bal ances, Gover nient al Funds, nmust i nclu
expenditures that are capitalized 1in the
Statenent of Net Assets. Capital outlay

de only t hose
gover nment - w de
expenditures for

infrastructure include only those expenditures that increase
capacity (for exanple, construction of a new bridge, w dening of
an existing road, or the addition of interstate entrance and

exit ranps). Capital outlay expenditures
resurfacing or other repair and mai nt enance cost

do not include
S.
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CLASSIFICATION OF STATE HIGHWAY BONDS

State Hi ghway Bonds should be classified as general obligation
bonds.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION—BUDGETARY COMPARISON

The Departnment of Transportation (DOI) is the only entity
incorporated into the statewde CAFR from audited financial
statenents that includes an entire nmjor special revenue fund of
the State: the DOT Special Revenue Fund. If the State Genera
Assenbly prepares a separate budget for this fund, the State's
CAFR must include a budgetary conparison schedule (as Required
Suppl ementary Information) in conformty wth paragraph 130 of
GASB 34.

The O fice of the Conptroller General will incorporate into the
statewi de CAFR any required budgetary conparison information for
the DOT Special Revenue Fund from the DOI's separately issued
audi ted financial statenents.
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SECTION 8—COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES
In Novenber of 1999, GASB 35 was i ssued. This St at enment

established accounting and financial reporting standards for
public colleges and universities within the financial reporting
gui delines of GASB 34. This section of the policy manual
provi des additional policies and guidance in financial
accounting and reporting areas unique to South Carolina s State-
supported col | eges and universities.

The policies and guidance included in Sections 1 through 6 of
this manual also are applicable to the State’'s colleges and

uni versities. These sections of the manual should be reviewed
carefully to ensure that all applicable policies and guidance
are incorporated in the institution's separately issued

fi nanci al statenents.

This section of the manual and Appendix E together replace
Section 5.0, College/University Cosing Package, of the GAAP
Cl osing Procedures Manual. Accordingly, the financial statenent
spreadsheets included in the June 30, 2001, edition of the GAAP
Cl osing Procedures Manual have been revised and are included
within this policy manual (see APPENDI X E—I NANCI AL STATEMENT
SPREADSHEETS AND FORMS, COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES). The notes
portion of the closing package has been discontinued and
replaced by the policies set forth in this nanual. The O fice
of the Conptroller GCeneral plans to obtain all necessary
footnote information for colleges and universities from their
audited financial statenments.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION—GENERAL

GASB 35 permts public colleges and universities, in separately
i ssued financial statenments, to use the guidance for special-
pur pose governnments included in paragraphs 134 through 138 of
GASB 34. The South Carolina College and University Controller’s
Group, as approved by the Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral, has
chosen to report as business-type activities (BTA).
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The State requires that all colleges and universities report as
busi ness-type activities.

The coll eges and universities should present the basic financial
statenents and required supplenentary information (RSI) required
by paragraph 138 of GASB 34. Paragraph 138 requires that
governnents engaged only in BTAs should present basic financia
statenents and RSI that consist of the follow ng:

» MD&A (paragraphs 8 through 11, as appropriate).

e Enterprise fund financial statenents (paragraphs 91 through
105), consisting of:

> Statenent of Net Assets or Bal ance Sheet.

» Statenent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Asset s.

> Statenent of Cash Fl ows.

> Notes to the Financial Statenments (paragraphs 113 through
123).

> Required Supplenentary Information (RSI) other than NMD&A,
i f applicable (paragraphs 132 through 133).

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Par agraph 100 of GASB 34 defines the manner in which revenues
and expenses should be reported in the Statenent of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, Enterprise Funds. Revenues
are required to be reported by major source and to identify
separately any revenues used as security for revenue bonds.
Paragraph 123 of GASB 34 has been interpreted as allow ng
coll eges and universities to choose between reporting operating
expenses by natural or functional classification. The South
Carolina College and University Controller’s Goup, as approved
by the Ofice of the Conptroller General, has chosen to report
expenses in the Statenment of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets using the natural expense classification.
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The State requires that all colleges and universities report
operating expenses in their separately issued financial

statenments using the natural expense classification.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION—COLUMNS

Question 125 in the second GASB 34 Inplenentation Cuide,
indicates that an institution may present its core activities in

a single colum or in nultiple colums (i.e., separately
reporting auxiliary enterprises or healthcare facilities, for
exanple) in its basic financial statenents. Exercise of this

flexibility, however, would not allow for a consistent manner of
i ncorporating higher education institutions into the statew de
CAFR, because Question 128 of the second |nplenentation Cuide
states that internal transactions between the institution and
its auxiliary enterprises must be el i m nated in t he
consolidation process iif a single colum presentation 1is
sel ect ed.

The State plans to present a single consolidated enterprise
fund, the H gher Education Fund, to report all activities of its
col | eges/ uni versities, except for conmponent units. Accordingly,
each of South Carolina s colleges/universities nust present a

single consolidated enterprise fund colum for its core
activities, including auxiliary enterprises and healthcare
facilities. I nternal transactions (such as those between the

university and its auxiliary enterprises) nust be elimnated.
In addition, as discussed in Section 4, COVPONENT UNI TS,
conponent units nust be presented in separate col ums.

FINANCIAL SPREADSHEETS

The colleges and universities will be included in the State’s
basic financial statenments as enterprise funds. To allow for
consistency of reporting anong the twenty-six institutions
included in the State’s H gher Education Fund, the Ofice of the
Comptroller General has developed the financial statenent
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spreadsheets and related instructions included in Appendix E of

this manual . %3

files and nust submt them to the Ofice of
General for each of the follow ng statenents:

e« Statenent of Net Assets.

e Statenent of Cash Fl ows.

e« Due To/ From and Transfer To/ From Whr ksheet .

to the Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral

wor ksheet
the Conptroller

Coll eges and wuniversities nmust conplete electronic

« Statenment of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

Additionally, <consistent with prior years, audited financial

statenents of each institution will be required to be submtted

The Ofice of the Conptroller General mnust have

package data in order to:

e Provide data that may not appear in

Universities separate financial statenents but

in the State’s basic financial statenents.

 Elimnate or reclassify data appearing

universities’ separate financial statenments
appropriate for statew de financial reporting.

For specific requirenments related to college and
actions required and due dates for subm ssion of
information to the Ofice of the Conptroller General

APPENDI X E—I NANCI AL STATEMENT SPREADSHEETS

COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES of this manual .

this closing

coll ege and

appear

coll ege and
is not

university
request ed
refer to

FORVE,

43 Previous (now obsolete) versions of this material appeared in Section 5.0

of the GAAP C osing Procedures Manual in years before 2002.
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CLASSIFICATION OF STATE INSTITUTION BONDS

State Institution Bonds should be identified as genera
obligation bonds in college and university financial statenents.

APPROPRIATIONS VS. GRANTS

Coll eges and wuniversities should provide a clear distinction
bet ween appropriations and grants in the Statenent of Revenues
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

This will provide the Ofice of the Conptroller General with the
information necessary to record certain reclassifications of
appropriations to enterprise funds from the General Fund
properly in the State’ s basic financial statenents.

To provide for consistency, all institutions should classify
nmoney they receive from the Conm ssion on H gher Education as
appropriations or grants in accordance with guidance provided by
the Ofice of the Conptroller General (see APPENDI X F—
CLASSI FI CATI ON OF AMOUNTS RECEI VED BY COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI Tl ES
FROM THE COVMM SSI ON ON Hl GHER EDUCATION of this manual). Any
guestions regarding this guidance or its rationale should be
directed to the Central State Financial Reporting D vision of the
Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral.

Paragraph 52 of GASB 35 discusses the GASB' s deliberations
regarding the reporting of appropriations. Question 126 of the
second GASB 34 |Inplenentation QGuide also provides guidance on
appropri ations.

The State’s policy is to distinguish appropriations from grants,
operating grants, and capital grants based on definitions and
descriptions of these terns provided in GASB Cod. Secs. 1700. 113
and .114, CQuestion 126 in the second GASB 34 |nplenentation
Gui de, and paragraph 50 of GASB 34.
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PRESENTATION OF STATE GRANTS

The State requires colleges and universities to report all State
grants and contracts separately from other grants and contracts
in their separately issued financial statenents because the
recei pts nust be reclassified as “internal” when incorporated in
t he statew de CAFR

SCHOLARSHIP ALLOWANCES

Foot note 41 of paragraph 100 of GASB 34, requires that revenues
should be reported net of discounts and allowances with the
di scount or allowance anpbunt parenthetically disclosed on the
face of the statement or in a note to the basic financial
st at enent s. Al ternatively, revenues nmay be reported gross wth
the related discounts and allowances reported directly beneath
t he revenue anount.

A schol arship allowance is defined as the difference between the
stated charge for goods and services provided by the institution
and the amount that is billed to the student and/or third
parti es making paynments on behal f of the student. The reduction
of student fees below the published rate either by governnenta
mandate or a separately negotiated contract rate is not
consi dered a schol arshi p al | owance.

In agreenment with the colleges and universities, the State’'s
policy is to allow colleges and universities to use the NACUBO
AR 2000-05 Alternate Method to determine that portion of the
applicable financial aid support to be applied as scholarship
al | onances and student aid expenses.

Data needed to determine the portion of applicable financial aid
support to be applied as scholarship all owances and student aid
expenses using the Alternate Method include, but are not limted
to, the follow ng:

* Financial aid not recognized as revenue of the institution

e Institutional resources provided as financial aid
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e Third-party paynents
* Total paynments by students
» Total refunds made to students

e Total non-nonetary institutional waivers (discounts) applied
to students’ accounts.

FEDERAL PELL GRANT ACTIVITY

GASB 35 superseded GASB 19, which required federal Pell grants
to be reported as restricted current fund revenues.
Addi tionally, GASB 24 i ncl udes gui dance t hat reci pi ent
governments report pass-through grants as revenues and expenses
in their financial statenents if there is any adm nistrative or
direct financial involvenment in the program including grantor-
established «criteria. Because colleges and universities
determne eligible secondary recipients of Pell Gant funds,
Pell Grants neet the administrative requirenent.

Col l eges and universities should report Pell Gant receipts as
other operating revenues in their financial statenents and
shoul d record any anounts applied to student receivable accounts
as schol arship discounts and allowances (see also Question 132
of the second GASB 34 | npl enentation Cuide).

FEDERAL PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM ACTIVITY

The federal Perkins loan program is a revolving student |oan
program that initially was capitalized by a conbination of
federal and State nonies. Common practice under the AICPA s
accounting nodel for higher education institutions resulted in
inclusion of the federal capitalization paynents in the Fund
Bal ance account. Further, assets and liabilities associated
with the program were not necessarily reported as restricted.

Beginning July 1, 2001, concurrent with its inplenentation of
GASB 34/35, the State’'s policy is to record bal ances associ ated
with the federal Perkins |oan programat June 30 as foll ows:
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e Record the entire balance of Perkins |oans receivable as
Non- Current Restricted Assets, Student Loans Recei vabl e.

* Record any cash on hand associated with the program as
Current Restricted Assets, Cash.

* Record any outstanding admnistrative expenses associated
with the program as Liabilities Payable from Current
Restricted Assets.

e Record a liability, Perkins Loan Program-Federal Liability,
to reflect the anount of “federal capital contributions”
and any other anounts that ultimately are refundable to the
federal governnent. This total nust be at |east as large
as the amount shown in Part 1I11, Section A, Line 19
(federal capital contributions) on the institution's Fiscal
Operations Report and Application to Participate (FlSAP)
that has been (or will be) submtted to the United States
Depart ment of Education for the period ending June 30.

Coll eges and wuniversities nust report balances associated wth
the Perkins |loan programin their agency financial statenents as
descri bed above. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002,
colleges and wuniversities should report a correspondi ng
adj ustnment to beginning net assets. (Typically, this adjustnent
will require a debit to Prior Period Adjustnents of Net Assets
and a credit to the Perkins Loan Programfederal Liability
account.) These policies have resulted from ongoi ng di scussions
between the Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral and the statew de
audi tors. *

4 Please contact the Central State Financial Reporting Division, Ofice of
the Conptroller General, for nore detailed reasons underlying these
pol i ci es.
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FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE FOR DEBT SERVICE LIMITATION ON STATE
INSTITUTION BONDS

South Carolina Code of Laws Section 59-107-90 states that the
maxi mum anount of annual debt service on State Institution Bonds
for each institution shall not exceed ninety percent of the suns
received from tuition fees for the preceding fiscal year. As
stated in Section 59-107-30, the term “tuition fees” includes
fees charged for tuition, matriculation, and registration. The
term “tuition fees” does not include fees charged for enrolling
in courses or classes offered at any summer school term or in
any special semn nar.

The statewide CAFR includes certain disclosure information
related to this maxi num debt service calculation in order to
neet the GFOA requirenment to disclose any legal debt limts.
Consistent with prior years, the Ofice of the Conptroller
CGeneral nust require each of the colleges and universities to
provide certain information for disclosure purposes.

Each college and wuniversity nust include, as a footnote
disclosure in its separately issued financial statenents, the
anount of the institution’s tuition fees (as defined by Code
Section 59-107-30) for the preceding fiscal year.

FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE FOR DONOR-RESTRICTED ENDOWMENTS

Paragraph 121 of GASB 34 requires the followi ng separate note
di scl osure about donor-restricted endowrents:

e The amounts  of net appreciation (depreciation) on
i nvestnments or donor-restricted endowrents that are
avai lable for aut hori zation for expenditure by the
government board, and how those anpbunts are reported in net
assets.

 The State Jlaw regarding the ability to spend net
appreci ation.
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e The policy for authorizing and spending investnent incone,

such as a spending-rate or total-return policy.

Accordi ngly, colleges and universities nust include this
footnote disclosure for any donor-restricted endownents in their

separately issued financial statenents.

FOOTNOTE DISCLOSURE—OPERATING VS. NONOPERATING REVENUES AND

EXPENSES

regarding the definition of operating revenues
(described in Section 6, FOOTNOTE DI SCLOSURES, as
wi thin SUMVARY OF SIGNIFI CANT ACCOUNTI NG POLI Cl ES)

institution’s principal operating revenues.

anticipated that the statewi de disclosure wll i

Fund generally are limted to the foll ow ng:

educati onal services, housing, and other services

provi di ng health-rel ated services;

provi der has identified the student recipients;

[i.e., in accordance wth the description

ACCOUNTI NG PCLI CI ES]; and

In addition to the disclosure required for all enterprise funds

education institution also shall include a description of the

The | anguage that each institution uses nust be consistent with
the corresponding disclosure in the statew de CAFR It is

principal operating revenues of the State’s H gher Education

« Tuition and fees received in exchange for provi di ng

« Fees received by university hospitals in exchange for

« Receipts for scholarships (including Pell Gants) where the

« Grants reportable as operating revenues as described above

Section 6, FOOTNOTE DI SCLOSURES, under SUMVARY OF S| GNI FI CANT

« Fees received from organizations and individuals
for m scell aneous goods and services provided by the fund.

and expenses
a subsection
each hi gher

ndi cate that

to students;

included in

i n exchange
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This guidance is consistent with the fact that

students constitutes the “princi pal ongoi ng operations”

t he educati on of
(as that

phrase is used in footnote 42 of GASB 34) of the State’s Hi gher

Educati on Fund.
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APPENDIX A—OPERATING VS. NONOPERATING REVENUES, GRANTS
PRACTICE AID

State ot South Carolina
GASB 34 Questionnaire for Proprietary Funds
Financial Reporting Classification of Grant Activity

Description of Resources/Provider Organization/CFDA #:

Completed By: Date;
DEFINITIVE FACTORS—If the answer to A, B, or C is “yes,” classify the resources as N/A or
described. Skip all remaining questions; they do not apply. YES NO Unknown

A | Does the resource provider restrict the recipient's use of the resources to capital
acquisitions? [If “yes,” report the resources as a “capital contribution” on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets and within “capital and related financing
activities” on the Cash Flows Statement.]

B | If the resources consist of payments from Federal government sources, have such
resources been excluded from the State of South Carolina’s Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards for the reason that they are deemed to represent (in accordance with
specific guidance such as that included in Circular A-133) compensation for goods or
services provided as a vendor? [If “yes,” report the resources as “operating revenue” on the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets and within “operating
activities” on the Cash Flows Statement.]

C | Does the substance of the agreement appear to be such that the resource provider will
receive no significant benefit or financial value as a condition for providing the resources to
the recipient? [If “yes,” report the activity as “nonoperating revenue” on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets and as “noncapital financing activities” on
the Cash Flows Statement.]

OTHER FACTORS—If there were no “yes” answers to A through C above, complete N/A or
Questions D, E, and F below. YES NO Unknown
D | Is the substance of the agreement between provider and recipient essentially the same as
a contract for services (i.e., an exchange transaction)? [Answer “yes” if you have answered
“yes” to three or more of Questions 1 through 6 below; then continue to Questions E and F.
Otherwise, answer “no” to Questions D and F (and skip Question E).]

1 | Did the primary initiative for the project come from the resource provider rather than
from the recipient? [For example, generally answer “yes” if the provider issued a
Request For Proposals and “no” if the recipient submitted an Application for Federal
Assistance or similar application.]

2 | Did the resource provider specify the primary program objectives rather than simply
approve objectives proposed by the resource recipient?

3 | Is the resource recipient required to produce and deliver to the resource provider
deliverables that have current or potential future economic value?

4 | Is the resource provider (rather than the recipient or the general public) the primary
party that will own, control, and/or have the right to benefit financially from any
deliverables resulting from the recipient's performance?

5 | Is it fair to say that the resource provider will not derive an income tax advantage from
the agreement beyond that it would derive from a purchase of goods or services? (N/A
if resource provider is a government)

6 | If the resource recipient fails to provide deliverables in accordance with the agreement,
must the recipient pay the resource provider an amount in excess of currently
uncommitted provider resources on hand?

Page 1
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State of South Carolina
GASB 34 Questionnaire for Proprietary Funds
Financial Reporting Classification of Grant Activity
N/A or
OTHER FACTORS—CONTINUED YES NO Unknown

E | Do the resources finance a program that the resource recipient would not otherwise undertake (i.e.,
the activity is inherently part of the operations of the resource provider)? [Answer “yes” if you have
answered “yes” to two or more of Questions 1 through 3 below. Otherwise, answer “no.”]

1 | Do the resources finance a program that the recipient would not otherwise undertake (for
example, a senior citizens' transportation service)?

2 | Would it be fair to say that the resources do not subsidize any of the recipient's existing
programs?

3 | Do the resources reimburse the costs of a new program for the recipient, the activity of which is
inherently part of the operations of the resource provider? [Answer “yes” if the resources
provide goods or services to the resource provider's programs.]

F | Did you answer “yes" to both Questions D and E above? [If “yes,” report the resources as “operating
revenue” on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets and within
“operating activities” on the Cash Flows Statement. If “no,” report the activity as “nonoperating
revenue” on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets and as “noncapital
financing activities” on the Cash Flows Statement.]

TERMINOLOGY AND FORMAT

In this questionnaire, the term grant is used loosely to mean an agreement between a resource provider or grantor and a resource recipient or grantee
(rather than in the narrower sense defined in GASB Statement 24). Such agreements sometimes restrict the grantee’s use of the resources or grant
proceeds in certain respects and/or require the grantee to perform certain work or to produce certain end results or deliverables.

Key responses are shaded; inappropriate responses are cross-hatched.

PURPOSE OF QUESTIONNAIRE

In accordance with Paragraph 102 of GASB 34, the State of South Carolina has established the following policy, which shall be disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements of (a) the statewide CAFR and (b) each proprietary fund incorporated into the statewide CAFR from audited financial statements:

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues generally
result from exchange transactions to provide goods or services related to a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses result from producing and delivering those goods and services. Grants are reportable as operating revenues only if they (a) are
essentially the same as contracts for services (i.e., exchange transactions) and (b) finance programs that the proprietary fund would not
otherwise undertake (i.e., the activity of the grant is inherently part of the operations of the grantor).

The purpose of this questionnaire is to evaluate proprietary fund grants to determine their proper classification (a) on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets in accordance with the above policy and (b) on the Cash Flows Statement in accordance with Paragraphs 17a, 17c,
21b, and 24b of GASB 9 and Question 63 of the GASB 9 Implementation Guide.

Page 2
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APPENDIX B—THE STATE'S DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

The following entities are presented in the State’s CAFR as
di scretely presented conponent units:

* First Steps to School Readi ness Board of Trustees
* Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper)

e State Ports Authority

 Connector 2000 Associ ation, Inc.

 Savannah Lakes Regi onal Loan Fund

e South Carolina Lottery Conmmi ssion

e South Carolina Children’s Trust Fund
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APPENDIX C—AGENCIES BY FUNCTION

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
AGENCIESBY FUNCTION

Agy Agy

Code Agency Name Function Code Agency Name Function

A0l |Leg Dept-The Senate Genera Governmental FO1 |Budget And Control Board Genera Governmental

AO05 |Leg Dept-House Of Repre General Governmental FO5 |B&C Bd-Div Of Exec Director General Governmental

A15 |Leg Dept-Cde Laws Leg Cncl General Governmental FO7 |B&C Bd-Div Of Operations Genera Governmental

A17 |Leg Dept-Leg Printing & Info Tech |General Governmental F09 |B&C Bd-Div Of Budget & Analyseq General Governmental
Res

A20 |Leg Dept-Leg Audit Council Genera Governmental F11 |B&C Bd-Div Of Regional Genera Governmental

Development

A25 |Leg Dept-Leg Info Systems General Governmental F27 |B&C Bd-State Auditor General Governmental

A85 |Education Oversight Committee  |General Governmenta F29 |B&C Bd-Retirement General Governmental

BO4 |Judicia Department Administration of Justice F30 |B&C Bd-Employee Benefits Genera Governmental

B06 | Sentencing Guidelines Commission |Administration of Justice F31 |B&C Bd-Capital Expenditure Fund |General Governmental

C05 |Administrative Law Judges Genera Governmental HO3 |Higher Education Commission Education

D05 |Governors Off-E C Of S Genera Governmental HO6 |Higher Ed Tuition Grant Education

Commission

D10 |Governors Off-SLED General Governmental H09 |The Citadel Higher Education

D17 |Governors Off-OE PP Genera Governmental H12 |Clemson University Higher Education

D20 |Governors Off-Mansion & Grounds |General Governmental H15 |College Of Charleston Higher Education

EO04 |Lieutenant Governor Genera Governmental H17 |Coastal CarolinaUniversity Higher Education

EO8 |Secretary Of State General Governmental H18 |Francis Marion University Higher Education

E12 |Comptroller General Genera Governmental H21 |Lander University Higher Education

E16 |State Treasurer's Office General Governmental H24 |South Carolina State University Higher Education

E17 |Tobacco Settlement Rev Genera Governmental H26 |University Of South Carolina Higher Education
Management Auth

E20 |Attorney Genera General Governmental H27 |USC-Columbia Campus Higher Education

E21 |SC Comm On Prosecution Genera Governmental H29 |USC-Aiken Campus Higher Education
Coordination

E22 |Commission On Appellate Defense |General Governmental H34 |USC-Spartanburg Campus Higher Education

E23 |Commission On Indigent Defense  |General Governmental H36 |USC-Beaufort Campus Higher Education

E24 |Adjutant General Genera Governmental H37 |USC-Lancaster Campus Higher Education

E28 |Election Commission General Governmental H38 |USC-Salkehatchie Campus Higher Education
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Agy Agy
Code Agency Name Function Code Agency Name Function
H39 |USC-Sumter Campus Higher Education L12 |John De LaHowe School Socid Services
H40 |USC-Union Campus Higher Education L24 |Blind Commission Socid Services
H47 |Winthrop University Higher Education L32 |Housing Authority Housing Authority
H51 |Medicd Univ Of SC Higher Education L36 [Human Affairs Commission Socid Services
H52 |Medica Univ Of S C-Hospital Higher Education L46 |State Commission For Minority Socid Services
Affairs
H53 |M U SC-Consortium Of Comm  |Higher Education NO4 |Corrections Department Administration of Justice
Teach Hosp
H54 |Charleston Higher Educ Consortium|Education NO8 |Probation Parole & Pardon Services | Administration of Justice
H59 |Tech & Comp Education Board Education N12 |Dept Of Juvenile Justice Administration of Justice
H63 |Education Department Education P12 |Forestry Commission Resources & Econ. Develop
H67 |Educational Television Commission|Education P16 |Agriculture Department Resources & Econ. Develop
H71 |Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School  |Education P20 |Clemson Univ Pub Serv Act Higher Education
H73 |Vocationa Rehabilitation Education P21 |SCSC Public Service Act Higher Education
H75 |Deaf & Blind School Education P24 | Dept Of Natural Resources Resources & Econ. Develop
H79 |Archives & History Department Education P26 |SeaGrant Consortium Resources & Econ. Develop
H80 |African-American Hist Monument |Education P28 |Parks Recreation & Tourism Resources & Econ. Develop
Comm
H87 |StateLibrary Education P32 |Department Of Commerce Resources & Econ. Develop
H91 |Arts Commission Education P34 | S C Jobs Econ Development Other Business Type
Authority
H95 |Museum Commission Education P36 |Patriots Point Development Other Business Type
Authority
J02 |Dept Of Health & Human Services |Health and Environment P48 |Old Exchange Building Comm Resources & Econ. Develop
J04 |Hedlth & Environmental Control Hedlth and Environment R04 |Public Service Commission General Governmental
Department
J12 |Mental Health Department Health and Environment R08 |S C Workers Compensation General Governmental
Commission
J16 |Dept Of Disabilities & Specia Health and Environment R12 |State Accident Fund Genera Governmental
Needs
J20 |Dept Of Alcohol & Other Drug Health and Environment R14 |Patients Compensation Fund Other Business Type
Abuse Service
K05 |Department Of Public Safety Administration of Justice R16 |Second Injury Fund Other Business Type
L04 |Socid Services Department Socid Services R20 |Insurance Department General Governmental
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STATE OF SOUTHCARCLINA
ACENCESBY RUNCTION
Ay Ay
Code Agacy Nare Fundion Code Agacy Nare Fundion
R23 |BoadOf Frendd Indiitutios | Ganerd Govammante R0 |SaeBa Gaad Governatd
R28 | Conaune AffarsCommissan Gaad Govarnatd 0 |Roourarat ReviewPard Gaad Governatd
R36 | Det O Lebar, Licading, & Gagd Govermatd U2 |Depatmat O Trangartation Trangartaion
Regdion
R4 | Depatmat O Revee Gagd Govermatd Ul5 |SCTrampatdionInfrasrudture | Trangpartetion
Bark
R2 |SaeBhcsCommissan Gagd Govermatd Y08 |RublicRalweysConmisson Cther Busness Type
R0 |Erpoymat Seouity Comisson |Ganerd Govarmartd
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APPENDIX D—THE STATE'S MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The State expects to report the followwng as its mgjor

enterprise funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002:

e Higher Education Fund (including activity of all
and universities).

* Unenpl oynent Conpensation Benefits Fund.
e State Housing Authority’s Enterprise Fund.

» State Education Assistance Authority.

col | eges
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APPENDIX E—FINANCIAL STATEMENT SPREADSHEETS AND FORMS,
COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES
INTRODUCTION
Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles require that the State

i ncorporate public, State-supported colleges/universities within

its financial statenents. Because South Carolina has

twenty-six

such public institutions, it is inportant that the Ofice of the

Comptroll er Ceneral receive financial statenent data
entities in a consistent manner. The O fice of the
CGeneral achieves consistency by requiring that
submt four spreadsheets that are packaged together i
Excel wor kbook.

from these
Conmptrol |l er
nstitutions
n a single

Fi nanci al statenent spreadheets for colleges/universities were

previously included in Section 5.0 of the d osing

Pr ocedur es

Manual . Beginning with the 2001-2002 fiscal year, Section 5.0
has been deleted from the Cosing Procedures Mnual, and
instructions for conpleting the revised spreadsheets are |ocated

here.

Consistent with prior years, the Ofice of the

Comptroller

CGeneral requires the followng from each of the public colleges

and uni versities:

 The conpleted forns and Excel spreadsheets described in

t hi s appendi x:

» An Excel workbook (.xlIs) file with separate
the three basic financial statenents and for
of Interfund Balances and Activity.

» Conpl eted paper fornms as descri bed.

» Additional information in detailed witten ex
as appl i cabl e (e.qg., expl anat i ons
speci al /extraordinary itens, if not described
in the audited financial statenents).

sheets for
a Schedul e

pl anat i ons,
of any
in detail
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e Your institution's audited financial statenents.

The O fice of the Conptroller General needs this financial data:

e To allow reconciliation between your institution's bal ances
and records nmaintained elsewhere within State governnent.
(The auditors of the State's financial statenents will need
t hese reconciliations.)

e To provide data that does not appear in your institution's
separatel y-issued financial statenents but nust appear in
the State's financial statenents.

 To elimnate data appearing in your institution's separate
financial statenments that is not appropriate for statew de
financi al reporting.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e (btain a copy of your institution's audited financial
st at enent s. Use the published statenents if avail able.
O herw se, use draft financial statenents that vyour
audi tors have prepared.

* Downl oad the Excel workbook file and read-only Acrobat
formse fromthe Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral’s Internet
website. Renane the Excel workbook xxx-Hi gher Ed.xls where
xxx 1s the STARS agency code for your institution.

e Input the required anmounts into the follow ng four Excel
spreadsheet s:

> Statenent of Net Assets.

> Statenent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Asset s.

> Statenent of Cash Fl ows.
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» Schedul e of Interfund Balances and Activity (if

appl i cabl e).
» Mke a copy of the conpl eted workbook for your records.
e Conplete the Coll ege/University Checkli st.

* On or before the due dates specified below, return to the
Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral

> A copy of your institution’s audited financial
st at enent s.

» The conmpleted Excel wor kbook file on a diskette
reflecting data shown on your audited financi al
st at enent s.

> Printouts of the three financial statenent spreadsheets
and the Interfund sheet, if applicable.

» The additional paper forns conpleted based on your
audited financial statenments along with any additional
expl anati ons, as appropriate.

DUE DATES

Tinmeliness s extrenmely inportant. The Ofice of the
Conmptroller GCeneral's goal is to publish the State's audited
financial statenments no |later than Decenber 31. The audit

contracts for various State higher education institutions
specify different draft and/or final report availability dates.
Accordingly, the due date for the forns and spreadsheets
described in this Appendix depends on when audited financial
statenents becone available to you

To neet our goals, the Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral nust
receive your draft and final audited financial statenments no
|ater than the date(s) specified in the audit contract. The
Ofice of the Conptroller General recognizes that tinely
i ssuance of these audited financial statenents is not entirely
Wi thin your control. To expedite the audit, however, you can:
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| f

Cl ose your agency's books on tine.

Gve the auditors everything they need to begin the audit
on time and to performtheir work in the specified tine.

Make key staff nmenbers available to answer auditor
gquesti ons.

your final audited financial statenents are available on or

before Cctober 1, send to the Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral:

Your final audited financial statenents imrediately upon
rel ease by your auditors.

The conpl eted Excel workbook and paper fornms correspondi ng
to these final statenments no nore than one week | ater.

If your final audited financial statenments are NOI avail able on

or

before Cctober 1, send to the Ofice of the Conptroller

General (0OCG) :

Your draft audited financial statenents as soon as your

auditors make them available to you. The OCG nust have
draft or final financial statenments for your institution no
|ater than Cctober 15. [If no audited draft is available by

that date, please send the OCG unaudited draft financial
st at ement s.

The conpl eted Excel workbook and paper forms correspondi ng
to the above draft statenments no nore than one week | ater.

The final audited financial statenments imediately upon
rel ease by your auditors.

The wupdated Excel spreadsheets and revised paper forns
corresponding to the final financial statenments no nore
than one week | ater. Clearly identify any changes between
the draft and the final audit report.
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WORKING PAPERS

The Ofice of +the Conptroller GCeneral’s staff
statewide joint audit team nmay ask questions of your

and/or the
institution

that require reference to working papers used in preparing the
materials discussed in this appendix. Accordingly, each

col | ege/uni versity shoul d keep
* A copy of the conpleted Excel workbook file.

* Copies of the conpleted forns.

* A copy of the audited financial statenments used to conplete
the spreadsheets and forns. (These statenents nmay be

ei ther published or draft statenents.)

* Wirking papers that support each figure in the conpleted

package.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS—GENERAL INFORMATION FORM
 The Ceneral Information Form a paper form docunents

certain general information that applies to all paper forns
and electronic files that your institution submts to the

Ofice of the Conptroller Ceneral.

* Please enter signatures on this fornm-Aot typed or stanped

nanes.

e Conplete and return the form to the Ofice

of the

Conmptrol l er General with your other fornms and and the Exce

wor kbook fil e.

e The contact person should keep a copy of all conpleted
forms and the Excel workbook file. The Ofice of the
Comptroller GCeneral wll call this person if there are
gquesti ons.

* The GCeneral Information Form is not reproduced in this
manual . Pl ease download the blank form from the Internet
and conplete it in accordance wth the instructions

provi ded here and bel ow.
SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS—THE GENERAL INFORMATION FORM

e Enter the fiscal year for which this formapplies.

e Enter the institution's nane and the three-character STARS

agency code.

* Include signature and job title for any person conpleting

any of the other formns/spreadsheets.

* The person responsible for overall review of all forns
should conplete this information. I ncl ude signature, |ob

title, and conpletion date of the review

* Decide who should answer any questions the Ofice of the

Comptrol l er General may have regarding any of the

conpl et ed
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forms. Enter the nane, job title, and tel ephone nunber of
this person.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS—STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS SPREADSHEET

e |In the downl oaded Excel workbook, <click the tab for the

sheet nanmed SONA

e Input financial data for your institution's

primary

operations into the colum entitled Primary Institution.

This should include educational activities as

wel | as

auxiliary enterprises. This colum also includes al

rel ated capital asset and debt bal ances.

e Input financial data of each Dblended or

di scretely

presented conponent unit into the Conmponent Units columms

nunbered 1 through 4. Enter each conponent wunit

into a

separate colum, and replace the nunber (1 through 4) in

the colum heading area with the nanme of the related
conmponent unit.

* lIgnore the nunmeric codes that appear to the left of the
account code titles. These are for the Ofice of the
Comptrol l er General's use only.

* Round all dollar anmounts to the nearest whole dollar. Key
a mnus sign in front of each negative figure. Excel w |

print negative nunbers in parentheses.

e If certain accounts do not apply to your institution, you

need not enter zeros—ust |eave bl anks.

e Amounts on this sheet should conme from your

fi nanci al statenents or the notes to the
st at enent s.

audi t ed
fi nanci al

 Print out the conpleted sheet and return it to the Ofice

of the Conptroller GCeneral along with the other

required

materials on or before the specified due date (see DUE

DATES subsecti on above).

e The contact person should keep a copy of the conpleted
Excel spreadsheet file and the printout. The Ofice of the
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Comptroller GCeneral wll call this person if there are
gquesti ons.

The Statenent of Net Assets spreadsheet is not reproduced
in this manual. Please downl oad the bl ank spreadsheet from
the Internet and conplete it in accordance wth the
i nstructions provided here and bel ow.

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS—STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS SPREADSHEET

Header : Ent er t he institution's name and t he
t hree- charact er STARS agency code.

Classified Format: Al'l assets nust be segregated between
current and non-current balances; all liabilities nust be
segregat ed between current and |ong-term bal ances. Current
assets and liabilities are those expected to generate or

use cash within twelve nonths of June 30 (i.e., on or
before next June 30). Li kew se, non-current assets and
long-term liabilities 1include amunts expected to be

generated or used in the period after next June 30.

Cash & Cash Equi val ent s—Non- STARS: Segregate cash and cash
equivalents not held by the State Treasurer’'s Ofice in
Account Code 1101, Cash & Cash Equi val ent s—Non- STARS

Recei vabl es: Show al | recei vables accounts on this
spr eadsheet net of any allowance for uncol | ecti bl e
accounts. I ncl ude footnote disclosure in your financial

statenents that details the gross receivable balance of
each account, reduction for allowances for uncollectible
accounts (at least in total for all receivables), and the
net receivable balance (which nust agree to the total of
bal ances included in receivables accounts included in this
spr eadsheet). For additional details, see RECElIVABLES
FOOTNOTE—M NI MUM LEVEL OF DETAIL in Section 6 (FOOTNOTE
DI SCLOSURES) of this manual.

Account s Recei vabl e (M scel | aneous): Use Account
Code 1150, Accounts Receivable (M scellaneous), to record
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any receivable accounts included in your fi nanci al
statenents that are not separately identified in this
spr eadsheet . (Also see information below on Capital
| mpr ovenent Bond Proceeds Receivable.)
Capital |Inprovenent Bond Proceeds Receivabl e: Record any

Capital Inprovenent Bond (CIB) Proceeds Receivable in
Account Code 1150, Accounts Receivable (M scellaneous).
For additional information, see CAPITAL | MPROVEMENT BOND
RECEI VABLES/ REVENUE i n Section 5 ( FI NANCI AL STATEMENT
COMPONENTS) of this policy manual .

Due From Federal Governnent: Account Code 1180, Due From
Federal Governnent, should include all anopunts receivable
from federal governnent sources.

Due FromlTo Oher Funds in These Financial Statenents:
Account Codes 19XX and 29XX, Due Fromi To Qher Funds in
These Financial Statenents, should include any short-term
interfund activity between the primary institution and any
bl ended conponent units shown in separate columms in this
spr eadsheet . If you report balances on these lines, you
must conplete the Interfund sheet in the downl oaded Excel
wor kbook.

Restricted Assets—Current: Use Account Codes 1440 through
1443 for the current portion of any restricted assets (for
exanple, restricted due to bond covenants, restricted for
federal Perkins |oan program etc.).

Advances To/ From Ot her Funds in These Financial Statenents:
Account Codes 1240 and 2120, Advances To/From O her Funds
in These Financial Statenents, should include |ong-term
interfund activity between the primary institution and any
bl ended conponent units shown in separate colums in this
statenment. If you report bal ances on these |ines, you nust
conplete the Interfund sheet in the downloaded Excel
wor kbook.
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e Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:

Account

Code 2175, Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets,

shoul d i ncl ude any liabilities associ at ed

W th

adm ni strative expenses of Perkins |oan program activities.

* Bonds Payabl e: Limt the Bonds Payable accounts,

current

and non-current, to bonds payable. These anounts nust

agree to your institution's footnote disclosure for

| ong-

term debt. Use Account Codes 2160 through 2171 to record

other simlar current and long-termliabilities.

* Notes Payable To (or Advances Fron) O her State Agencies
I f your institution has notes payable to (or advances from
ot her State agencies, please report the payable anounts as

part of Account Codes 2170 (Loans and Notes

Payabl e,
Current) or 2171 (Loans and Notes Payabl e, Long-Tern).




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

, SECTI ON
POLI Cl ES—FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR APPENDI X E
SUBJECT I SSUE DATE
FI NANCI AL STATEMENT SPREADSHEETS, COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI Tl ES 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
157

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS—STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS SPREADSHEET

e |In the downl oaded Excel workbook, click the tab for the

sheet naned SORECNA

* Input financial data for your institution's

primry

operations in the colum entitled Primary Institution.

This should include educational activities as

auxiliary enterprises.

e Input financial data for each blended or

wel | as

di scretely

presented conponent unit into the Conmponent Units columms

nunbered 1 through 4. Enter each conponent wunit

into a

separate colum, and replace the nunmber (1 through 4) in

the colum heading area with the nanme of the related
conmponent unit.

* lIgnore the numeric codes that appear to the left of the
account code titles. These are for the Ofice of the
Comptrol l er General's use only.

* Round all dollar anmounts to the nearest whole dollar. Key
a mnus sign in front of each negative figure. Excel w |

print negative nunbers in parentheses.

e |If certain accounts do not apply to your institution, you

need not enter zeros—ust |eave bl anks.

* Amounts on this file should cone from your

fi nanci al statenents or the notes to the
st at enent s.

audi t ed
fi nanci al

* Print out the conpleted sheet and return it to the Ofice

of the Conptroller GCeneral along with the other

required

materials on or before the specified due date (see DUE

DATES subsection above).

e The contact person should keep a copy of the conpleted
Excel spreadsheet file and the printout. The Ofice of the
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Comptroller GCeneral wll call this person if there are
gquesti ons.
e The Statenent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Assets is not reproduced in this manual. Pl ease downl oad

the bl ank spreadsheet from the Internet and conplete it in
accordance with the instructions provided here and bel ow.

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS—STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS SPREADSHEET

e Header: Ent er t he institution's nane
t hree-character STARS agency code.

e Charges for Services, Net: Account Code 0200,

t he

Charges for
Services, Net, should include all student-related

f ees,

patient-related fees, and other anobunts you receive for

servi ces provided.

e (perating Revenues Pl edged for Revenue Bonds, Net:

Account

Code 0231, Operating Revenues Pledged for Revenue Bonds,
Net, must include all revenues pledged as security for
revenue bonds. If your institution had revenue bonds

outstanding at June 30 and all of its charges for
included in account code 0200 (as defined above)
pl edged agai nst revenue bonds, enter the anount
spreadsheet as Account Code 0231, COperating
Pl edged for Revenue Bonds, Net, even if your

servi ces

wer e

into the
Revenues
audi t ed

statenents do not separately display Operating Revenues

Pl edged for Revenue Bonds.

e Gants: Accounts for grants appear in both the QOperating
Revenues and Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) sections.
For exanpl e Federal Grants and Contracts (Account
Code 0145) appears in the Qperating Revenues section
whereas Federal G ants (Account Code 0150) appears in the
Nonoper ati ng Revenues (Expenses). Although grants received
for operating purposes generally represent non-operating
revenue for enterprise funds, sonme higher education
institutions may receive certain grants that neet the
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narrow requirements for being classified wthin the
Operating Revenues section. For nore information, see
APPENDI X A—OPERATING VS. NONOPERATI NG REVENUES, GRANTS
PRACTI CE Al D and GRANT/ CONTRI BUTI ON REVENUES | N PROPRI ETARY
FUNDS—OPERATI NG OR NON- OPERATI NG on page 75. In addition
to classifying grants within the Qperati ng Revenues section
or Non-Qperating Revenues section, capital grants nust be
reported separately from other grants. For exanple, the
Federal Capital Gants and Contracts account (Account
Code 0770) appears below the Non-Qperating Revenues
(Expenses) section.

O her Operating Revenues, Net: Account Code 0205, O her
Operating Revenues, Net, should include all other operating
revenues for your institution. This would include interest
coll ected on student |oans, sales and services of auxiliary
enterprises, etc.

CGeneral Operations and Administration: Use Expense Account
Code 2000, General Operations and Admi nistration, for all
ot her general operations and adm nistrative expenses (i.e.,
sal aries, benefits, supplies, materials, rent, utilities,
etc.) not included in a separate category on this
spr eadsheet (i.e., depreci ati on, anortization, and
schol arshi ps and fell owshi ps).

O her QOperating Expenses: You should report nost operating
expenses in one of the four specific accounts |isted. | f
you find it necessary to use Expense Account Code 2039,
O her Operating Expenses, please include a separate sheet
expl aining what is included in this account when you submt
your spreadsheets and forns to the Ofice of the
Comptrol | er General

State Appropriations: Enter appropriate anounts into the
t wo r ows, State Appropri ations and State Capi t al
Appropriations rows. [ The Account Code is 48XX for both
rows because the Ofice of the Conptroller General nust
reclassify these as Transfers In.] The anounts for each of
these two categories nust match the corresponding anounts
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identified on the Appropriation Reconciliation schedule

(see DETAIL OF STATE APPROPRI ATI ONS RECORDED AS REVENUE on
page 114).
e Contributions (Excluding Capital): Report contributions

revenue in the Non-Qperating Revenues section

even if the

contributions may be used “for operating purposes.” That
is, report all contributions (except those restricted by

the contributor for capital purposes) in Account

Code 0400,

Contributions (Excluding Capital). Report unrestricted
capital contributions in Account Code 0774, Local/Private

Capital Gants and Contracts. For nore infor

mati on, see

GRANT/ CONTRI BUTI ON  REVENUES | N PROPRI ETARY FUNDS—OPERATI NG

OR NON- OPERATI NG on page 75.

e Net Investnment | ncone: Account Code 0549, Net | nvestment
| ncone, must i ncl ude al | i nvest nent -rel at ed i ncone,
i ncluding changes in the fair value of investnents. Show

this bal ance net of any rel ated investnent expenses.

* Interest Expense: Use Account Code 2075, Interest Expense,

to record all i nt erest expense reported
i nstitution.

by  your

* Federal G ant Funds Received from State Board for Technica
and Conprehensive Education: Account Code 0150, Federal
Grants (in the Non-Operating Revenue section), should
i nclude any federal funds that a technical college received
from the State Board for Technical and Conprehensive

Education during the fiscal year.

e Special and Extraordinary Itens: Use Account

Code XXXX,

Special and Extraordinary Itens, to report itens that neet

the definitions included in paragraphs 86, 89,

and 100 of

GASB 34. Report such items in a single line on this

spreadsheet, but include a detailed descripti
item and a breakdown of anmounts in a witten
submtted along with this spreadsheet.

on of each
expl anati on
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e Transfers In FromMQut To Oher Funds in These Financial
St at enent s: Account Codes 48XX and 58XX, Transfers 1In

FromQut To Oher Funds in These Financial

shoul d i ncl ude any transfers bet ween t he

institution and any blended conponent units

separate colums in this statenent. |If you report

St at enent s,
primry
shown in
bal ances

on these lines, you nust conplete the Interfund sheet in

t he downl oaded Excel wor kbook

* Beginning Net Assets—FRANSITION | SSUE: For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002, you nust input the beginning net
assets balance in this spreadsheet based on adjustnents
made for the adoption of the new financial reporting node

and corrections of errors of prior years. Not es
Fi nancial Statenents nust describe these adjustnents.

to the

For

details, see EFFECTS OF ACCOUNTI NG AND REPORTI NG CHANGES ON

BEG NNING FUND EQUI TY/ NET ASSETS in Section 6

( FOOTNOTE

DI SCLOSURES) of this nmanual . In prior years, the Ofice of

the Conptroller General input this balance for you.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS—STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS SPREADSHEET

In the downl oaded Excel workbook, click the tab for the
sheet nanmed SCF

Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar. Key
a mnus sign in front of each negative figure. Excel w |
print negative nunbers in parentheses.

| f certain accounts are not applicable to your institution,
you need not enter zeros—ust |eave bl anks.

Amounts on this file should conme from your audited
financial statenents or Notes to the Financial Statenents.

Print out the conpleted sheet and return it to the Ofice
of the Conptroller GCeneral along with the other required
materials on or before the specified due date (see DUE
DATES subsection above).

The contact person should keep a copy of the spreadsheet
file and the printout. The Ofice of the Conptroller
CGeneral will call this person if there are questions.

The Statenent of Cash Flows spreadsheet is not reproduced
in this manual. Pl ease downl oad the bl ank spreadsheet from
the Internet and conplete it in accordance wth the
i nstructions provided here and bel ow.

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS—STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS SPREADSHEET

Header : Ent er t he institution's name and t he
t hree-character STARS agency code.

Cash and Cash Equival ents: Cash and Cash Equi val ents mnust
include all cash and investnents with original maturities
of three nonths or less and all anobunts in the State
Treasurer’s Ofice internal investnment pool
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Net Cash Provided By/Used In Operating Activities: The
bal ance of Net Cash Provided By/Used In Operating
Activities (first section) nust equal the anount of the
sane caption in the reconciliation section.

O her Lines: Each of the five sections of the Statement of
Cash Fl ows spreadsheet has an “other” line item Use the
“other” line to record the transaction anount(s) of any
cash flow transactions for your institution that do not
belong on the standard lines included in each section of
the statenent. |If you use the “other” line in any section,
attach a separate schedule identifying both the item and
the specific section to which the item pertains.

Non- Cash Itens: Include a separate detailed narrative or
schedul e that descri bes each non-cash item in consi derable
detail .
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS—SCHEDULE OF INTERFUND BALANCES AND

ACTIVITIES SPREADSHEET

e Conplete this spreadsheet only if your institution has one
or nore conponent units and you have entered one or nore
anounts on the lines for Due FromTo O her Funds in These
Fi nanci al St atenent s (Account Codes 19XX and 29XX)

Advances To/ From G her Funds in These Fi nanci al

St at enent s

(Account Codes 1240 and 2120), or Transfers In From Qut To

O her Funds in These Fi nanci al St at enent s

Codes 48XX and 58XX).

(Account

e |If you need to conplete this spreadsheet, click the tab for

t he sheet named | NTERFUND i n the downl oaded Exce

wor kbook.

* Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole doll ar.

e If certain accounts are not applicable to your institution,

do not enter zeros—ust |eave bl anks.

e Mst anobunts on this spreadsheet should cone

financial statenents or accounting records.

from the

* Print out the conpleted sheet and return it to the Ofice
of the Conptroller GCeneral along with the other required
materials on or before the specified due date (see DUE

DATES subsection above).

e The contact person should keep a copy of the conpleted
spr eadsheet . The Ofice of the Conptroller General wll

call this person if there are questions.

 The Schedule of I nt er fund Bal ances and
spreadsheet is not reproduced in this manual

Activities
Pl ease

download the blank spreadsheet from the Internet and
conplete it in accordance with the instructions provided

here and bel ow.




STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA
OFFI CE OF THE COVWPTROLLER GENERAL

, SECTI ON
POLI Cl ES—FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS | NCORPORATED | NTO THE STATE' S CAFR APPENDI X E
SUBJECT I SSUE DATE
FI NANCI AL STATEMENT SPREADSHEETS, COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI Tl ES 06- 30- 2002
PAGE
165

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS—SCHEDULE OF INTERFUND BALANCES AND
ACTIVITIES SPREADSHEET

* Header: Ent er t he institution's name and t he
t hree- charact er STARS agency code.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS—COLLEGE/UNIVERSITY CHECKLIST
e The purpose of this checklist is to help ensure that the
information on your forns and spreadsheets is reliable.
Your conpletion of these steps should reduce the need for

tel ephone calls fromthe Ofice of the Conptroller GCeneral

and resulting delays in incorporating your

fi nanci al

statenent data into the statew de CAFR The O fice of the
Comptroller General also wll show this <checklist to

auditors of the statew de financi al statenents.

* Conplete this formonly after you have conpleted all other

forms and spreadsheets in this appendi x.
e Sign and date each review step as you conplete it.

e Conplete and return the form to the Ofice

of the

Comptroller General no later than the specified due

date(s).

e The contact person should keep a copy of the
form The Ofice of the Conptroller General wll
person if there are questions.

conpl et ed

call this

e The College/University Checklist is not reproduced in this

manual . Pl ease downl oad the blank form from the

| nt er net

and conplete it in accordance wth the instructions

provi ded here and bel ow.
SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS—/UNIVERSITY CHECKLIST

e Enter the fiscal year for which this formapplies.

e Enter the institution's nane and the three-character STARS

agency code.
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APPENDIX F—CLASSIFICATION OF AMOUNTS RECEIVED BY COLLEGES AND

]

UNIVERSITIES FROM THE COMMISSION ON HIGHER EDUCATION (CHE)

Program* GASB 34 Classification @ | STARS @ Basis for Classification
Access and Equity Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Rewvenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
Life Scholarship Grants, Operating Revenue |IDT Institution receives scholarships on behalf of students for tuition.
STARS Scholarship Grants, Operating Revenue |IDT Institution receives scholarships on behalf of students for tuition.
Palmetto Fellows Grants, Operating Revenue |IDT Institution receives scholarships on behalf of students for tuition.
Educational Endowment Grants, Operating Revenue |IDT Institution receives scholarships on behalf of students for tuition.
Need Based Grants Grants, Operating Revenue |IDT Institution receives grants on behalf of students for tuition.
Centers of Excellence Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Rewvenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
Teacher Recruitment Grants, Operating Revenue/ |IDT Scholarships are awarded from the grant, and the CHE establishes
Appropriations--Nonoperating the guidelines to identify the students who are awarded the
Rewenue (see Basis for scholarships. Per review of Section 1A.29 of the Provisos the CHE
Classification column) is instructed to distribute a specific amount to a specific ins
Partnership Assistance Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Rewenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
DDE Math and Science Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Rewenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
Performance Funding Appropriations--Nonoperating [Appropriation | Truly an appropriation
Rewvenue Transfer
Higher Education Awareness Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Program Rewenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
SC Manufacturing Extension Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Partnership Rewenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
SC Alliance for Minority Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Participation Rewvenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
SC Experimental Program to Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Stimulate Competitive Research |Revenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
Academic Endowment Appropriations--Nonoperating [Appropriation |5% match on institutions' fund-raising.
Rewvenue Transfer
Research Initiative Grants Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Rewvenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.
Instructional Technology Grants |Grants, Nonoperating IDT The resource recipient is not required to produce and deliver to the
Rewenue resource provider deliverables that have current or potential future
economic value.

The Office of the Comptroller General has requested that the CHE use this document type when moving monies to public institutions and/or to the

Technical Education Board.

The Office of the Comptroller General's staff reached these conclusions after discussions with representatives of the CHE in June 2002 and after
completing Grant the Grants Practice Aid included as Appendix A of this manual for each program.




